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I. Message from our Chairman

In 2022, China experienced a historic year marked by the unprecedented
economic impact of the pandemic and geopolitical conflicts. SciClone, despite
an exceedingly challenging business environment, still managed to achieve
remarkable results. This success once again demonstrated SciClone’s commitment
to its mission, and that the people at the Company working hard to deliver results
are SciClone’s most important asset. Mr. Zhao Hong, our Chief Executive Officer,
led his team in facing challenges head-on, advancing the Company's development
with unwavering resolve, continuously strengthening core competencies, and
consistently creating value for patients, Shareholders and the healthcare industry.

After China changed course on its pandemic policies in December 2022,
COVID-19 infection rate reached unforeseen levels. Safeguarding the health of
the people remained the nation’s top priority. As SciClone’s Shareholders, you
should be proud of Zadaxin's contributions to numerous patients combating
COVID-19. Many experts and friends expressed their appreciation for being able
to use Zadaxin which effectively safeguarded the health of their patients and
families. When demand for Zadaxin surged, SciClone swiftly mobilized its global
supply chain and established an emergency supply channel to ensure the utmost
availability, making every effort to meet the needs of our patients.

We firmly believe that the final judgement on the clinical value of a drug
ultimately rests with doctors and patients; improving their health and well-
being is what we strive for in everything we do. Zadaxin, since receiving approval
in Italy in 1993, has been used in clinical use for nearly three decades. It has
forged long-lasting brand loyalty thanks to its ongoing breakthroughs in severe
infections, oncology and other therapeutic areas that require the regulation of
immune systems, benefiting tens of thousands of patients worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement

SciClone’s Board has always considered product pipeline development the
Company's primary focus. At the core of the Company’s efforts to increase
shareholder value is how we can utilize our strong cash flow to build future
growth drivers. Over the past several years, SciClone has been developing a
pipeline of first-in-class or best-in-class products. With a dual-pronged approach
of strategic partnerships and proprietary research and development, SciClone will
be able to expand its pipeline rapidly to fuel long-term sustainable growth. Last
year in the annual letter, | outlined M&A opportunities for SciClone as a result
of the market correction of China’s biotech industry. In 2022, the team worked
tirelessly to review strategic acquisition opportunities and made some positive
headway, but as valuation expectations needed time to adjust, we have not yet
pulled the trigger. In 2023, we will continue our proactive approach in strategic
collaborations, including M&A, and hope our efforts will be fruitful. We are ready
to act quickly on a suitable opportunity; on the other hand, we have the patience
to wait for the right deal. The underlying principle of our decisions is always
based on whether the action will enhance the long-term value of Shareholders.

China’s biotech industry is moving towards a new phase of commercialization.
As a result, an increasing number of corporate executives and investors are
recognizing the importance of commercialization capabilities. According to the
head of healthcare at a renowned global consulting firm, their recent study on
China’s pharmaceutical industry concluded that commercialization capability
is among the most crucial competencies for companies in this area. SciClone’s
commercialization capability is remarkably strong, making it a highly valuable
asset to the Group. Commercialization capability is like an expressway; what we
are looking to do is to find great cars to optimize its speed and performance. |
am happy to see that an increasing number of biotech companies are seeking
collaboration with companies that possess strong commercialization capabilities.
SciClone will actively engage in these opportunities.

| hereby would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our Shareholders,
management team, employees, business partners and customers for their support
and dedication to the Group.

Spring is in the air, bringing promises and opportunities. It is always Day One for
SciClone and anything is possible!
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Il. Annual Results of our Company
Financial Highlights

2022 was a turbulent year with the global economy hit by multiple adverse
shocks — war in Ukraine, on-going waves of COVID-19 outbreaks, supply chain
disruption, persistent high inflation and fear of recession from sharply tightening
financial conditions. The World Bank estimated 2022 global economic expansion
dropped to 2.9% from 5.7% in 2021. China’s economic growth in 2022 was 3%
while in 2021 it had rebounded by 8.4%.

In the context of global and domestic challenging economy, we demonstrated
great business resilience and delivered solid results. By integrating internet
hospitals to our unique “Go-To-Patient” (“GTP”) model, we were able to improve
direct connection between physicians and patients through our digital portal
and continue to increase the accessibility of our products. We have actively
carried out various clinical researches with fruitful results to support our lifecycle
management and also made steady progress to accelerate product pipeline and
enhance product development capabilities. With strong commercial execution, the
advancement of our business/product development and efficient operations, we
are well positioned to sustain long-term growth.

We achieved revenue of RMB2,749.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2022, 9.2% up from last year. Our gross profit grew to RMB2,070.5 million in
2022, 7.1% ahead of last year. Affected by global valuation plunge, cash crunch
in biotech companies and appreciation of USD, our net profit was lowered to
RMB855.4 million after recording change in fair value loss of RMB80.5 million of
an investment and full impairment loss of RMB99.5 million against the related
intangible assets considering the uncertainty of their further developments.
Excluding the impact of the change in fair value loss and impairment loss
mentioned above, core net profit from normal business operation increased
by 5.6% to RMB1,035.4 million as compared with that of for the year ended
December 31, 2021. Operating cash flow reached RMB1,183.6 million, RMB154.1
million, or 15.0%, higher than that of the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement

We also built our sustainable growth on a strong balance sheet. As at December
31, 2022, the total cash and cash equivalents and cash deposits (from 3 to 12
months or in floating rates) amounted to approximately RMB2.6 billion, which
were approximately 88.2% of our net assets. In addition, the ratio of total
borrowings to total assets decreased to 19.3% from 28.2% as at December
31, 2021. Global financial difficulties of biotech companies on the other hand
provided us a rare opportunity of merger and acquisition to support the
Company’s development goal. We are actively searching for potential targets
and will continue to invest for growth, while remaining cautious in the face of
recessionary pressure.

Business Review

We are a biopharmaceutical company with the development goal of becoming a
leading specialty pharma in oncology and severe infection, two of the largest and
fast-growing therapeutic areas with significant unmet medical needs in China.
To achieve our goal, we implement “two-wheel drive” strategy — deploying
commercialization expertise and cultivating product development capabilities. In
commercialization, our marketed products have strong cash generation ability
while in product development, an innovative pipeline with first-in-class/best-in-
class potential has been established.

Commercialization

As of December 31, 2022, our sales and marketing team comprised approximately
790 employees (as at December 31, 2021: 720) systematically deployed to cover
hospitals and other medical institutions in China and to capture the latest market
dynamics, including approximately 530 employees assigned to the immunology
business unit (“IBU"), approximately 220 employees in the oncology business
("OBU") unit and approximately 40 employees responsible for market access and
commercial operations. Our sales and marketing team engages in offline and
online marketing and academic promotional activities to generate market demand
and build brand recognition for our proprietary, in-licensed (except for Angiomax),
and promotion products.

GTP model and life-cycle management are the two key components of our
commercialization capabilities. We started these two approaches with our
proprietary product, Zadaxin and gradually extended to our in-licensed products.

TEHEEZRBMBR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 FE#ReE ANNUAL REPORT 7
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GTP model:

In order to diversify our sales channels and promote Zadaxin's sales to
patients through pharmacies, we piloted our GTP platform back in 2015
which had since enhanced Zadaxin's accessibility to patients by extending
the sales of Zadaxin beyond hospitals into pharmacies. We started to
generate sales volume through GTP platform since 2018 and contribution
of Zadaxin sales volume through GTP model has been significantly
increasing. For the year ended December 31, 2022, sales through GTP
model contributed to more than 72% of total sales volume of Zadaxin as
compared with approximately 60% for last year.

As at December 31, 2022, GTP model (IBU and OBU together) had more
than 172,000 registered patients, more than 121,000 registered doctors
and approximately 760 DTP pharmacies.

Under GTP model, patients can upload prescriptions to the online platform
and drugs will be delivered to them directly. In the cities with pilot internet
hospitals, patients can get consultations and prescriptions directly online.
GTP is also a platform for the Company to provide value added services to
patients such as comprehensive academic and patient education. The model
provides great convenience and all-around support to our patients.

With our active development and investment in technologies and online
platforms, we aim to achieve operational efficiency by reaching more
stakeholders and customers with lower costs. The current co-operations
under GTP model:

v DTP chains: Link Pharmacies, Gaoji Health, Medbanks, Yuanxin,

Sinopharm Care Plus and “Yiyao Pharmacies” of SPH Cloud Health;

v Commercial insurance providers: LinkDoc, Zhong An Insurance and

Medi Trust;
4 Supply Chains and other digital patient services: Shanghai SF
Pharmaceuticals Supply Chain Holdings Co., Ltd., and LinkDoc

Technology;

4 Other retail sales channels: Ali Health and JD Health.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, our major updates of GTP model:

4 Participated in a joint venture to set up Hi-Doctor Platform,
cooperated with a number of other internet hospitals, and integrated
these internet hospitals into GTP model, which further improve digital
access to patients;

4 Enhanced patient communication and education functions of
Immunology Online (“HefE #") of IBU and Healthy Bone Alliance
("Z&= B E") and consolidated drug purchase, delivery, commercial
insurance and other services such as infusion appointments into Hi-
Doctor Platform;

v Completed the establishment of outpatient infusion canters for
Zometa in key cities.

2) Lifecycle management:

The sustainable growth of our marketed products is driven by our ongoing
clinical studies and academic promotions to expand their clinical adoptions.

/) Clinical studies and publications

We have been sponsoring investigators to conduct randomized
controlled trials (“RCT”) and real-world studies (“RWS") to discover
our marketed products’ potential clinical adoptions in oncology,
severe infection, vaccine and other therapeutic areas. As of the
date of this Annual Report, we have more than 10 on-going clinical
studies in China and overseas (the U.S. and Italy). Major results for
the Reporting Period and as of to the date of this Annual Report are
as follows:

) Research publications:

v A research study “Thymosin a-1 Reverses M2 Polarization
of Tumor-associated Macrophages during Efferocytosis”
was published in Cancer Research in April 2022. The
research concluded that Ta-1 improved the curative
effect of chemotherapy by reversing M2 polarization of
efferocytosis-activated macrophages, suggesting that
Ta-1 injection immediately after chemotherapy may
contribute to highly synergistic anti-tumor effects in
breast cancer patients;

#12AFRD T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 FE#%E ANNUAL REPORT 9
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v

A clinical study in 120 patients with hepatitis B
virus (“HBV") related acute-on-chronic liver failure
("ACLF") published in Hepatology International in
May 2022 proved Tal is safe for patients with HBV-
related ACLF and significantly improves the 90-day
liver transplantation-free survival rate (75% v.s. 53.4%,
P=0.03) and 180-day liver transplantation-free survival
rate (66.1% v.s. 48.3%, P=0.063);

A Phase Il clinical study published in International
Journal of Radiation Oncology, Biology, Physics in July
2022 demonstrated that administration of Ta1 during
and after concurrent chemoradiotherapy (“CCRT")
was associated with significant reductions in Grade >2
radiation pneumonitis and Grade 3-4 lymphopenia in
patients with locally advanced non-small cell lung cancer
("LANSCLC") compared to historic controls;
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In October 2022, “A Pilot Trial of Thymalfasin (Ta1)
to Treat Hospitalized Patients with Hypoxemia and
Lymphocytopenia due to Coronavirus Disease 2019
Infection” was published in The Journal of Infectious
Diseases, an official journal of the Infectious Diseases
Society of America. The data from this randomized pilot
trial offered a first preliminary assessment of the clinical
efficacy and safety of Ta1 among hospitalized patients
with hypoxemia and lymphocytopenia due to COVID-19.
It concluded that Ta1 is safe and tolerable and increases
CD4+ T-cell count among patients. It also suggested
research from larger studies is encouraged to further
assess the clinical benefit of Ta1 in managing COVID-19.

Other study progresses:

v

The first draft of research report of RCT for sepsis in
1,106 patients and RCT for pancreatitis in 504 patients
has been completed and is in preparation for publication;

Completed patient enrolment of RCT of Ta1 combined
with PD-1 antibody and apatinib in advanced gastric
cancer;

A pilot trial of Ta1 to prevent COVID-19 infection in
elderly renal dialysis patients in the U.S. completed 100%
patient enrolment;

Initiated RWS of Zometa on bone health in patients with
early breast cancer.
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1)

Treatment guidelines and consensuses

Zadaxin

Based on our efforts in life cycle management of Zadaxin,
in addition to official indications (for treatment of chronic
hepatitis B and vaccine enhancement in patients with impaired
immunity), Ta1 has been included in treatment guidelines
and consensuses issued by several professional associations
including the Chinese Medical Association (“CMA"), the
Chinese Society of Clinical Oncology (“CSCO"), Chinese
Medical Doctor Association and China Anti-Cancer Association
("CACA").

i)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, Ta1 was included
in eight more treatment guidelines and consensuses, among
which:

1

it was the first time Ta1 was recommended in guidelines
for gastric cancer: Guidelines for Clinical Diagnosis and
Treatment of Gastric Cancer (CMA) ({(E# 2 &2 & =&
& /R % & $8 ™)) and Guidelines for Integrated Diagnosis
and Treatment of Cancer in China — Gastric Cancer
(CACA) (T EIEREREZ AtERE — 55E))

Expert Consensus on the Monitoring and Treatment of
Sepsis-induced Immunosuppression ({2 2 i % & 2 8
HA B R K ) ) was formulated by experts from the
Shock and Sepsis Society of Chinese Research Hospital
Association, the China Critical Care Immunotherapy
Research Group, and the International Federation of the
Shock Societies (IFSS) for the first time for international
reference. This expert consensus was published in Military
Medical Research (Impact Factor = 34.915) and Ta1 is
the only immunomodulatory drug recommended to treat
septic patients with immunosuppression.
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Subsequent to 2022 year-end, Ta1 was included in Shanghai
COVID-19 Treatment Guidelines (2022 Version) (2022 k + /&
MHABERFESEEZ AR TED R L EMIE)) and Expert
Consensus on the Prevention and Treatment of COVID-19 in
Patients with Lung Cancer (CSCO and China Medical Education
Association) ((MiBBEM A B RBSEEHAERLH)),
and was recommended by several Class Ill general hospitals
such as the First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University
and Xiangya Hospital of Central South University in treating
COVID-19 patients.

In summary, Tal1 has been included in below treatment
guidelines and consensuses:
4 sepsis (2014, 2020 and 2022);

v pancreatic cancer (2019, 2021* and 2022);

v liver cancer (2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2022);

v COVID-19 (2020 and 2022%);

v HCC recurrence after hepatectomy (2021);

v lymph cancer (2017, 2019 and 2021);

v TACE (2018 and 2021);

v CRF (2021);

4 end-stage liver disease complicated with infections (2018
and 2022%);

v gastric cancer (2022%);

v immunomodulatory therapies for COPD (2022);

v IFl in patients with liver cancer (2022) and others.

* Year of publication; * Publication of 2023
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i) Zometa
Based on the clinical studies of Zometa, Zoledronic Acid (the
compound of Zometa) has been recommended in several
authoritative guidelines of treatments for breast cancer:

v In China: 1) Guidelines and Standards for Breast Cancer
Diagnosis and Treatment ({(F B & ILIE B 2
JA ¥ B B2 4R #3) 2021); 2) Bone Health Management in
Patients with Early Breast Cancer by Chinese Anti-Cancer
Association and Chinese Expert Consensus ({5 £ %L iz &
BEFRBREEFHFERIEM) 2022) for its anti-tumor
effect; 3) Expert Consensus on Safety Management of
Bone Modifying Drugs ((BE X R E Y LT 2 M ERFERKL
B

4 Overseas: Clinical Practice Guideline and Updates on
Using Adjuvant Bisphosphonates and Other Bone-
Modifying Agents in Breast Cancer by American Society
of Clinical Oncology (“ASCO") and Ontario Health
(Cancer Care Ontario [CCO]). The 2022 Update of
Guideline was published in Journal of Clinical Oncology
(JCO, the official journal of ASCO with Impact Factor of
50.7) in March 2022.

Product Development

In recent years, we started the development of a number of pipeline drug
candidates through in-licensing model. We acquire licenses and get involved in the
product development process from various stages, ranging from Investigational
New Drug (“IND") filing for some of our early-stage pipeline products, to pivotal
clinical trials for some of our late-stage pipeline products.

Our product development process is carried out through the joint efforts of
the Business Development, Research & Development, and Regulatory Affair
teams. The teams actively seek to develop products focusing on targeted
therapies, immunotherapy and enhanced chemotherapy options with first/best-
in-class potential. During 2022, our product development teams consisted of
approximately 110 members.
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In order to enhance product development capabilities, in June 2022, the Company
appointed Dr. Mao Li as the Vice President, General Manager of Research
and Development (“R&D") and Chief Medical Officer. Dr. Mao is a worldwide
prominent physician-scientist in upper aerodigestive tract malignancies, with
more than 35 years of extensive experience in clinical practice, clinical and basic
research, and leadership in the field of oncology both in the U.S. and China. He
has chaired for the Group’s Drug Development Committee to support product
development.

Our efforts in product development have yielded a pipeline of potential drug
candidates in different stages of development spanning our key therapeutic
areas and also high-value/high-growth sectors: oncology and severe infection.
As of the date of this Annual Report, we have built a portfolio of 9 pipeline drug
candidates, 5 of which are in phase Ill or later stages overseas with a fast-to-
market strategy in China, and 4 are in earlier stages from pre-clinical to phase Il
clinical trials overseas or in China.

The following table summarizes the mechanism of action, indication(s)/clinical
adoptions, and development status of our pipeline assets as of the date of this
Annual Report.

BEBHNEN
ERER EREE BREEBRER BEBH 0RO R A E RO
Mechanism of Indication(s)/ Partner’s
Product Name Action Clinical Adoptions Partner Overseas Status China Status
®E:
Late stage:
Vibativ HRMERMIBE  HABP/VABPEMMEE  Cumberland B BRRRARALLEN2021
MEEREGIE REEEERR Pharmaceuticals F9H 12 ZTNDA
(%8)
Vibativ Dual antibacterial HABP/VABP complicated ~ Cumberland Marketed Obtained clinical trial waiver
activity on cell wall ~ skin and skin structure Pharmaceuticals and submitted NDA in
and cell membrane infections (US) September 2021
Vaboreme® WEBMBE+B—A Ul clAl - HABP EFMEEEHE B 2022512 AR R BETEM
CIFREREEERECH) BREDE VABP % f Ml fE (BAF) TR% MR ZINDEE ¢ 722023

Vaborem®
(Meropenem+Vaborbactam)

Carbapenem +
-lactamase
inhibitor

cUTI, clAl, HABP, VABP

and Bacteremia

Menarini Group Marketed

(Italy)

FIAEUSINDH#E &

Submitted IND application for
registration study in China in
December 2022; obtained IND
approval in March 2023
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BEBHNEN
ERER EREE BREEGRER BEBH 0 R A E Y ROR
Mechanism of Indication(s)/ Partner’s
Product Name Action Clinical Adoptions Partner Overseas Status China Status
DANYELZA® (BB FEZ EH) #[mG6D2 BEMESARE Y-mAbs R2020F11A DA ERERRZETHAERL:
Therapeutics, Inc. B3 BLA RORFNAEBEREER
(%E) HIBLASL  H2021F 978 1R
PR ZBLAK2023F1 AR &
B R ABLA
DANYELZA® (naxitamab) Targeting GD2 High risk neuroblastoma ~ Y-mAbs Obtained BLA from  Held pilot launch in Bo'Ao
Therapeutics, Inc. ~ FDA in November and Tianjin; BLA approved by
(U.S) 2020 the NMPA in December 2022;
submitted BLA in Macau and
Hong Kong in September 2021
and January 2023, respectively
7 P % B 41 ] GM-CSF it FEETZEIRT R02F6AEBEREER
AFUERREERR B () IND#t /&
ARERREEARE
2% (031 %)
Naxitamab and GM-CSF US Phase Il trial on-  Obtained IND approval from
in combination with IT going the NMPA in June 2022
in patients with high-
risk neuroblastoma (Study
203)
BER-_BEAE EEETERIRA EHEIIND
Relapsed second-line US Phase Il trial on-  In preparation of IND
osteosarcoma going submission
Omburtamab BEB-HIREME NS/ WESHBEHE  Y-mAbs R2021F4RMBUN  —
KEER Therapeutics, Inc.  EREERFRER £
(@) EDEES
Omburtamab Targeting B7-H3- CNS/leptomeningeal Y-mAbs Submitted marketing —
expressing cells metastasis from Therapeutics, Inc.  authorization
neuroblastoma (U.S) application to the
Europe Medicines
Agency in April 2021
RRx-001 MycHl # Bl kCD47- /RN & EpicentRx, Inc. EEETXENS  R202577  PEEHIEE
SIRPa 3 3 14 71 B (&) L EZH R ESCLCN AR R
TR 4a B
RRx-001 Myc inhibitor and Small cell lung cancer EpicentRx, Inc. US Phase Ill trial on- In July 2022, the first patient in

antagonist of CD47-

SIRPa pathway

(US.)

going

China has been dosed in Phase
Il study of 3rd line and beyond
SCLC

HEBRE ERMERIBGF —
JHE)

Colorectal cancer US Phase Il —
(+irinotecan)
completed

16
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BEBHMEN
ERER EREE BREE/BRER BEBH 0k R A E B ROR
Mechanism of Indication(s)/ Partner’s
Product Name Action Clinical Adoptions Partner Overseas Status China Status
R
Early stage:
PEN-866 HSPOO-SN38M A B EEE Tarveda FEETEHISHE RONFAEBYEE—/=
B Therapeutics TR 2B A IND AL
(8)
PEN-866 Mini-conjugate of Solid tumors Tarveda US Phase Il basket Obtained IND approval for
HSP90-SN38 Therapeutics (U.S.)  trial On-going Phase I/1l'in lung cancer in June
2022
HSP90-PI3K SMDC HSPOO-P3KH AL EREAE R R AT HNETREBRENEL
B
HSP90-PI3K SMDC Mini-conjugate of Solid tumors Pre-clinical Spared efforts in lead
HSP90-PI3K conjugate optimization
PT-112 2HkaY % 28 A0 51 B 7 Phosplatin EERETXBIHE BExmafiss
Therapeutics L]
(%8)
PT-112 Platinum-containing  Late stage prostate Phosplatin US Phase Il trial on-  Completed Phase 2a trial
compounds cancer Therapeutics (U.S.)  going
+&EAEME)
Cholangiocarcinoma US Phase | trial
(+gemicitabine)
completed
ABTL-0812 AKUMTORMISIE  FERE/B5/BRE  AbilityPharma  EEETEBENIHA BEFIND
(FIT) L]
ABTL-0812 Akt/mTOR inhibitor ~ Endometrial/lung Ability Pharma EU Phase Il on-going ~ Obtained IND
/pancreatic cancer (Spain)

1) FEUEUNEREE®H:
. Vaborem® (% 51 /i % & 15 12
1# B #8)([Vaborem) : %2022
F8H A~ @A B A Menarini
Asia-Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. (3
MEREEHIZHMERIETRA])
RIMFFAI A EHh®  BEARE
1B ¥ It AT 35 49 2 JE B2 Melinta
Therapeutics #) 48 5 ] 13 &% 7 #
Bl %8 5 B 2 & 7 25 {k Vaborem -

1) Key pipeline milestones:

Vaborem® (Meropenem+Vaborbactam) (“Vaborem”): In August
2022, the Company and A. Menarini Asia-Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd.,
part of The Menarini Group (“Menarini”), entered into a license and
collaboration agreement granting the Group the exclusive right to
develop and commercialize Vaborem in China under Menarini’s head
license agreement with Melinta Therapeutics.
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Vaborem is a fixed dose combination of a carbapenem and a
novel boronic acid B-lactamase inhibitor of class A and class C
serine (-lactamases, which was specifically developed to inhibit
carbapenem-resistant enterobacterales (“CRE”), including Klebsiella
pneumoniae carbapenemase (“KPC")-producing bacteria, one of the
most common types of CRE.

CRE has become a public health threat worldwide, which the
World Health Organization (the “WHO") has listed as one of the
three critical pathogens in need of new antimicrobial options. The
incidence of CR-KP infections is rising fast in China over the last
10 years according to CHINET. Rates of mortality in patients with
invasive infections caused by CRE have been reported high but
antimicrobial agents with activity against CRE are few in number
and often associated with significant toxicities and/or suboptimal
pharmacokinetic parameters. Vaborem is listed in the WHO Model
List of the Essential Medicines and has been defined as an innovative
antibiotic by the WHO among various recent developed drugs for the
treatment of multi-drug resistant Gramnegative bacterial infections.

Vaborem has been granted marketing authorisations in the U.S.
and the European Union, among other countries, for adults with
complicated urinary tract infections (“cUTI”) including acute
pyelonephritis. In select territories, it has also been approved for the
treatment of complicated intra-abdominal infections (“clAl”) and
HABP/VABP. Once approved in China, Vaborem will meet significant
unmet medical needs in the country.

The Company submitted the IND application for Vaborem to the
China National Medical Products Administration (the “NMPA") in
December 2022, only three months after it was in-licensed. This
IND application consists of a Phase Il clinical study to evaluate
the efficacy and safety of Vaborem in Chinese patients with cUTI
including pyelonephritis, as well as a pharmacokinetic study in
healthy volunteers in China to evaluate the pharmacokinetic profile
of Vaborem. These two clinical studies in China are to bridge foreign
clinical trial data and eventually support the New Drug Application
("NDA") of Vaborem in China.

Milestone expected in 2023

The Company secured IND approval in March 2023 and targets to
complete more than 50% patient enrolment.
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DANYELZA® (naxitamab) (“Danyelza”): Danyelza is the first
humanized, monoclonal antibody targeting GD2, a tumor antigen on
the cell surface of neuroblastoma. In addition to demonstrated clinical
benefits, Danyelza has the advantages of convenient administration
and high patient compliance. It has short infusion time (30-60
minutes), which makes it possible to be administered in outpatient
setting. There is no requirement of pre-treatment with autologous
stem cell transplant or combination with IL-2 (Interleukin-2) therapy
when patients receive Danyelza.

Except for the treatment of patients (one year of age and older, and
adults) with relapsed/refractory high-risk neuroblastoma, our partner
Y-mAbs Therapeutics, Inc. (“Y-mAbs"”) is expanding naxitamab's
indications such as relapsed second-line osteosarcoma (Phase Il trial
on-going).

Milestones in 2022

IND approval: In April and June, 2022, the NMPA accepted and
approved the Company’s IND application of Danyelza and GM-CSF in
combination with irinotecan and temozolomide (“IT"”) in patients with
high-risk neuroblastoma with primary refractory disease or in first
relapse (“STUDY 203"), respectively. STUDY 203 is an international
single-arm, multi-center, Phase Il clinical trial. It will be the first
time that Chinese research centers join and play an important role
in international multi-center clinical study of immunotherapy on
neuroblastoma;
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BLA approval: In December 2022, the NMPA in China has approved
the Biologics License Application (“BLA") of Danyelza for the
treatment, in combination with GM-CSF, of pediatric patients of 1
year of age and older and adult patients with relapsed or refractory
high-risk neuroblastoma in the bone or bone marrow who have
demonstrated a partial response, minor response, or stable disease to
prior therapy (the “Indication”). The NMPA approval of Danyelza will
bring in a new effective therapy option to patients with relapsed or
refractory high risk neuroblastoma in China;

BLA submission: Based on the preparation work done in 2022, the
Company submitted BLA of Danyelza for the Indication in Hong Kong
in January 2023.

Milestones expected in 2023

— Commercial launch in the first half of 2023;

— Initiate patient enrollment of STUDY 203.

RRx-001: In June 2020, we in-licensed RRx-001 from EpicentRx,
Inc. ("EpicentRx"). RRx-001, which was initially identified and
sourced from the aerospace industry and has been developed by
EpicentRx as a novel first-in-class therapy. RRx-001 is a well-tolerated
next generation small molecule immunotherapeutic treating solid
tumors. It has the potential to convert platinum-resistant tumors into
platinum sensitive tumors and may have wide clinical adoptions as
monotherapy or in combination with chemotherapy, immunotherapy,
radiation and targeted agents.
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Milestones in 2022

In September 2022, the first patient has been successfully dosed in
China in the Phase Ill clinical study (the “"REPLATINUM") of RRx-001
for the third line and beyond small cell lung cancer (“SCLC"). The
REPLATINUM, a controlled, open-label, randomized Phase Ill study,
is conducted simultaneously in China and the U.S.. The REPLATINUM
will evaluate the efficacy and safety of RRx-001 administered
sequentially with platinum doublet for the third line and beyond SCLC
by comparing to platinum doublet alone.

RRx-001 is globally the only small molecule CD47 targeted drug
that has entered phase Il clinical trials in the field of solid tumor
treatment.

Milestones expected in 2023

Conduct interim analysis of REPLATINUM in 2023.

The Company cannot guarantee that it will be able to develop, or
ultimately market, any of the products in its pipeline successfully.
Shareholders and potential investors of the Company are advised to
exercise due care when dealing in the Shares of the Company.

2) Establishment of strategic cooperation with research
organizations

Except for the close collaborations with our partners, we also established
cooperation with external research organizations to enhance our
research and development capabilities. In January 2022, we entered
into the cooperation with China Pharmaceutical University to set up a
joint laboratory, which will be a long-term platform for research and
development and talent training for both parties.
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Impacts of Significant Policies with Respect to
Pharmaceutical Industry

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this Annual Report, a number

of reform policies were issued in China pharmaceutical industry, and the volume-

based procurement (“VBP") remained the most influential one for the operation

of pharmaceutical companies.

v

Zometa

On January 21, 2022, National Joint Procurement Office released drug
list for the seventh batch of VBP. Zoledronic Acid, the compound for
our product Zometa, was on the list. In July 2022, we participated in
the seventh batch of VBP for Zoledronic Acid injection with Zometa but
Zometa did not win the bid. The bid was won by six generic Zoledronic
Acid injections, produced by China Resources Double Crane Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, Sichuan Hairong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. of Yangtze
River Pharmaceutical Group, Ren He Yi Kang Group, Sichuan Kelun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., CSPC NBP Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Qilu
Pharmaceutical, respectively. As a result, such six bid-winning generic
Zoledronic Acid injection will be procured by public hospitals and other
public medical institutions with priority, enabling them to increase their
market share. However, Zometa can still be prescribed by doctors at public
hospitals and other public medical institutions for patients in compliance
with relevant prescription regulations, or be purchased at pharmacies. The
result of seventh batch of VBP became effective since November 2022.

We believe that our overall business, results of operations and financial
conditions will not be materially affected by the exclusion of Zometa in the
seventh batch of VBP:

1) Currently Zometa's market share is not high in China’s bone
metastasis market. Zometa lost the bid but can still be prescribed by
doctors at public hospitals and other public medical institutions for
patients in compliance with relevant prescription regulations and we
consider the room is sufficient for Zometa to continue to grow;

2) We have identified new areas of development for Zometa such as
bone health management in patients with early breast cancer, which
is supported by clinical studies of Zometa and paid by patients’ own
pockets or covered by private medical insurance;
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3) We have been developing our project of Outpatient Infusion
Centers since Q1 2021 and completed the establishment in key
cities as of June 2022. We have also been incorporating Zometa
into our GTP model such as promoting digital portal Healthy Bone
Alliance (“Z= B H B ") for Zometa and consolidating drug purchase,
delivery, commercial insurance and other services such as infusion
appointments into Hi-Doctor platform to enhance patient access
of Zometa outside hospitals and provide value-added services to
patients. We will apply our commercialization expertise through GTP
model and life-cycle management to drive continuous growth of
Zometa.

OUTLOOK

After a turbulent 2022, calmer water lies ahead in 2023 for recovery and
development, especially China’s reopening may temper a possible global
recession. With headwind of demographics, economy will depend more on
productivity growth and we will continue to align our development strategy with
the government’s aims of building a more innovative and productive economy.

Top priorities in 2023:

1) Continue to consolidate patients, physicians and pharmacies onto the
Hi-Doctor Platform to complete the closed-cycle of “internet hospital-
prescription-DTP pharmacies-delivery” and increase GTP contribution for
Zometa;

2) Drive clinical evidence analysis and publication on Zadaxin in infectious
diseases, including adjuvant for vaccines (such as the COVID-19 vaccine) in
the U.S., and expand therapy indications in oncology through combination
therapy with PD-1/PDL1;

3) Advocate clinical adoption in adjuvant setting for early breast cancer and
leverage the new treatment guidelines to promote Zometa;

4) Commercial launch Danyelza and expand insurance coverage to address
patient affordability;

5) Enhance more in-depth and extensive cooperation with partners, including
collaboration with Pfizer and Baxter;
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Complete more than 50% patient enrolment for Vaborem registration study
in China;

Initiate patient enrollment of STUDY 203 of Danyelza;

Conduct interim analysis of REPLATINUM for RRx-001 in 2023;

License-in innovative assets in oncology and severe infection to fulfill unmet
medical needs in China;

Hire key director-level positions of clinical operations, project management
and business development;
Build clinical development capability through multiple global studies;

Actively search for potential acquisition targets.
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BEZ12A3MBLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR AR
BET %* BETT %*

RMB million %* RMB million %*
A Revenue 2,749.7 100.0 2,518.5 100.0
NN Cost of revenue (679.2) (24.7) (585.5) (23.2)
EF Gross profit 2,070.5 75.3 1,933.0 76.8
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses (627.7) (22.8) (579.2) (23.0)
1T B X Administrative expenses (225.0) (8.2) (206.4) (8.2)
ot 3% X2 R&D expenses (123.9) (4.5) (134.4) (5.3)
RN Other income 12.1 0.4 42.8 1.7
HEmAZ Other expenses — — (16.8) 0.7)
Hith (E518) W 558 Other (losses)/gains — net (155.4) (5.7) 19.1 0.8
RE R Operating profit 950.6 34.6 1,058.1 42.0
B & A Finance income 36.1 1.3 8.0 0.3
Bl & KA Finance costs (46.6) (1.7) (40.2) (1.6)
Bl & Bk AN F R Finance costs, net (10.5) (0.4) (32.3) (1.3)
Fir 18 B AU FI 8 Profit before income tax 940.1 34.2 1,025.9 40.7
FTigfi A& Income tax expenses (84.7) (3.1) (102.5) (4.0)
AAEEBAEBEERNFE Profit for the year attributable to

the owner of the Company 855.4 31.1 923.4 36.7
Y HARKE - BT EKLB100% *  Number may not add up to 100% due to rounding
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WA Revenue
BZE12AMBLEEE
Year ended December 31,
2022%F 20214F
2022 2021
AR% AR
BETT % BETT %
RMB million %  RMB million %
BEEEM Proprietary product 2,168.3 78.9 1,978.0 78.5
HES|IANEm In-licensed products 222.5 8.1 183.3 7.3
REBAEBHEERE Promotion products for business
Em partners 358.9 13.0 357.2 14.2
&t Total 2,749.7 100.0 2,518.5 100.0

HZE2022F12A318LFE - AFBEE T
MECOVID- 19 HI it R 1B 5 BE 28
Rt R BMNEREEXIE -
AR PR ADERENHARE2,749.7
BEIL REFHRENI2% - BULARA(G)
BEE@BEM: (NVEESIAE D KGR
PRAXBEERHHEEREREER

BB Em
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, our sales of products were affected
by reduction of patients’ hospital visits due to COVID-19 control measures
and outbreaks in certain cities of China. However, our revenue still grew to
approximately RMB2,749.7 million, up by approximately 9.2% over last year. The
total revenue was generated by (i) our proprietary product, Zadaxin; (ii) our in-
licensed products; and (iii) promotion products on behalf of our business partners
in China.

Proprietary product

Revenue from sales of Zadaxin increased by RMB190.3 million, or 9.6% from
RMB1,978.0 million last year to RMB2,168.3 million in 2022.

The expansion of clinical adoptions through life cycle management, the increased
recognition of clinical benefits from physicians and patients, and the upgrade of
our online healthcare service through GTP model, fueled the continuous growth
of Zadaxin.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Zadaxin is our proprietary product. We developed Zadaxin in 1990s and obtained
the approval for its sales in China in 1996. As the first branded thymalfasin drug
in China, Zadaxin possesses the advantage of its strong brand recognition and
product loyalty from the doctors and target patients, the majority of whom are
self-paying or covered by private medical insurance. We generate revenue of
Zadaxin primarily through the sales to our exclusive importer and distributor in
China. In compliance with the “two-invoice system”, after our sales of Zadaxin
to the exclusive importer, it clears the products through customs of China as an
imported drug and distributes further to hospitals and pharmacies. In November
2021, the Company entered into an import and distribution agreement to engage
Shanghai Pharmaceutical Lin-gang Special Area Co., Ltd., one of our non-
substantial shareholders, as our exclusive importer and distributor of Zadaxin in
China. For Zadaxin's overseas sales, such as in South Korea, Thailand, Argentina,
Italy and Cambodia, we primarily rely on overseas partners to handle marketing,
promotion, sales and distribution.

In-licensed products

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our revenue of in-licensed products grew
to RMB222.5 million from RMB183.3 million last year. The increase was primarily
contributed by Zometa and Danyelza:

1) Zometa

We generated product revenue from Zometa of RMB184.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022, compared with RMB169.8 million last year.

Zometa is our in-licensed product from Novartis indicated for the treatment
of patients with multiple myeloma and patients with documented bone
metastases from solid tumors, and hypercalcemia of malignancy.

We import and distribute Zometa through our wholly-owned subsidiary
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.. We recognize revenue of the
sales of Zometa to our distributors through the distribution network we
manage.
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2)  Danyelza

Danyelza contributed approximately RMB30.5 million revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

In December 2020, we in-licensed Danyelza from Y-mAbs. In order to
accelerate provision of this innovative therapy to pediatric patients in China
prior to the BLA approval by the NMPA, the Company had pilot launch
of Danyelza in Hainan Bo'Ao Lecheng International Medical Tourism Pilot
Zone and China (Tianjin) Pilot Free Trade Zone in June and December 2021,
respectively.

In October 2021, Danyelza was included in the list of overseas special drugs
of Jing Hui Bao (& Z{R). Jing Hui Bao provides a supplement coverage to
basic medical insurance for serious diseases in Beijing. Subsequent to the
Reporting Period and as of the date of this Annual Report, Danyelza was
further included in the list of special drugs of Long Hui Bao (&= 1R) (Gansu
Province (excluding Lanzhou area)) and Wan Hui Bao (#t 2 {R) (in Anhui
Province) which are insurances similar to Jing Hui Bao. The inclusions further
improved the accessibility of this innovative drug to patients in China.

Besides selling to Hainan and Tianjin, in January 2022, Danyelza started to
generate revenue from Taiwan based on local special import policy.

Promotion products for business partners

Revenue from sales of promotion products for business partners was RMB358.9
million, approximately flat compared with the last year's RMB357.2 million due to
COVID-19 impact in 2022. Our promotion products for business partners include
Farlutal, Methotrexate, and Estracyt, which we promote and sell for Pfizer, and
Holoxan, Mesna and Endoxan, which we promote and sell for Baxter.

Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue increased by 16.0% to RMB679.2 million in 2022 from
RMB585.5 million for last year.

The increase of cost of revenue was mainly attributable to: i) the rise of product
costs followed the growth of sales of Zadaxin and Zometa; ii) the increase of
freight costs mainly due to the shipping disruption by war in Ukraine as well as
the hike of fuel prices; and iii) the increase of amortization of intangible assets
was resulted from commercial or pilot launch of our in-licensed products.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

We manufacture our proprietary product, Zadaxin, through Patheon lItalia, an
industry-leading and highly reputable CMO. We outsourced the production of in-
licensed products to our partners, including Novartis for Zometa, Vectan Pharm
for Oravig and Y-mAbs for Danyelza under the Supply Agreement with them. Our
production quality management standards remain complied with GMP in various
markets where we have operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, despite the international supply chain
disruption and global inflation pressure, we managed well with our overseas
CMQO, partners and logistics companies to make sure stable and healthy supply
for demands in China and other countries while minimizing the impact from rising
freight cost.

The following table sets forth our cost of revenue by amount, as a percentage
of total cost of revenue and as a percentage of total revenues for the periods
indicated:

BZ1N2AMBLEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214F
2022 2021

AR A AR G A

BB % Aok BETT % B

RMB % of RMB % of

million % Revenue million % Revenue

= m K AR Product costs 446.2 65.7 16.2 416.6 71.2 16.5

Amortization of intangible

B EERE assets 99.7 14.7 3.6 74.0 12.6 2.9
BEKAK Freight costs 72.4 10.7 2.6 37.8 6.5 1.5
B R Warehouse costs 12.9 1.9 0.5 17.9 3.1 0.7
HAh, Others 48.0 7.0 1.8 39.2 6.6 1.6
&% Total 679.2 100.0 24.7 585.5 100.0 23.2
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Gross Profit

Our gross profit increased by RMB137.5 million, or 7.1%, to RMB2,070.5 million
in 2022 from RMB1,933.0 million for last year, and our gross margin decreased by
1.5ppt to 75.3% in 2022 from 76.8% for last year, which was primarily affected
by cost increase as presented above.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses increased by RMB48.5 million or 8.4% to
RMB627.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 from RMB579.2 million
last year, which was mainly due to the net effects of: 1) the rise of employee
salaries and sales incentive bonus in total amounting to RMB70.7 million or 22.1%
along with the expansion of our sales and marketing team and sales growth;
2) the decline of marketing and promotion expenses and travel and meeting
expenses by RMB14.7 million and RMB13.3 million, respectively during 2022 when
business promotion activities were interrupted by the new waves of COVID-19
outbreak in certain cities.

The ratio of selling and marketing expenses to total revenue slightly decreased by
0.2 ppt to 22.8% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 9.0% to RMB225.0 million in 2022
from RMB206.4 million last year, which was primarily attributable to the addition
of impairment loss of RMB42.3 million against the related intangible assets
considering the uncertainty of their further developments, offset by the reduction
of employee benefits by RMB18.8 million as the share-based compensation
expenses of Pre-IPO Share Option were absorbed in the downtrend based on the
cost recognition.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses decreased by 7.8% to RMB123.9
million in 2022 from RMB134.4 million last year, which was due to the delay and
suspension on some testing and clinical trials during 2022 when the new waves
of COVID-19 outbreak happened in certain cities in China.

Other Income and Other Expenses

After we completed the conversion of distributor of Zometa in all provinces from
Novartis to the Company in the second half of 2021, we recognized all sales of
Zometa in product revenue and recorded its amortization in the cost of revenue,
which resulted in reduction of other income and other expenses.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Other (Losses)/Gains, Net

Other (Losses)/Gains mainly included the following items:

) The change in fair value loss of an investment: we invested in a biotech
company of RMB80.5 million. The investee went into insolvency procedures
due to the refinancing difficulties in the globally industry market sell-off,
valuation plunge and deals suspension. After the cautious assessment, we
recorded fair value loss of RMB80.5 million of this investment;

ii) Foreign exchange loss: we had net foreign exchange loss of RMB85.3
million in 2022, compared to net exchange gain of RMB14.9 million last
year. The exchange loss was primarily resulted from the translation of RMB
monetary assets into USD functional currency in a subsidiary when USD
appreciating against RMB in 2022.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, our operating profit was RMB950.6 million in 2022,
compared to RMB1,058.1 million last year.

Finance Costs, Net

We had net finance costs of RMB10.5 million in 2022, compared to a net finance
costs of RMB32.2 million last year, primarily due to the increase of finance income
along with the higher interest rates and larger cash pool. Interest rate of bank
borrowings also increased but we have repaid certain principals in November
2021 and November 2022 according to the repayment schedule.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expense decreased to RMB84.7 million in 2022 from RMB102.5
million last year, which was primarily due to our profit before income tax decrease
during the year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year was RMB855.4 million in
2022, compared to the profit of RMB923.4 million last year.
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Excluding the effects of change in fair value loss of RMB80.5 million of an
investment and full impairment loss of RMB99.5 million against the related
intangible assets considering the uncertainty of their further developments, core
net profit from normal business operation for the year ended December 31, 2022
was increased by 5.6% to RMB1,035.4 million. The growth rate of core net profit
was dragged down by the unrealized exchange loss arising from the translation
of RMB monetary assets into USD functional currency in a subsidiary when USD
appreciating against RMB in 2022.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Structure

The Company continued to maintain a healthy and sound financial position.
Our total assets grew to RMB4,320.4 million as of December 31, 2022 from
RMB4,062.7 million as of December 31, 2021, whilst our total liabilities decreased
to RMB1,328.2 million as of December 31, 2022 from RMB1,745.3 million as of
December 31, 2021.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, and Gearing

We have historically funded our cash requirements principally from cash generated
from operations, and to a lesser extent, equity and debt financing. We adopt
prudent treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better
risk control and minimize cost of funds, our treasury activities are centralized.
Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in RMB. Our
liquidity and financing requirements are reviewed regularly. We will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing in anticipation of new
investments or maturity of bank loans.

As of December 31, 2022, we had cash and cash equivalents and cash deposits
(from 3 to 12 months or in floating rates) together of RMB2,639.9 million, which
were predominantly denominated in RMB. Going forward, we believe that our
liquidity requirements will be satisfied by using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities, the net proceeds received from the global offering
of the Company and other funds raised from the capital markets from time to
time. For the year ended December 31, 2022, our operating cash flow reached
approximately RMB1,183.6 million, approximately RMB154.1 million or 15.0%
higher than that of year ended December 31, 2021.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

As of December 31, 2022, we had no unutilized banking facilities. Our total
borrowings were approximately RMB832.6 million as of December 31, 2022, all of
which was denominated in USD. The following table sets forth further details of
our banking borrowings as of December 31, 2022:
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RMB million Interest rate

Secured

RBRTREERS
£3%2.3%
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As of December 31, 2022, we had a gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets)
of 30.7% (43.0% as of December 31, 2021).

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2022, we did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for purchases of
property and equipment relating to office use and purchase of intangible assets.
Our capital expenditures changed to RMB196.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 from RMB190.8 million for the last year. We plan to fund our
planned capital expenditures using cash generated from operations and the net
proceeds from the global offering of the Company.

Material Acquisitions and Future Plans for Major
Investments

The Company did not conduct any material acquisition or investment during the
year ended December 31, 2022.
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Significant Investments Held

The Group continues to give regard to prudent capital management and liquidity
risk management in its investment strategy, and follow stringent procedures
to evaluate and approve investment projects. To decide whether to invest in
certain acquisition and investment projects, the Company will mainly consider the
assessment of the strategic impact and net present value of the project. As of
December 31, 2022, the Group held 531,438 shares in Zentalis Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. (NASDAQ: ZNTL, the “Zentalis”) (the “Investment”), representing
approximately 1.3% of the issued and outstanding shares of Zentalis according
to the public information. Zentalis is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company
focusing on discovering and developing small molecule therapeutics targeting
fundamental biological pathways of cancers. The Group made the investment in
December 2014 with the investment cost as the nominal value of these shares
and Zentalis became listed on NASDAQ in April 2020. As of December 31, 2022,
the fair value of the Investment was approximately RMB74.5 million, representing
approximately 1.7% of the total asset of the Group (December 31, 2021: 7.0%).
The Group did not receive any dividend from Zentalis during the year of 2022.
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold any significant investments for
the year ended December 31, 2022.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our subsidiaries operate in Cayman Islands, Mainland China and Hong Kong,
and they are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposure,
primarily with respect to RMB. Foreign exchange risk primarily arises from
recognized assets and liabilities in our subsidiaries in Cayman Islands when
receiving or to receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign
currencies to business partners. We manage foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of our foreign exchange exposures and try to minimize these
exposures through natural hedges, wherever possible, and may enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts, when necessary. We did not enter into any forward
contract or other financial instruments to hedge our exposure to foreign currency
risk in 2022.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2022, we had approximately 990 full-time employees, most
of whom were based in Mainland China, with the remainder in Hong Kong,
Singapore, the U.S., Italy, and the Cayman Islands.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Committed to establishing a competitive, fair remuneration and benefits system,
we continually refine our remuneration and incentive policies in order to ensure
that our employees receive competitive remuneration packages. As required
under the PRC regulations, we participate in housing fund and various employee
social security plan that are organized by applicable local municipal and provincial
governments. We also purchase commercial health and accidental insurance
for our employees. We also provide regular and specialized trainings tailored
to the needs of our employees in different departments, so that our employees
may stay up to date with the latest industrial developments and technological
advancements. In order to incentivize our employees, we have granted and
planned to continue to grant share-based incentive awards to our employees in
the future to incentivize their contributions to our growth and development.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On January 6, 2023, the Board announced that a conditional cash offer would
be made by Somerley on behalf of the Company to buy-back for cancellation
up to 77,534,791 Shares at HK$10.06 per Share (the “Offer”). After evaluating
the Company’s cash position and near term cash utilization options, the Board
believed that making the Offer was the best use of the Company’s cash and was
in the best interest of the Shareholders as a whole to enhance the earnings per
Share and reduce the cost of capital of the Company upon completion of the
Offer and cancellation of the Shares bought back.

On February 15, 2023, an Extraordinary General Meeting was convened and
approved the Offer has become unconditional. On March 1, 2023, the Offer was
completed and the Company in total bought back 77,534,791 Shares at HK$10.06
per Share. The buy-back Shares through the Offer have been cancelled on March
10, 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events that have occurred after
the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Zhao Hong (# %), aged 59, is our executive Director, chief executive officer
and president. He is a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhao has more than 30 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a lecturer of Nanjing Medical
University (F R 2R AZ) from July 1986 to September 1992, and served in
Xian Janssen Pharmaceutical Ltd. (BB &5 AR & & B R 2 &) from December
1992 to July 1995, a regional sales manager, national sales director and senior
vice president of Beijing Novartis Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (It R ER B HF R D
Al) from July 1995 to February 2011, and an executive vice president of Simcere
Pharmaceutical Group (st % &% % £ &) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr.
Zhao joined SciClone US in April 2013 and served as its CEO (China Operations),
in charge of its operations in China before the incorporation of the Company.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’s degree in clinical medicine from Nanjing Medical
University (F m B &K Z) (formerly known as Nanjing Medical College (F R
B Z[T)) in July 1986, in Jiangsu province, the PRC. He obtained his Executive
Master of Business Administration (“EMBA") from China Europe International
Business School (41 BB R TG £ Ft) in April 2002, in Shanghai, the PRC.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenfu, aged 59, is our non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Li is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Li is the founder of GL Capital Group ({##& & 7<), one of our substantial
Shareholders, and has served as its president and chief executive officer since
February 2010. Prior to founding GL Capital Group, Mr. Li served as the China
president of Novartis Overseas Investment AG Beijing Representative Office from
June 2004 to January 2010.

Mr. Li also has served as a director of The Nature Conservancy (X B AR ##H&)
since September 2009, a director of China Entrepreneur Club (FF B (b 2 SR (B 4%
#B) since April 2009, and a vice executive president of Pharmaceutical Chamber
of Commerce of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (F 2 T
Tt B8 BE P9 €) since December 2010.

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’s degree in materials science from Beihang University
(A =R ZE A K KE) in July 1986, in Beijing, the PRC, and his master’s degree in
metallurgical engineering from lllinois Institute of Technology in December 1988,
in Chicago, the U.S.
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Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella, aged 69, is our non-executive Director. Dr. Vasella
has over 40 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical industry. Prior
to joining our Group, from December 1996 to February 2010, Dr. Vasella was
chief executive officer and from February 1999 to February 2013, he served as the
chairman of the board of Novartis International AG (New York Stock Exchange:
NVS and Six Swiss Exchange: NOVN). Dr. Vasella served as a director of XBiotech
Inc. (NASDAQ: XBIT) from November 2014 to January 2018.

Dr. Vasella has served as an independent non-executive director of PepsiCo, Inc.
(NASDAQ: PEP) since February 2002 and an independent non-executive director
of American Express Company (New York Stock Exchange: AXP) since July 2012.
Dr. Vasella was appointed as Economic Advisor to Governor of Guangdong
Province, the PRC by the governor of Guangdong Province, the PRC in November
2003. He also served as chairman of the International Business Leaders’ Advisory
Council for the Mayor of Shanghai (IBLAC) in 2004 and 2005.

Dr. Vasella obtained the FMH Specialty certification in internal medicine in
November 1985; he pursued his psychodynamic and psychotherapy training at the
University of Bern and Freud-Institut Zirich from September 1978 to May 1988,
the Program of Management Development certification from Harvard Business
School in December 1989; the certified coach qualification from Der Deutsche
Bundesverband Coaching (DBVC) in Germany in June 2014; and the certified
coach qualification from “The Leadership Circle” in September 2016.

Dr. Vasella received Ordem Cruzeiro do Sul from President of Brazil, in 2000,
Harvard Business School’s Alumni Achievement Award from Harvard Business
School, in October 2003, first international award for responsible capitalism
2003 by the archbishop of canterbury, the most Rev & Rt Hon Dr Rowan Williams
PC FBA in December 2003, was entitled the foreign honorary membership of
American Academy of Arts and Sciences in 2008, and Prix Pasteur from the
Institut Pasteur, in France in 2007. Dr. Vasella was adjudged the winner of Golden
Peacock Leadership Award for Corporate Social Responsibility 2010 by the
chairman of the Golden Peacock Global Awards in September 2010.

Dr. Vasella obtained his Swiss medical diploma from the University of Bern in
December 1979, in Bern, the Switzerland, and his doctor of medicine degree from
the University of Bern in October 1980, in Bern, Switzerland. He also received an
honorary doctorate degree by the University of Basel, Switzerland.
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Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien, aged 40, is our non-executive Director. She is a
member of Audit Committee of the Company. Ms. Lin has extensive experience
in investment and is currently a partner of private equity investment department
of GL Capital, one of our substantial Shareholders. She has been with GL Capital
since August 2011. Ms. Lin has served as an independent director of Center
Laboratories, Inc. (a company listed on the Taipei Exchange, stock code: 4123)
since May 20, 2022.

Ms. Lin obtained her bachelor’s degree in management science and engineering
from Stanford University in June 2004.

Mr. Shi Cen (5 %), aged 47, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Shi has more
than 20 years of experience in the field of investment management. Mr. Shi
joined Ascendent Capital Partners (Asia) Limited (L ZE&A(TZM)BEQF) in
April 2011, and currently serves as a partner. He currently holds directorships in
several companies including an independent non-executive director of IDG Energy
Investment Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 0650) since August 2016, and
a director of BE Education Ltd. (% zEZ B BR A7) since May 2019. Mr. Shi
served as an analyst of Goldman Sachs from November 2000 to May 2003, a vice
president of CCMP Capital Asia Pte Ltd. (formerly known as JP Morgan Partners
Asia) from May 2003 to June 2007, a senior vice president of D. E. Shaw & Co.
from June 2007 to March 2011, and a director of Ningxia Xiajin Dairy Group
Company Limited (2B EE I X EEKRH AR AR from June 2014 to July
2020.

Mr. Shi obtained his bachelor’s degree and master’'s degree, both in economics,
from Tsinghua University (& % K 2) in July 1997 and June 1999, respectively, in
Beijing, the PRC.

Ms. Wang Haixia (£ /8 &), aged 49, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Wang
is currently the deputy chief executive officer of Bank of China Group Investment
Limited (FER £ B R E AR A7, "BOCGI"”), one of our substantial Shareholders.
Prior to joining BOCGI, Ms. Wang held various positions within Bank of China
Limited (% B8R 77 B% 15 & BR 2 7)) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 3988 and
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 601988) since March 1993, including the senior
product manager and deputy general manager of the E-finance Department from
May 2015 to August 2019, and the deputy general manager of Digital Platform
Center of Personal Digital Banking Product Department from August 2019 to
August 2020. Ms. Wang has served as a non-executive director of Phoenix Media
Investment (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2008) since March
2021.

Ms. Wang obtained her bachelor’s degree in marketing from Shandong University
(LB KE) in July 1995 and master’'s degree in business administrative from
Renmin University of China (B A & K£) in March 1999.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen (2| B &), aged 65, is our independent non-executive Director. He
is a member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Liu has served as the
Dean of Peking University Institute for Global Health and Development since 2020
(R KRKB2RMEEEEMERK), a MOH Yangtze River Scholar Professor
of Economics (# B & T2 & FH H¥) at National School of Development
of Peking University (1t 5 K 2 B 5K 2 & #f 2 B) since 2013, and the director of
PKU China Center for Health Economic Research (it & A £ b Bl 87 A4 45 75 B 55
A 0y) since 2006. Dr. Liu has served as an independent non-executive director
of MicroPort Scientific Corporation (#k 8] & & &l 25 R 2 &) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 0853) since September 2010.

Dr. Liu graduated from mathematics, physics and chemistry department of
Southwest Minzu University (78 Fg R ik AZ) in 1982, in Sichuan Province, the
PRC, and obtained his master’s degree in statistics from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (78 @ 87 & X2 ) in 1985, in Sichuan Province, the PRC,
and his doctoral degree in economics from the City University of New York in
1991.

Dr. Chen Ping, aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director. He is
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Chen is the
founder of PharmaResources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ( /@A E B R B E K MHER A
Al) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 301230) and has been serving as its chairman of
the board and the chief executive officer since December 2007. Prior to that, Dr.
Chen once served in Bristol Myers Squibb Company (New York Stock Exchange:
BMY) and was the main inventor of several patents including Dasatini.

Dr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in organic chemistry from Peking
University (3£ = A 2) in April 1982 in Beijing, the PRC, and his doctoral degree in
organic chemistry from Duke University in May 1990 in North Carolina State, the
u.s.
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Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, aged 53, is our independent non-executive Director. He
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Gu has over 27 years of experience
in business administration and corporate management. Mr. Gu serves as a senior
vice president, president of Greater China operations and a member of global
executive committee of Medtronic since January 2018. Prior to that, Mr. Gu once
served as a consultant of McKinsey & Company and a corporate executive of base
resins and the business leader in Asia Pacific of SABIC Innovative Plastics. He also
served as the corporate executive of China of General Electric Company (New
York Stock Exchange: GE) from May 2004 to May 2008, the president in China of
Covidien Healthcare International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (which is currently a
part of Medtronic plc) from September 2009 to January 2015. Mr. Gu then joined
Medtronic plc (New York Stock Exchange: MDT), and served as a vice president,
and the president of Medtronic’s Minimum Invasive Therapy Group (MITG) and
Regional Growth Initiative Group from January 2015 to December 2017.

Mr. Gu obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering and Master of Science
degree in Mississippi State University in December 1991 and December
1993, respectively, in Mississippi State, the U.S., and his Master of Business
Administration (“MBA") from the University of Chicago’s Booth School of
Business in June 2001, in Chicago, the U.S.

Ms. Wendy Hayes, aged 53, is our independent non-executive Director. She is
the chairwoman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Hayes has served as an independent
director of TuSimple Holdings Inc. (NASDAQ: TSP) since December 2022, Grace |l
Biotechnologies Inc. (NASDAQ: GRCL) since January 2021, iHuman Inc. (New York
Stock Exchange: IH) since October 2020, Burning Rock Biotech Limited (NASDAQ:
BNR) since June 2020, and Tuanche Limited (NASDAQ: TC) since November 2018.
Between May 2013 and September 2018, Ms. Hayes served as the inspections
leader at the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in the United States.
Prior to that, Ms. Hayes was an audit partner at Deloitte (China).

Ms. Hayes is a certified public accountant in the United States (California) and
China. Ms. Hayes obtained her certified public accountant license from the
California Board of Accountancy in November 1998.

Ms. Hayes received her bachelor’s degree in international finance from University
of International Business and Economics (¥/4MNEEE S RKE) in June 1991, in
Beijing, the PRC, and her EMBA from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
FII B2 B) in October 2012, in Shanghai, the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For biographical details of Mr. Zhao Hong, who form part of our senior
management team, please refer to “— Directors — Executive Director” in this
section of this Annual Report.

Dr. Mao Li, aged 65, is the vice president, general manager of R&D and
chief medical officer of the Company. Dr. Mao is a worldwide prominent
physician-scientist in upper aerodigestive tract malignancies, with more than
35 years of extensive experience in clinical practice, clinical and basic research,
and leadership in the field of oncology both in China and the U.S.. Dr. Mao has
authored and co-authored more than 200 SCI (Science Citation Index) papers
which have been cited for more than 25,000 times in total. He also holds multiple
patents.

Prior to joining our Group in June 2022, Dr. Mao consecutively held a number of
key senior management positions in several pharmaceutical companies including
Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited (Bl & ¥ & %5 R A7) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 1177), Betta Pharmaceuticals Co, Ltd. (B E & 2 KD AR QX al)
(Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 300558) and Johnson & Johnson Family of Companies.
Before moving into the industry, Dr. Mao served as a tenured professor and
chairman of Department of Oncology and Diagnostic Sciences at University of
Maryland, Baltimore from March 2009 to June 2016. Previously, since June 1995
he had worked in the University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, where
he served as a tenured professor at the Department of Thoracic and Head &
Neck Medical Oncology from September 2004 to March 2009 and a professor
in the Department of Systems Biology from September 2006 to March 2009. Dr.
Mao also has served as an independent director of Legend Biotech Corporation
(NASDAQ: LEGN) since August 2022.

Dr. Mao obtained a Medical Doctor’s degree from Nanjing Medical University
(B R EERIKE) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC, in December 1982. Dr. Mao also
completed a postdoctoral fellowship in cancer genetics at The Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine in the U.S. in June 1995.
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Mr. Shao Peter Chihwen, aged 60, is a vice president of our Company. Mr. Shao
has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining
our Group in February 2012, Mr. Shao worked at several U.S. pharmaceutical
companies, including Noven Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(currently known as Actavis, Inc.), Nektar Therapeutics, Inc. (currently known
as Novartis International AG (New York Stock Exchange: NVS and the Six Swiss
Exchange: NOVN)), Jazz Pharmaceuticals plc (NASDAQ: JAZZ), Kanghong Sagent
(Chengdu) Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited (FESAE & (K &) E AR A A))
(currently known as Segent (China) Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (@ EREER A
A1), Flavine North America, Inc. and Map Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (currently known
as AbbVie Inc. (New York Stock Exchange: ABBV)).

Mr. Shao obtained his bachelor's degree in marine chemistry from Xiamen
University (JEFJAX2) in July 1979 in Fujian Province, the PRC, his master's degree
in analytical chemistry from Florida International University in April 1992 in Florida
State, the U.S., and his MBA degree from San Jose State University in May 2007
in California State, the U.S.

Mr. Wu Mingxiang (R BA %), aged 57, is a vice president of our Company. Mr.
Wu Mingxiang has over 25 years of experience in sales and management in the
medical and pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a
pharmaceutical sales representative and the director of South China region of
Beijing Novartis Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t 5 & ZE & 52 5 R A 7)) from October
1996 to February 2014. Prior to this, Mr. Wu served as a lecturer of Jiangxi
Medical College of Nanchang University (F & K2 T /8 8 27) (formerly known
as Jiangxi Medical College (JT 75 28 £2f3)).

Mr. Wu received his bachelor degree in medicine from Jiangxi Medical College of
Nanchang University (F§ & K2 )T 78 % £ 87) (formerly known as Jiangxi Medical
College (VT 78 % 2 F%)) in June 1990 in Jiangxi Province, the PRC.

Mr. Chang Yansong (¥ & #3), aged 54, is a vice president of our Company
and the vice president and general manager of oncology business unit of our
Company. Mr. Chang has over 27 years of experience of marketing and business
operation in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chang
served as an engineer of Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (3R 1t &4 %%
EE KM BB AR (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000597), formerly known as
Northeast General Pharmaceutical Factory (34t % 2248 8) from July 1991 to
February 1994, a national business manager of Sino-American Shanghai Squibb
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (FE F /B EBEEFR A A]) from May 1995 to
February 2008, and a marketing manager of Medtronic (Shanghai) Management
Co., Ltd. (X H(L8)EE AR AT) from March 2008 to May 2013.

Mr. Chang obtained his bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from Jilin University (&
MR E) in July 1991 in Jilin Province, the PRC, and his EMBA from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (/832 @ K 2) in December 2008 in Shanghai, the PRC.
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Dr. Zhu Lingyu, aged 53, is a vice president and chief business development
officer of the Company. Dr. Zhu has over 25 years of experience of business
development and healthcare investment in overseas and China. Prior to joining
our Group in April 2022, Dr. Zhu held senior management positions in charge
of business development at several U.S. and China pharmaceutical companies,
including Betta Pharmaceuticals Co, Ltd. (B ZE 2 ¥ R % BRAR]) (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 300558), Johnson & Johnson Innovation, Xian Janssen
Pharmaceutical Ltd. (75 % 15 Zx 2L % A R /2 7)), Cerenis Therapeutics SA (currently
known as Abionyx Pharma SA (Euronext Paris: ABNX)), Pfizer Inc. and Esperion
Therapeutics, Inc. (NASDAQ: ESPR).

Dr. Zhu obtained his bachelor’s degree of science from Peaking University (1t 5
A£) in May 1992 in Beijing, the PRC, his doctoral degree in biochemistry from
Ohio State University in Ohio State, the U.S., in April 1997 and his MBA degree
from University of Michigan’s Ross School of Business in Michigan State, the U.S.
in March 2006.

Mr. Jia Min (E#)), aged 51, is a vice president and the head of the immunization
business department of our Company. Mr. Jia has over 25 years of experience
relating to sales and market development in the medical and pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia held several positions with Shanghai
Roche Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (F /&% KZ 2 HF R 2 A]) from April 1996 to April
2010 with his last position serving as a business unit director (business unit head)
of Shanghai Roche Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Mr. Jia served as a marketing director
of Nycomed Pharmaceutical Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Z= 7%} B %8 % %
(E/8)EBR2A7A) from August 2010 to June 2011, and a general manager of
anti-inflammatory, analgesic and rheumatic immunity department in Simcere
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (%t % %% 2 % @) from August 2011 to August 2013. From
August 2013 to March 2017, Mr. Jia served as a deputy general manager and
general manager of business unit of Sunshine Guojian Pharmaceutical (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (Z 4B EZE (L) H AR AR (formerly known as Shanghai CP
Guojian Pharmaceutical Development Co., Ltd., F/BFEEE R EERE R A T),
and a vice president of 3SBio Inc. (= 4 & %%) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 1530).

Mr. Jia was awarded the Gold Award for Excellence of Innovation in Roche
Global Pharmaceuticals 2003 Olympiad Award Competition by the Roche Global
Pharmaceuticals Division in May 2004, and won 2008 Roche Global Pharma CEO
Award for Innovation and Excellence by the Roche Global Pharmaceuticals Division
in December 2008.

Mr. Jia received his MBA from Asia International Open University (Macau) (g
MNCRPY) BB 2B AE) in March 2003, in Macau. Mr. Jia also received his
diploma in management from China Europe International Business School (9
ENEN B T2 Bt) in December 2006 in Shanghai, the PRC, and completed the
Chief Marketing Officer course for senior management from the same school in
October 2015.
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Mr. Wu Lianzong (& ZE R), aged 48, is the vice president of our Company.
Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the regulatory registration in the
pharmaceutical industry in China. Prior to joining our Group, he once served
in Allergan Information Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and the head of China
regulatory affairs of Hospira (China) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (#f 7 & (7
Bl) > %EEE AR LA, from October 2012 to September 2016.

Mr. Wu received his qualification of pharmacist from China Pharmaceutical
Association (FREI 2 ) on July 15, 1998. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor's
degree in medicine from Hebei Medical University (Ja/ 1t & £ KX 22) in June 1998
in Hebei Province, the PRC, and his master’'s degree in medicinal chemistry from
Peking Union Medical College (3t 1% #1 & £ Fz) (whose Chinese name was
formerly known as (71 B 15 1 & £ KX 2) in March 2004 in Beijing, the PRC.

Ms. Pan Rongrong ((B& &), aged 45, is the vice president, chief financial
officer, and joint company secretary of the Company. Prior to joining our Group
in November 2018, Ms. Pan worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs
Limited Company (EZEKERXZEAEHAMBRAAF) from July 2002 to
November 2018 with last position as a partner, and served as an associate of
auditing department of Arthur Andersen LLP (& E{E# RE st E&FT) from
August 2001 to June 2002. Ms. Pan has served as an independent non-executive
Director and chairwoman of the Audit Committee of Yidu Tech Inc. (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange: 2158) (& & £t £ A R 2 7]) since January 2021.

Ms. Pan obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai International
Studies University (/8 #NE 58 K 2) in July 1998 in Shanghai, the PRC, and her
master’s degree in accounting from Fudan University (1€ B X&) in July 2001
in Shanghai, the PRC. She is a member of China Certified Public Accountant

Association.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the senior management of our Company held
any directorship in public companies, the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years immediately
preceding the date of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate governance
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in the
achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to act with probity,
transparency and accountability. By so acting, the Company believes that
Shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term and that its employees,
those with whom it does business and the communities in which it operates will
all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs management
of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that its objectives are
met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing robust corporate
governance practices that are intended to ensure:

—  satisfactory and sustainable returns to Shareholders;

—  that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
and

— that high standards of ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG Code
(including the amendments to the CG Code effective since January 1, 2022)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended December 31, 2022.
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The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility for
its leadership and control and be collectively responsibility for promoting the
Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly reviews
the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them
that are commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The Board
includes a composition of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises ten Directors, consisting of one executive Director,

five non-executive Directors, and four independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors*

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien
Mr. Shi Cen

Ms. Wang Haixia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao
Ms. Wendy Hayes

* Ms. Li Quan resigned as a non-executive director on December 19, 2022 due to
personal work arrangement.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Biographical Information” on pages 36 to 40 of the Annual Report for
the year ended December 31, 2022. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Directors.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board held four meetings in March,
May, August and December, respectively.

A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings and
the general meeting of the Company held for the year ended December 31, 2022
is set out below:

HEER EHBE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BEE83 BRRBEFXE

Annual General

EEHE Name of Directors Board Meeting
RS (TT A8 ) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
Li Zhenfust £ (BEF 2 + &) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) 4/4 171
Daniel Luzius Vasellaid & Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella 4/4 i7Al
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien2Z & Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 4/4 11
FRLZLTO Ms. Li Quan® 3/4 11
AEEE Mr. Shi Cen 4/4 11
FHEEZT Ms. Wang Haixia 4/4 1/1
2B B L Dr. Liu Guoen 4/4 11
Chen Pingt& £ Dr. Chen Ping 4/4 11
Gu Alex Yushao %t & Mr. Gu Alex Yushao 4/4 11
Wendy Hayes % £ Ms. Wendy Hayes 4/4 1/1

LN

(1) TR EHR2022F 128198 EH B A TEZ
B EINITES -

ESEIRERTHAR

AR EEG X RATBARE B A5 B L
Zhenfuft & R E L EBE - EFEER
HEEGRITASY BEABREIERESE
TRRBREIEABADANEBRRREE
EER-REY -

BYEHITES
HE2022FNA3BEEE EE8—HF
EAETRADBEREZAZ L =B LI
HDITES BIYFENTESFTEEESTER
BAS =22 A LEURER—ZBIIEH
TESEEBEENEEETLEGHH
HEVBEEEEROMRT ©

BE

Note:

(1 Ms. Li Quan resigned as a non-executive director on December 19, 2022 due to
personal work arrangement.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Mr. Li Zhenfu and Mr. Zhao Hong respectively. The chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
chief executive officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three

For the year ended December 31,
Independent Non-executive Directors representing more than one-third of the

Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a board independence evaluation mechanism during
the Reporting Period which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness, maximise
strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further development.
The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be
taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance, addressing
individual training and development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the board independence evaluation mechanism, the Board will
conduct annual review on its independence. During the Reporting Period, the
Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the board independence
evaluation mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) of
the Company are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to renewal
after the expiry of the then current term.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings. Under the Articles of Association, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Articles of Association
also provides that the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance
in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions
and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company organized training session
conducted by the Hong Kong legal advisors for all Directors. The training

oo [l ;t:f/iﬂﬁ$ﬁ X BEES session covered a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties and
MBERET RAEBRER - responsibilities, corporate governance and regulations.
B E2022FN2A3MALEFEMNEFHFIL & The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
BRatan T - summarized as follows:
HERBERD
EArgREN -
B BEMA
Attended Internally-
facilitated Briefings
or Training, Seminars,
=3 Directors Reading Materials
HiTEE Executive Director
R S A (7T A ) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) v/
FFHITEF Non-Executive Directors
Li Zhenfue £ (EF &+ /E) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) v/
Daniel Luzius Vasellat®d 4= Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella v/
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 2z = Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien v
AE %k E Mr. Shi Cen v/
FHELZL Ms. Wang Haixia v
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
AHEEL Dr. Liu Guoen v/
Chen Pingt& =+ Dr. Chen Ping v
Gu Alex Yushao %t 4 Mr. Gu Alex Yushao 4
Wendy Hayes 2 &= Ms. Wendy Hayes v

EEZ8g
EESONU=EEEE A

%ﬁ@f@,\aﬁk%iﬁﬁ : Mﬁ*‘%

ﬂ%

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees,

BHEFERE - ARAMBEESFEZESHIR aspects of the Company’s affairs.

E”iﬁﬂ’ﬁ#iﬂaﬂiéﬁﬁﬁij'

ZEBER

namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
All Board committees of the Company are

EFRIARSENERLEBR - EXZEE
%ﬁ@ﬂia@&k%i,\EZH&%%&IE%EEA
AN B A8k R B AT P AR U - 30 AT RE B SRALAR
REH -

FHREEZEGIRAKNENZEHRRY
F2BE[RAIEMIET -
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established with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 2.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Wendy Hayes and
Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, independent non-executive Directors and Ms. Lin Shirley
Yi-Hsien (appointed on December 19, 2022), non-executive Director. Ms. Wendy
Hayes is the chairwoman of the Audit Committee. Ms. Li Quan resigned as a
member of Audit Committee on December 19, 2022.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, scope of audit and appointment
of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee’s major work during the year 2022 included:

° reviewing the 2021 annual report, including the Corporate Governance
Report, the ESG Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements,

as well as the related results announcement;

° reviewing the 2022 interim report and interim results announcement;

° reviewing the dividend policy of the Company;

° reviewing the status of compliance with the CG Code, the Listing Rules and
relevant laws by the Group;

° in relation to the external auditor, reviewing their plans, reports and

management letter, fees, involvement in non-audit services, independence

and their terms of engagement;

° reviewing the internal audit plans, resources and work of the Company’s
internal audit department;

. reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
the system of internal controls in operation, risk management system and
associated procedures within the Group; and

° reviewing the adequacy of resources, qualifications and training of the

Group's finance department.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") is the appointed auditor of the Group. The
Audit Committee annually reviews the relationship between the Company and
PwC. In addition, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of
external audit procedures and the independence and objectiveness of PwC, and
is satisfied with the existence of the good relationship. As a result, the Audit
Committee recommends the reappointment of PwC at the forthcoming AGM.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Audit Committee meetings were
held on March 21 and August 15, 2022, respectively.

ERZEGRELFEENT The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
HERBR SEEE
Attendance/
BERZEEEHERSR Name of Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
Wendy Hayes % + (£ &) Ms. Wendy Hayes (Chairwoman) 2/2
Gu Alex Yushao 5t & Mr. Gu Alex Yushao 2/2
R0 (R20229F12 8198 & 1) Ms. Li Quan® (resigned on December 19, 2022) 2/2
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 2z &= @ Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien@ ~iE A
(7A2022F12 A19H % % 1) (appointed on December 19, 2022) N/A

B 5% - Notes:

(1) TR EN2022F 128198 H B A TE%X
PBTEZZEEKRE -

(2)  Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien%& &+ 2022412 8198 &

ZEREBERZEENE BZEURKE
TBERZEREH -
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(1) Ms. Li Quan resigned as a member of Audit Committee on December 19, 2022 due to
personal work arrangement.

(2) Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on December
19, 2022 and no Audit Committee meeting was held since her appointment.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Zhao Hong,
executive Director, and Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Dr. Chen Ping, independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Gu Alex Yushao is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management according to the authorization of the
Board, making recommendations to the Board in relation to remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management, and the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policy.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Remuneration Committee meeting
was held on March 22, 2022 to:

° review and recommend to the Board in respect of the remuneration policies
and structure of the Company by benchmarking peer companies with a
similar scale;

° assess, review and approve the remuneration packages for the executive
director and senior management;

° review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors;
° review the Company’s share plans and approve the grant of options and

RSUs under the Post-IPO Option Plan and Post-IPO RSU Plan respectively
to the executive director, senior management and other employees of the
Group; and

. review other related matters.

The number of the options under the Post-IPO Option Plan and RSUs under
the Post-IPO RSU Plan granted (the “Grants”) to the executive director, senior
management and other employees of the Group (together as “Grantees”) in
2022 was approved by the Remuneration Committee considering factors including
but not limited to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Grantees, and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group. The Grants recognized the Grantees’ past contributions to the
development of the Group and aligned the interests of Grantees, the Company
and the Shareholders to increase value of our Company.
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FMEZEgREHBEEMNT:

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:
HEBR BHEE
Attendance/
FHEEERESRS Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings
Gu Alex Yushao %t & (F /&) Mr. Gu Alex Yushao (Chairman) 111
R A Mr. Zhao Hong 11
Chen Pingt8 £ Dr. Chen Ping 11

HZE202FNA3MBLFESHRERENIN
SHRFEWNERF 0T

FERA

Annual Income

The remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2022 is set out below:

A

Number of Persons

A E#1,000,000T &

Between RMB1,000,000 to RMB5,000,000

A R #5,000,0007T 6
7 A R #5,000,0007C & Between RMB5,000,000 to RMB10,000,000

A R #10,000,0007¢ 1
i i8 A R #10,000,0007T Over RMB10,000,000 1

BE2022FNANANESTHEFBHANAL
FEHRSHBAERMEI30 °

REZES
REZEGREZECE=-RKE  BlHkH
TTEEL Zhenfulk £ MBI IEHITE = 2
B B 8 + fMWendy HayesZ = ° Li Zhenfu%t
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The remuneration of the directors for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set
out in Note 13(c) to the financial information of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Li Zhenfu,
non-executive Director and Dr. Liu Guoen and Ms. Wendy Hayes, independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Zhenfu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and formulating the policy concerning diversity of Board
member.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.



X

BEESTHNABKREAR  BE
SEERABEMBAENBRLEE
T REFE S TILBLEZ BB IR
CEEBRATREEAEEBGAE

Dy

m
S
A

° ¥ X W 3o
i o

B> R

HZE2022F12A3MBLEFE - RHZEER
2022 3H24R 2 7g % -

REZBEGREHFEEMNT :

REZEEREH ST

Name of Members of the Nomination Committee

TEREBWMS
Corporate Governance Report

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Nomination Committee meeting
was held on March 24, 2022.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

HEBR BHEE
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Li Zhenfust & (£ /&) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) 1/1
23 B+ Dr. Liu Guoen 11
Wendy Hayes 2 4= Ms. Wendy Hayes 11
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes the importance of
diversity of the Board as it promotes board effectiveness and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review and
assess the composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new Directors of the Company. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the benefits
of all aspects of diversity in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance
of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity on the Board
and is to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance.
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Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. The following
table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Group, including the
Board, senior management and other employees as at the date of this Annual

Report.
Female Male
7z B4
EEa Board 30.0%](3] 70.0%[7]*
EREREE Senior management 12.5%][1] 87.5%][7]
EHEflgEE Other employees 66.3%[649] 33.7%(330]
Bt Overall 65.5%([653] 34.5%[344]
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The Company had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least 30% of female
Directors, 10% of female senior management and 60% of female employees of
the Group and considers that the above current gender diversity is satisfactory.

* Mr. Zhao Hong, the executive director and chief executive officer of the Company, is
counted in the Board rather than in the senior management.

The Nomination Committee considered that the selection of board candidates
shall be based on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for merit
and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy at least annually
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and nomination process and the Board succession planning considerations
in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not
limited to the following (collectively, the “Criteria”):

° Reputation for character and integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in which the
Company’s business is involved and other professional qualifications;

. Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time
and relevant interest;

° Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° Contribution that the candidate(s) can potentially bring to the Board; and
. Plans in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of Directors. The nomination process set out in the Nominee Policy
is as follows:

(@) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in
identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
Directors, advertising, recommendations from third-party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration given to the
Criteria;

(b)  the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third party reference checks;

(c)  the proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information for the Nomination Committee’s consideration. The Nomination
Committee may request the candidate(s) to provide additional information
and documents, if considered necessary;
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upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to the
Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a non-executive
Director is considered, the Remuneration Committee will make the
recommendation to the Board on the proposed remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by the
members of the Board who are not members of the Nomination Committee
and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the Companies Registry of
Hong Kong and updating the Register of Directors of the Company. The
Director shall consent to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
appointment as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the CG Code.

During the year ended December 31,

2022, the Board had reviewed the

Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management procedures
and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business
processes and office functions, including sales, purchase, financial reporting,
human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various
aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk
management progress, and reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

The Company has the internal audit team which performs independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the management
report, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year ended December 31,
2022 and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experiences
and relevant resources.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in the
practices and procedures, including financial reporting, internal control and other
matters, in their workplace.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also make reports
to the internal anti-corruption department/internal audit function, which is
responsible for investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate
measures. The Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery
activities to cultivate a culture of integrity and ensure the effectiveness of anti-
corruption and anti-bribery.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general
guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and relevant employees
in handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cop. 622. Appropriate
accounting policies have also been used and applied consistently except the
adoption of revised standards, amendments to standards and interpretation.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 93 to 100.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A breakdown of the remuneration payable to the external auditors of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services for the year ended
December 31, 2022 is set out below:

B EAER
Fees Paid/Payable
AR® T

Service Category RMB

%R

Audit Services
FRERB (BEEHARS - HAERBEZ) Non-audit Services (including advisory and tax service)

3,880,000
3,200,000

7,080,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Rongrong and Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico have been appointed as the
Company’s joint company secretaries with effect from February 19, 2021. Ms.
Chan Sin Man Nico is a senior manager of corporate service of Tricor Services
Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and board practices and matters. Ms. Pan
Rongrong has been designated as the primary contact person at the Company
who would work and communicate with Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico on the
Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various communication
channels.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Articles 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general meetings shall
also be convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
together, as at the date of deposit of the requisition, shares representing not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. The written requisition
shall be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office of the Company, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist(s). If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Articles of Association, for convening a general meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:  3401A, Windsor House, 311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong (For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Email: ir@sciclone.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has adopted an amended and restated Articles of Association by
a special resolution passed on January 22, 2021, and the amended and restated
Articles of Association taking effect from the Listing Date. An up-to-date version
of the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended December 31,
2022.

Policies Relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure that
shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. Depending
on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(a) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts in order to enable them to make any query in respect
of the Company.
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Corporate Communication

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely
and effective communications.

Corporate Website

Information on the Company’s website (www.sciclone.com) is updated on a
regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website for corporate
communications immediately thereafter. Such information includes financial
statements, results announcements, circulars and notices of general
meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, the chairmen of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend shareholders’ activities organized by
the Company, where information about the Company, including its latest
strategic plan, will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities
for investors and specialist industry forums etc will be available on a
regular basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.
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Directors’ Report

The Board is pleased to present the Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are a biopharmaceutical company with an integrated platform for product
development and commercialization. We strategically focus on some of the
largest and fast-growing therapeutic areas with significant unmet medical
needs in China, primarily including oncology and severe infection. Leveraging
our integrated platform, we strive to develop and commercialize a portfolio of
high-quality marketed products, including our proprietary product, Zadaxin, and
pipeline drugs in our focused therapeutic areas.

The analytical statements for income and contribution from results of business
segments of the Group are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
this Annual Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on pages 101 to
102 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Company’s results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years is set out on page 225 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group as of the Reporting
Period are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report. Discussion details
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out on pages 226
to 251 of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the status of the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have material
impact on the Group is set out in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” on page 90 and the description of the risk management and internal
controls of the Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control” in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 59 to 60. The
aforesaid discussion forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the percentage of the total purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers was approximately 57% of the total
purchase of the Group, and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 15% of the total purchase of the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, the percentage of the total revenue
attributable to the five largest customers was approximately 81% of the
total revenue of the Group, and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 71% of the total revenue of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest suppliers or the Group's five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group as at December 31, 2022 are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Notes 34 and 39(b) respectively
to the audited consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by the Company from the global
offering in the amount of approximately HK$2,083.6 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
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The net proceeds have been utilized in accordance with the purposes set out in
the Prospectus and approximately HK$1,308.6 million remained unutilized up to
December 31, 2022. The table below sets out the planned applications of the net
proceeds and actual usage as of December 31, 2022:

#ZE2022% B ZE2022% B Z2022%

1818 RESHAH 12A318H 12A318#

FFENE WHEXE CEBHAFRE mERE EBARSE
FEOIE FEGE REFE REE REFE
Amount Amount

Balance of net Balance of net

of net proceeds of net proceeds

proceeds utilized proceeds utilized

Allocation as of during the as of as of
of net January 1, Reporting December 31, December 31,
proceeds 2022 Period 2022 2022
BEEBAET BEBETR BEET BEETR

HKS in million HKS$ in million HKS$ in million HKS$ in million

BERERREZENMN

Investment in potential

BAE acquisition of new drug
candidates 30% 609.5 48.0 561.5 63.6
EEREEH Repayment of existing debts 28% — — — 583.4
ABREEREEERNHA  Funds to the development
BRHELREES and commercialization of
our clinical-stage product
candidates 26% 532.5 25.8 506.7 35.0
BEREFTEENRE Investment in recruitment and
employee expansion 10% 180.2 51.5 128.7 79.7
ABRMLEMERESEETT  Funds to ongoing clinical
HONERERAMBZER  studies for additional clinical
ARREHEES adoptions of our marketed
product portfolio 6% 117.0 5.3 111.7 13.3
100% 1,439.2 130.6 1,308.6 775.0
BREXH#EEEN BEMBAHE KNEE Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, the Group has not utilized any

TABAMBSRBEFENTAEMLS -
BRERLABENMSRBFERT A
BRUWEEH ARARABEREBRERAM
BERASBETHAMGRBFENGE
I 78 B3 7A2024F 12 A31H AT B K & A FT 15 53X
EFEE o EHEBRDERARBEH KK
MRk EBEBEEEOREMS  BEOA
BEBEZEAMRARTRERUAREEREL S
sk & & o

other portion of the net proceeds. There was no change in the intended use of
net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus, and the Company will
gradually utilize the residual amount of the net proceeds in accordance with
such intended purposes as stated in the Prospectus and expect to fully utilize
the net proceeds by December 31, 2024. The expected timeline is based on
the best estimation of future market conditions and business operations made
by the Company, and remains subject to change based on current and future
development of market conditions and actual business needs.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors as of the date of this Annual Report are:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer and President)

Non-executive Directors*

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien
Mr. Shi Cen

Ms. Wang Haixia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao
Ms. Wendy Hayes

* Ms. Li Quan resigned as a non-executive director on December 19, 2022 due to
personal work arrangement.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Zhenfu,
Mr. Shi Cen, Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Ms. Wendy Hayes shall retire at the Annual
General Meeting. All of the above Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for reelection at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The executive Director has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices. The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits
in kind, performance related bonuses, share based payments, pensions, and other
social insurance benefits. Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors receive compensation according to their duties (including serving as
members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and duties and
with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s remuneration policy and
the prevailing market conditions, subject to the approval of the shareholders
general meeting. Details of remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 13 to
the Financial Statements.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid
individual in the Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the Reporting Period.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended December 31, 2022, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of the date of this Annual Report, Mr. Li Zhenfu, being our non-executive
Director and Chairman, held non-executive directorships in certain GL
Pharmaceutical Portfolio Companies, but was not involved in the daily
management and operations of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors is interested in any businesses
apart from our Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with our Group’s business under Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year ended December 31, 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Company to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into for
the services provided by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

(i) Interest in Shares and underlying Shares

KATE BT

BRAENBHBD L

(%)(1)

B’ 3 =X A B8 Approximate
R EE percentage of the

Number of Shares issued share capital

EE BRTHRABHS EmME or underlying of the Company
Name of Director/Chief Executive Nature of Interest Shares (%)™
Li Zhenfust &£ ZEEEER 195,104,060 28.08%
Mr. Li Zhenfu Interest in controlled corporation®@
iz e RELEEERO 11,979,690 1.72%
Mr. Zhao Hong Interest in Controlled corporation®

EmEA AW 16,056,210 2.31%

Beneficial owner®
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The calculation is based on the total number of 694,755,763 Shares in issue as of
December 31, 2022.

GL Trade Investment L.P. (“GL Trade”) held 133,318,370 Shares (including 28,350,000
Shares which are held by GL Trade as a nominee for GL China Opportunities Carry
L.P. (a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands), whose general partner is
GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited). GL Trade's general partner is GL Capital
Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a company incorporated in Canada which is wholly
owned by GL Capital Management Limited, which is held by GL Partners Capital
Management Limited as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V.
is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly owned by Assicurazioni
Generali S.p.A, a company listed on lItalian Stock Exchange. GL Partners Capital
Management Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited as to 70%. GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu. As such, Mr. Li Zhenfu is
deemed to be interested in Shares held by GL Trade.

GL Glee Investment Limited (“GL Glee”) held 61,785,690 Shares. GL Glee is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by GL China
Opportunities Fund L.P., a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands whose
general partner is GL Capital Management GP L.P., a limited partnership registered in
Cayman Islands, whose general partner is GL Capital Management GP Limited, which
is held by GL Partners Capital Management Limited as to 51% and Lion River | N.V.
as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly
owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange.
GL Partners Capital Management Limited is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
as to 70%. GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu. As such,
Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in Shares held by GL Glee.
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Convergence International Holdings Ltd (“Convergence”) held 11,979,690 Shares.
Convergence is wholly owned by Beijing Convergence Management Consulting
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (It R#E B EEEEANAB L E(BR
& %)), which was in turn owned by its general partner, Juli Information Consulting
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (/E W1 B & (k=) B MR A F) ("Juli Information”), as to
0.000003957%, and its limited partner, Zhoushan Kangnuo Equity Investment
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (FHIUFEHEBREREAE L E(ERA
%) (“Zhoushan Kangnuo”), as to 99.999996043%. As Mr. Zhao Hong is interested
in 32.44% equity interests in Juli Information and 40.96% partnership interests in
Zhoushan Kangnuo, Mr. Zhao Hong is deemed to be interested in 11,979,690 Shares
held by Convergence.

Mr. Zhao Hong holds (i) 200,000 Shares personally, (i) 11,256,210 Share Options
under the Option Incentive Plan, (iii) 4,000,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO
Option Plan and (iv) 600,000 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. Of the 11,256,210
Share Options under the Option Incentive Plan, (a) 5,925,000 Share Options were
granted on December 15, 2018 with an exercise price of HK$2.0462 (which shall
be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a four-year term),
(b) 831,210 Share Options were granted on April 1, 2020, with an exercise price
of HK$2.0462 (which shall be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant
date during a two-year term), and (c) 4,500,000 Share Options were granted on
July 1, 2020 with an exercise price of HK$2.0462 (which shall be vested upon first
anniversary of the grant date). The 4,000,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO
Option Plan were granted on April 19, 2022 with an exercise price of HK$7.892 (which
shall be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a two-year
term). The 600,000 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan were granted on April 19,
2022 (which shall be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a
two-year term).

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, none of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations,

recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at December 31, 2022, so far as the Directors or the chief executive of the

Company were aware, the Substantial Shareholders, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the

Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EEME

Nature of Interest

BR 43 =5 46 B8
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Number of Shares
or underlying
Shares

KRATE BT

IR #9840
B2 (%)™
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company (%)™

Li Zhenfust &

Mr. Li Zhenfu

GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
GL Partners Capital Management Ltd

Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A

GL Trade Investment L.P.

GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd.

GL Capital Management Ltd.

Lion River | N.V

GL Glee Investment Limited

GL China Opportunities Fund L.P

GL Capital Management GP L.P.

EEEEER

Interest in controlled corporation®
EEEEER

Interest in controlled corporation®
REEEER

Interest in controlled corporation®
REEEER

Interest in controlled corporation®
BEmBERAQ

Beneficial interest®

AANREAEEBZIEARI) @

Nominee for another person
(other than a bare trustee) @

REEHEER

Interest in controlled corporation®

REEHEER

Interest in controlled corporation®

REEHEER

Interest in controlled corporation®

EmBERAO

Beneficial interest®

REEEER®

Interest in controlled corporation®

REEEER®

Interest in controlled corporation®

195,104,060

195,104,060

195,104,060

195,104,060

104,968,370

28,350,000

133,318,370

133,318,370

195,104,060

61,785,690

61,785,690

61,785,690

28.08%

28.08%

28.08%

28.08%

15.11%

4.08%

19.19%

19.19%

28.08%

8.89%

8.89%

8.89%
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EEME

BR 4 =5 46 B8
RHHE

Number of Shares
or underlying

ARRE BT
IR B9 8 4

B2 (%)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Shares Company (%)™
GL Capital Management GP Limited RIEEEER 61,785,690 8.89%
Interest in controlled corporation®
GL China Opportunities Carry L.P. EnmAaA 28,350,000 4.08%
Beneficial interest®

ZHERRQF BEHERAW 81,621,130 11.75%

Ocean Falcon Limited Beneficial interest®

hREEKRERARAA EEEEERY 81,621,130 11.75%

Bank of China Group Investment Limited Interest in controlled corporation®

HERITI ) B IR A A EEEEERY 81,621,130 11.75%

Bank of China Limited Interest in controlled corporation®

TRESKREERAEMERT EEEEERO 81,621,130 11.75%

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation®

TERREAREE QA EEEEERO 81,621,130 11.75%

China Investment Corporation Interest in controlled corporation®

Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited EnmAaA 103,497,710 14.90%
Beneficial interest®

Ascendent Capital Partners II, L.P. RIEEEERC 103,497,710 14.90%
Interest in controlled corporation®

Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P RIEEEERC 103,497,710 14.90%
Interest in controlled corporation®

Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, Limited RIEEEERC 103,497,710 14.90%
Interest in controlled corporation®

mm i AE RIEEEERC 103,497,710 14.90%

Mr. Meng Liang

Interest in controlled corporation®
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GL Trade @ — XK K2015F3A25H R £ K
AR IHEREERER - HEBAE
#% A AGL Capital Management GP Il B.C. |
Ld(—xRKRMEKRETME LN AE) B
GL Capital Management LtdZ2 & # & © M
GL Capital Management Ltd f GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd & Lion River | N.V. 7>
Al ¥ B51% K%49% &) AR # o Lion River |
NV.Z2 —KRABHEMAZLH AR A
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A(— X R & K
MEHEZXGMETHNAR)ZEHEA - GL
Partners Capital Management Ltd& — &R %
HEHSAMKLZERETRF I
F1GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
7 4 70% B B% # © GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited2 — KA H S B SR
VZEBREMFERAR AARFENITES
Li zhenfue =2 &% H - E It - GL Capital
Management GP Il B.C.I Ltd. * GL Capital
Management Ltd * GL Partners Capital
Management Ltd ~ GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited ~ Lion River | N.V.»
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A }Li Zhenfu %t 4
T BEWR AR GL Trade BT £ AN A & IR 5+ #
BREm -

GL Glee & — K K201 F3H108 £ M £
HeEadMAXLOHBEREME QA BAGL
China Opportunities Fund L.P (— R » 5
EREAMKRINERER) 2 EHA -
GL China Opportunities Fund L.P.EY & @A
#% A A GL Capital Management GP L.P (—
ARFAEHEAMRLIHNARAE) - GL
Capital Management GP LP.HE@A B A
/GL Capital Management GP Limited *
GL Partners Capital Management Ltd } Lion
River | N.V. 9 Bl # B51% [49% &) % 1 -
Lion River | N.V. 73— Z 5 fi B &£l A 32 &Y
A®] » A Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A (—XR
RERNBFRGMETHNAR) 2 ER
B ° GL Partners Capital Management Ltd
E—ZRXRHAESESIMRLZARER
A &+ I B\ GL China Opportunities Carry
GP Limited # #170% & & # o GL China
Opportunities Carry GP Limited &2 — & %
HEBRSAMKLZEREE LR B
KRAAEMITEEL Zhenfuk 2 &
A It * GL China Opportunities Fund
L.P. ~ GL Capital Management GP L.P. ~ GL
Capital Management GP Limited - Lion River
I N.V. > Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A ~ GL
Partners Capital Management Ltd + GL China
Opportunities Carry GP Limited & Li Zhenfu %t
SRR BNGL GleeFTIHFARBIRMNPHEA
2% o
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The calculation is based on the total number of 694,755,763 Shares in issue as of
December 31, 2022.

GL Trade is an exempted limited partnership registered in Canada on March 25, 2015.
Its general partner is GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a company incorporated
in Canada which is wholly owned by GL Capital Management Ltd, which is held by
GL Partners Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%.
Lion River | N.V. is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly owned by
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange. GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited as to 70%. GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu, a non-executive director of
our Company. As such, each of GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., GL Capital
Management Ltd, GL Partners Capital Management Ltd, GL China Opportunities Carry
GP Limited, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A and Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed
to be interested in our Shares held by GL Trade.

GL Glee is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on March
10, 2011 and is wholly owned by GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., a limited
partnership registered in Cayman Islands whose general partner was GL Capital
Management GP L.P., a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands, whose
general partner was GL Capital Management GP Limited, which is held by GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. is
a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali
S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange. GL Partners Capital Management
Ltd is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is controlled
by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited as to 70%. GL China Opportunities Carry
GP Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu, a non-executive director of our Company. As such,
each of GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Capital Management GP L.P., GL Capital
Management GP Limited, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd, GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited and Mr. Li Zhenfu
is deemed to be interested in our Shares held by GL Glee.
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(5)  Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited & — K
EREeHESFMRYMNBERETERR - A
Ascendent Capital Partners Il, LP.2&HEH -
Ascendent Capital Partners I, L.P.2&— K&
BHEHSZZAMNEREEREE -
HE®A %A BAscendent Capital Partners
Il GP, L.P. = Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP,
LPE—RERFAESHEES L2 ER
RERER HERE®ABAscendent
Capital Partners Il GP Limited ° Ascendent
Capital Partners Il GP Limited & — X 1
EHBAMRINAEREEAR AR
SEEEWA - Bt Ascendent Capital
Partners I, L.P. ~ Ascendent Capital Partners
II'GP, L.P. ~ Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP
Limited & & 5% 5% & & B # % /% 7 Ascendent
Silver (Cayman) Limited BT # 8 2 & A& 17+ #
AEm -
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Ocean Falcon Limited is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong on March
15, 2017 and is wholly owned by Bank of China Group Investment Limited, a limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong which in turn is wholly owned by Bank of China
Limited, a joint stock company established in the PRC with limited liability which
in turn is held by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as to 64.02%, a limited liability
company established in the PRC which in turn is wholly owned by China Investment
Corporation, a limited liability company which is wholly owned by the State Council
of the PRC. As such, each of Bank of China Group Investment Limited, Bank of China
Limited, Central Huijin Investment Ltd., China Investment Corporation, and State
Council of the PRC is deemed to be interested in our Shares held by Ocean Falcon
Limited.

Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and was wholly owned by Ascendent Capital Partners Il, L.P., an
exempted limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands whose
general partner was Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P., an exempted limited
partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands whose general partner
was Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and was wholly owned by Mr. Meng Liang. As such, each of
Ascendent Capital Partners I, L.P., Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P., Ascendent
Capital Partners Il GP Limited and Mr. Meng Liang is deemed to be interested in our
Shares held by Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, so far as the Directors were
aware, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive) had any
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the Company.
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SHARE PLANS
1. Option Incentive Plan

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Option Incentive
Plan as adopted by our Company on June 24, 2018 and as amended on
November 13, 2019. The terms of the Option Incentive Plan are not subject
to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the
Option Incentive Plan is to provide performance-driven, equitable and
ongoing option incentives for eligible management and key employees with
the view to retaining key talents of our Company, aligning the interests of
our Company and its employees and Shareholders, making its employees to
attend to long-term development of our Company and to share increased
value of our Company. The participants of the Option Incentive Plan shall
be an employee who has completed his or her probation period.

(a) Grant and adjustment of options

Any grant to chief executive officer of our Company shall be proposed
by the chairman of the Board and subject to approval of the Board.
Any grant to any participants (excluding chief executive officer) shall
be considered by the corporate executive committee of our Company
and subject to approval of chief executive officer of our Company.

Supplementary grants to the employees who are newly engaged,
promoted, or have made special contributions to our Company and
eligible under the Option Incentive Plan may be made subject to
approval of the Board. In the event that any participant becomes
ineligible under the Option Incentive Plan, or is transferred to
any other position or terminates his or her employment with our
Company, or dies, our Company may make adjustments to such
participant pursuant to the Option Incentive Plan. Any adjustments in
respect of chief executive officer of our Company shall be proposed
by the chairman of the Board and subject to approval of the Board,
whilst any adjustments in respect of any participants other than
chief executive officer shall be considered by the corporate executive
committee of our Company and subject to approval of the chief
executive officer of our Company.

(b) Maximum number of shares subject to the Option
Incentive Plan

The underlying shares of the options under the Option Incentive Plan
shall be the Shares to be issued by our Company.

The maximum number of shares underlying the options under the
Option Incentive Plan shall be no more than 54,778,710 Shares,
representing 8.08% of the total number of Shares in issue on the
Listing Date.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Exercise price and payment

The exercise price of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be
HKD2.0462 (subject to adjustment). Upon confirmation by the Board
or its authorized representatives on the application of exercising
the options, the options shall be exercised upon the actual payment
based on the exercise price by the grantees.

Exercise and lapse of options

The term of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be eight
years since grant date. Subject to satisfaction of the exercising
conditions, participants shall have the right to exercise the options
vested to such participant under the Option Incentive Plan or to waive
such right during the term. Any options not exercised during the term
due to any reason of participants shall be automatically cancelled by
the Board upon expiration of the term.

Vesting schedule

For initial grants, 25% of options granted under the Option Incentive
Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a
four-year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2019, 33%, 33% and
34% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be
vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a three-year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2020, 50% and 50% of
options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon
each anniversary of grant date during a two-year term.

Participants who are key non-sales employees and winner of annual
Top Staff awards of our Company may vest 100% of options granted
to them at the first anniversary of grant date, subject to satisfaction
of certain vesting conditions.

The number of options to be vested over participants under
the Option Incentive Plan shall be determined based on annual
performance evaluation results, and there is no vesting of options if
none of annual performance targets is met.
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(f) EFRITEET (f) Outstanding grants
B £2022%12831H » AR AR As of the December 31, 2022, options to subscribe for an aggregate
BERELSEEATHER of 54,778,710 Shares have been granted to a total of 130 eligible
AHIBOEEER2EERER participants by our Company at nil consideration under the Option
B8 & ££54,778,7100% A% 1 &9 B8 A% Incentive Plan, representing 8.08% of the total number of Shares
R EMBHERITRMOEH in issue on the Listing Date. All the options under the Share Option
#18.08% - MR K BN ET EIIE T Incentive Plan were granted between December 15, 2018 and March
K BT A BE AR Y9 70201812 A15 3, 2021 (the Listing Date) and the Company will not grant further
HZ202143A838 (LT HEH)H options under the Option Incentive Plan after the Listing.
MERT LA E 8T~ g
—TREBREABEET
B B AR A o
HZE202F12A31HIEFE - B Movement of the options, which were granted under the Option
fR#E BB G818 TR 7 i IR Incentive Plan, for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:
BT
BENFNANBLEERREYA
Number of options for the year ended December 31, 2022
HEW0F HEANF fAREGEE/
1B1B % 12A3NBEA  SHERE)
(R 1) R (mE) (W32)
Outstanding B4&%/  Outstanding Exercise Price
as of Ea# as of (HKD/per HEEBEX
ARA REAH BRENH January 1, ERF BXig:d Lapsed/  December 31, option)  Vesting
Grantee Date of grant Option period 2022 (Note 1) Granted Exercised Cancelled 2022 (Note 1) (Note2)  Schedule
EZ
Director
BREE B2018%128158 R ARLAH 11,256,210 - - - 11,256,210 20462 RERHE-FZ
Bl e 8F mE
Mr. ZHAO Hong Since December 15, 8 years since the date One year to four years
2018 and before the  of grant from the date of grant
Listing Date
TEEEMER
Other employees of the Group
B2018%12R158 R  ARLAH 40,022,500 - (17,958,000) (1256,268) 20,808,232 20462 RERHE-FZ
BapR=E:i ) e 8F mE
Since December 15, 8 years since the date One year to four years
2018 and before the  of grant from the date of grant
Listing Date
AF 51,278,710 —  (17,958,000) (1,256,268) 32,064,442 2.0462
Total

MEEET s B R BOR YK Sk 1 3 0H #O B AR

MieE2: HREDIRAEST

I

f X
o 2

Note 1: excluding options forfeited or cancelled

Note 2: adjusted due to dividend distribution
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(g) Establishment of trustee for the Option Incentive
Plan

Our Company has engaged a professional trustee to hold and manage
a portion of the Shares to be issued under the Option Incentive Plan.
Our Company will issue up to 54,778,710 Shares to the trustee.

Post-IPO Option Plan

The purpose of the Post-IPO Option Plan is to provide selected participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in our Company and to
encourage selected participants to work towards enhancing the value of our
Company and its Shares for the benefit of our Company and Shareholders
as a whole. The Post-IPO Option Plan will provide our Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected participants. Any
individual, being an employee, director, officer, consultant, adviser,
distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business partner, joint
venture business partner or service provider of any member of our Group
or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole
discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to our Group is entitled to
be offered and granted options. However, no individual who is resident in
a place where the grant, acceptance or exercise of options pursuant to the
Post-IPO Option Plan is not permitted under the laws and regulations of
such place or where, in the view of the Board or its delegate(s), compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary or
expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be offered or granted
options.
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Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any
other schemes shall be decided by the Shareholders upon adoption
of the Post-IPO Option Plan and in no event shall such total number
of Shares exceed 67,787,426 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue on the Listing Date (the “Option Scheme
Mandate Limit”) (excluding any Shares which may be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan) and 10.98% of the total number of Shares in
issue (assuming the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report remains as 617,597,072, the total number of
Shares in issue as at April 21, 2023). Options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan
(or any other share option schemes of our Company) shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Option Scheme Mandate
Limit.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share option schemes
of our Company at any time (and to which the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time (the “"Option Scheme Limit").
No options may be granted under any schemes of our Company (or
its subsidiaries) if this will result in the Option Scheme Limit being
exceeded.

The Option Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed at any time by
obtaining prior approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. However, the refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit
cannot exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
approval. Options previously granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan
and any other share option schemes of our Company (and to which
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with its terms
or exercised), shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Our Company may also grant options in excess of the Option Scheme
Mandate Limit, provided such grant is to specifically identified
selected participant and is first approved by Shareholders in general
meeting.

(b) Maximum entitlement of a grantee

(c)

Unless approved by our Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share
option scheme(s) of our Company to each selected participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
(the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options to a selected
participant which would result in the aggregate number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to
be granted to such selected participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12 month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the Individual Limit shall be
subject to separate approval of our Shareholders (with such selected
participant and his associates abstaining from voting). The number
and terms (including the exercise price) of options to be granted to
such participant must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and
the date of Board meeting for proposing such further grant should
be taken as the date for the purpose of calculating the exercise price
pursuant to LR17.03(9).

Time of exercise of an option

An option may, subject to the terms and conditions upon which such
option is granted, be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
giving notice in writing to our Company in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.
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(d) Amount payable on application or acceptance of

(e)

(f)

the option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to
have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number
of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of our Company of
HKD1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, which must
be received by our Company within 20 business days from the date
on which the offer letter is delivered to the grantee.

Subscription price

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an
option (“Subscription Price”) in the event of the option being
exercised shall be determined by the Board but shall be not less than
the greater of:

(i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of our Shares as stated in the daily
qguotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) ~ the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Duration

The Post-IPO Option Plan shall be valid and effective for the period
of ten years commencing on the Listing Date (after which, no further
options shall be offered or granted under the Post-IPO Option
Plan), but in all other respects the provisions of the Post-IPO Option
Plan shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan.
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RARBERBRETSET

ETERENERNT:

BEANENANALEERRELA
Number of options for the year ended December 31, 2022

Movement of the options, which were granted under the Post-IPO
Option Plan, for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows

RRLEH
BRE
AEE
RRERER (Bn/
BENNRE HEHZAN HEWnE BHERE)
1818 RHf(En/ 128318 (B 5)
(W)  SHBRE) HRTE Fair value of
MAFTHE  Closing price (W&1) fEE(ET/  optionat the
Outstanding  immediately BERT BT BAX  Outstanding SRERE) dateofgrant EERHER
asof prior to grant (Hi2) (H&3) (Hi&6) asof  Exercise price (HKD/per  (Hit4)
ARA REAH BRESE January 1, (HKD/per Granted Exercised Lapsed  December 31, (HKD/per option)  Vesting
Grantee Date of grant Option period 2022 (Note 1) option) (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 6) 2022 (Note 1) option) (Note 5)  schedule (Note 4)
EZ
Director
BERE 2022548198 BRI ARRH - 7.86 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000 7.892 360 REBHEME
102
Mr. ZHAQ Hong April 19, 2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
FEEZMES
Other employees of the Group
W151798 BRHASE 3,657,500 10.00 - - (5475300 3,119,970 1018 466 BHASENEA
105
November 9, 2021 10 years since the date 22 months from the
of grant date of grant
W1ENAIA BRHASE: 77,600 9.7 - - (20,600) 57,000 929 319 EHBHEME
105
December 1, 2021 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
202251A318 BERLASRH — 8.25 143,600 — (80,000) 63,600 8.40 380 REBHERE
105
January 31, 2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
2022547198 aREBHEH - 786 14,046,200 - (7350000 13,311,200 7892 B3 RURHERE
105
April 19,2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
W025774R BRHASE: - 870 575,000 - (60,000) 515,000 848 389 RHEBERS
105
July 4, 2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
022%9A8A BRHASE: - 678 316,900 - - 316,900 683 301 RUBEERE
105
September 8, 2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant
20226118108 BRHASE: - 637 126,400 - - 126,400 633 295 REBEERE
105
November 10,2022 10 years since the date Two years from the
of grant date of grant

ait
Total

3,745,100 — 19,208,100

(1,443,130) 21,510,070

B EE1 0 7202241818 K202246F12A318 » Al iR &
BRAMABEEEBRETTSIRLAOERE

25 Rl 564,042,32619 [246,277,35617 © 46,277,356, respectively.
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Note 1: As at January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022, the total numbers of options
available for grant under the Post-IPO Option Plan were 64,042,326 and
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Note 2 @): All of the grants made during the year ended December 31, 2022 were made prior
to the amendment to the Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules taking effect.

Note 2 (b): None of the grants of Post-IPO Option to any participant was in excess of the 1%
individual limit.

Note 2 (0): The total number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the options granted
under the Post-IPO Option Plan of the Company during the year divided by the
weighted average number of the Shares in issue during the year was 2.85%.

Note 3: No option was exercised during the year 2022. Therefore, no weighted average
closing price immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was
calculated.

Note 4: Subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions including customized performance targets
for each grantee, the options shall be vested according to the vesting schedule.

Note 5: Details of the valuation and the accounting standard and policy adopted for the
Post-IPO options during the year of 2022 are set out in the Note 27 and Note 2.20
to the consolidated financial statements.

Note 6: During the Reporting Period, no Post-IPO Option was cancelled.

3. Post-IPO RSU Plan

The Post-IPO RSU Plan was approved and adopted by the Shareholders on
January 22, 2021 and is valid for a period of ten years from the date of the
Listing. The total number of Shares underlying the awards to be granted
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan shall be 6,689,963 Shares. Without prejudice
to the foregoing, the total number of Shares underlying the awards to be
granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan in any financial year will not exceed
three per cent (3%) of the issued Shares as at the beginning of that
financial year.
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M202162 8108 K2R M E R &
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(Cayman) Limited 2 77 & B2 3 & H
6,689,963 1D - ERAFHRAME
BITRMAE21.08% (BRFHRAE
BATHR D 42 Bk & R2023F 4218 8
BT 48 #617,597,072) - EM R &
# B SCLN ESOP Management Limited
FHAEZBENRD - H2021F2A118 -
ZHH B KD B T SCLN ESOP
Management Limited AR & & X 2 B
BER X RBIRDE A E & LA R
ABRRREABRABER ETEBEE)
BER®D AAFEMEERAARBH
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On February 10, 2021, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
6,689,963 Shares, representing 1.08% of the total number of Shares in
issue (assuming the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report remains as 617,597,072, the total number of Shares in issue
as at April 21, 2023), to Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited as trustee
of a trust with the intent that such number of Shares would ultimately
be held by SCLN ESOP Management Limited. On February 11, 2021, such
number of Shares were directed to SCLN ESOP Management Limited for the
purpose of holding Shares under the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on
behalf of grantees to be determined after the Listing. Application has been
made to the Stock Exchange for the listing of and permission to deal in
such number of Shares held by SCLN ESOP Management Limited.

The purpose of the Post-IPO RSU Plan is to enable the directors, officers,
and other key contributors and employees of our Group to share the
success of our Company, in order to ensure a closer identification of the
interests of such persons with those of our Group and stimulate the efforts
of such persons on the Group’s behalf. Participants who can receive RSUs
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan shall be directors, officers and employees of
the Group.

(a) Restricted Share Unit

An Award represents a grant of restricted share unit (“Restricted
Share Unit”, each a “"RSU” or collectively “RSUs") to the grantees
(the "Grantees”). Each RSU shall represent the right to receive
one Share (subject to any adjustment in accordance with the terms
of the Post-IPO RSU Plan due to changes of share capital of our
Company) upon vesting. The number of Shares that are subject to
outstanding awards of RSUs granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan
(the “Awards” and each of them, an Award) at any time shall not
exceed the aggregate number of RSUs that then remain available for
distribution under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. The grant of an Award to a
Grantee shall be documented by and subject to an award agreement
(the “Award Agreement”), in which the terms and conditions of the
Award determined by the Board shall be set out.
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Grant of Award

At the time of grant, the Board shall specify the date or dates and/
or any vesting or any other terms and conditions (which may include
continuing employment or other service relationship, achievement of
pre-established performance goals and objectives and/or such other
conditions that the Board deems appropriate in its sole and absolute
discretion) on which RSUs under an Award shall become vested.

To receive Shares underlying their RSUs, Grantees must: (i) have
been an employee of any member of our Group on a continuous and
uninterrupted basis throughout the vesting periods of their Grant,
and (ii) comply with any other additional obligations determined
by the Board (the “Continued Employment Condition”). If the
Grantee ceases to meet the Continued Employment Condition at any
time during any of the vesting periods of their Grant, he or she will
automatically and without prior notice or consideration forfeit his or
her RSUs.

If any RSU is forfeited prior to vesting in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Award Agreement, then such RSU shall be
forfeited with immediate effect and of no further force or effect, and
no payment shall be made to the Grantee in respect thereof.

The RSUs were granted at nil consideration to the grantees and will
be transferred to the grantees upon vesting at nil consideration.

Vesting

Subject to the terms of the Post-IPO RSU Plan and the specific terms
and conditions applicable to each Award, the RSUs granted shall be
subject to vesting schedule and to the satisfaction of performance
and/or other conditions to be determined by the Board (if any) in
its absolute discretion. If such conditions are not satisfied, the RSU
shall automatically lapse on the date on which such conditions are
not satisfied, as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion.
The vesting period shall be detailed in the Award Agreement to the
grantee.

The Post-IPO RSU Plan does not provide for the maximum entitlement
of each participant.
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Movement of RSUs, which were granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan, for
the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows

HEANFNANALEEZRHRAENHA
Number of RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2022

REHBHRRA

RHREMLR

BRXRHURNE EE(ER/E
RHARZAN ZRURHER)

BEANE WHE(ER/§ (K1) HEunE
1A1R BERHBRBM)  Fair value of RSU 128318
CESEAGED) Closing price~ at the date of CEX:d
Outstanding as immediately grant Outstanding

REA RERS of January 1, priortogrant  (HKD/perRSU)  E®F (K2  BHEBWE3)  BXM(KES)  asof December HEHEE

Grantee Date of grant 2022 (Note 4) (HKD/per RSU) (Note 1)  Granted (Note 2)  Vested (Note 3)  Lapsed (Note 5) 31,2022 Vesting schedule

£z

Director

BERE 2022548198 - 7.86 778 600,000 - - 600,000 EHBHEREF

Mr. ZHAO Hong April 19, 2022 Two years from the

date of grant
SALEREHFHAL 2022545198 - 7.86 778 412,500 - - 42500 RHEHEREF
B TEETAFLTE
E9A1)

The five highest paid individual April 19, 2022 Two years from the
of the Group in aggregate date of grant
(excludling those who are also
Directors of the Company)
£HANES

Other employees of the Group

202247198 — 7.86 778 1,396,000 — (81,000) 1315000 BHAHRME
April 19, 2022 Two years from the
date of grant
202257848 - 87 8.48 150,000 - - 150000 REAHERF
July 4, 2022 Two years from the
date of grant
202259A88 - 6.78 6.73 41,500 - - a50 REREERE
September 8, Two years from the
2022 date of grant
el — — 2,600,000 — (81,000) 2,519,000
Total

M@ SRHBROELATHERART
EREAN UIRERBRAZTHER
RERLEEEA -

W) 2022F B E XN AR EE BT R
% 17 B8 iz £R 4% &9 1 1B LA R & 51 R
EERFBRR AUV HRRN
27K MFE2.20 ©

a2 #FEBRHEEREEAAHAEEER
ﬁl@%wxf\mug‘?ﬁ/\m%ﬁ']i e
BR)ERE - ZREIRMDECCE
EREBHEBERGE -
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Note 1 @): The RSUs were granted at nil consideration to the grantees and will be
transferred to the grantees upon vesting at nil consideration.

Note 1 (b): Details of the valuation and the accounting standard and policy adopted for
the Post-IPO RSUs during the year of 2022 are set out in the Note 27 and
Note 2.20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note2: Subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions including customized performance
targets for each grantee, the RSUs shall be vested according to the vesting
schedule.
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Note3: No RSU was vested during the year 2022. Therefore, no weighted average
closing price immediately before the date on which the RSUs were vested
was calculated.

Note4: The aggregate percentage of number of Shares underlying the RSUs granted
during the year of 2022 divided by the total number of Shares in issue as
at January 1, 2022 was 0.38% which did not exceed the 3% limit set in the
Post-IPO RSU Plan.

Note5: During the Reporting Period, no RSU was cancelled.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the RSU Plan, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company's
securities.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2022 are set out in
Note 39(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles of Association, every Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, Auditor
or other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended December 31, 2022, no issuance of debentures was made
by the Company.

DONATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company made charitable and
other donations in a total amount of RMB13.2 million.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 45 to 64 of this Annual
Report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was not engaged in
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim
of material importance is known to the directors to be pending or threatening
against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with relevant laws and regulations. As far as the Board
is concerned, our Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries in all aspects.



BE - hEFWEAXQFR LTRSS

B E2022F12R31H L E - AR FE R B
X PrBEE & 514,976,500/ Bk fy - FBWT

EEEWS
Directors’ Report

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has repurchased a total
of 4,976,500 Shares on the Stock Exchange and the details are set out below:

EREROES
Price Per Share
BRE
B Z£2022F12A31B L FEW B& B®E Aggregate
BE A% FrBERGHER Highest Lowest Consideration
Month of Repurchase in the year Number of Shares BT BT BT
ended December 31, 2022 Repurchased HKS$ HK$ HKS$
3A March 623,500 8.36 7.99 5,150,393.35
4A April 828,500 8.50 7.67 6,649,868.25
5H May 658,000 8.72 8.14 5,527,762.20
6H June 716,500 8.76 8.00 6,002,500.80
7H July 437,500 8.63 7.93 3,572,483.50
8H August 395,000 7.75 7.09 2,887,613.00
9A September 589,500 7.07 6.03 3,820,087.35
104 October 328,000 6.40 5.97 2,046,992.20
114 November 400,000 6.89 5.89 2,564,665.00
Chil Total 4,976,500

2022412 A31H » 4,576,500 4% & [@ &9 A% 19
O FE 8 o H #2400,0000% 88 @ &9 X 1D 2 R
2023F 1AW -

E=gHE REXMBEKRMHRARER
AEMELOMNRGAEAKROOER K
MigmARERRADEE

BEXRHBEEHEFPMFEREIN  AQA%
E AT ] B B A A I 48 A20224F 12 A31H I F
EHE HESBERAQAGEMRETRSH
IS o

As at December 31, 2022, 4,576,500 repurchased Shares were cancelled. The
remaining 400,000 repurchased Shares were cancelled in January 2023.

The Board believed that repurchase of Shares on the Stock Exchange and the
subsequent cancellation of the repurchased Shares would enhance the value of
the Shares thereby improving the return to the Shareholders of the Company.

Save for the above and disclosure in the Subsequent Event, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company’s listed Shares for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HKD0.39 per Share for the year
ended December 31, 2022 (2021: HKDO.35 per Share).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Thursday, May 25, 2023. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in the
manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlements to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, May
22, 2023 to Thursday, May 25, 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. All Share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, May 19, 2023.

In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, June 6,
2023 to Thursday, June 8, 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. All Share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, June 5, 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited

Hong Kong, March 30, 2023
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To the Shareholders of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 101 to 224, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
("IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment assessment
on intangible assets that are not ready for use.
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Key Audit Matter

HMARETUFEARENERLEE ZREMT
Impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not
ready for use

FELHMAEHMBHREME26 2.7 - 6(a) 219 °
Refer to Note 2.6, 2.7, 6(a) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had intangible assets that
are not ready for use with the gross amount of RMB252.11
million and impairment provision of RMB139.48 million, which
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised impairment losses on intangible assets that are
not ready for use with the amount of RMB99.47 million in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

ERBEZERERETFRTETREM @ WEBZINEDE
BB T HAZHBENRE REEZETLEE
FENBeEREUNT KRB EE RERETEERE
5t e

Management performed impairment assessment when
impairment indicators were identified, and also performed
annual impairment assessment at year end with the assistance
of an independent external valuer based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the intangible
asset is related to using the multi-period excess earnings
method.

EMWEFNAEEEREETSHE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB EREBYMREINIEARENEREEFELORER
FTRTERSNEFBE T EIE:
Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not ready for
use mainly include the following:
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FEM) KT AT (G E KRR BRI & B B & B

o Understanding and evaluating management’s internal
control and assessment process of the impairment of
intangible assets that are not ready for use (including
on-going monitor of the development stage of pipeline
products, identification and assessment of impairment
indicators of pipeline products, development of the key
assumptions applied in determining the recoverable
amount, etc.), and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
subjectivity of significant assumptions used;

J MEREARTRA RS ENERCRBEKREYR
BERE - WK INE R &R 4 R AR E A

. Inquiring management and inspecting the relevant
supporting documents about the expected achievement
of drug development milestones, success rate of
commercialization and the outcome of new drug
development for each pipeline product;

J MEREBRAMNTHRESREEREROBMN - Mm% &5 -
VARG A RFTAI A e B AR 5 - I A 4R A8 B & AR S
EEAEMITELRY UG EREHEHRE RE
PR R 6 3 Bl A0 5T

. Inquiring management to understand the technological,
market, economic and legal environment, as well as the
financial conditions of licensors of the Group’s pipeline
products, and inspecting relevant supporting documents,
regulatory announcements as well as industry publications
so as to evaluate management’s identification and
assessment of impairment indicators of pipeline products;

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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We consider the impairment assessment of intangible assets
that are not ready for use is a key audit matter because: (i)
of the significance of the impairment loss recognized and the
carrying value of such assets to the consolidated financial
statements and (ii) the assessment involves key assumptions
which are subject to significant management’s estimates and
judgements, including the expected achievement of drug
development milestones, success rate of commercialization,
the outcome of new drug development, the revenue growth
rate of each pipeline products under respective license
arrangements and the discount rate used in the multi-period
excess earnings method.

BMNESFNMEEFERENS R
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

e FIMAEEERBMINSEIGEEMNER  EHIRTHME:
. Assessing the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by management;

s ERMHNMBEERNBH T FHEEEEBRBERITE
BHIERE TR E M P ELEE A IR 5T
SHBRERZEANES N RATBEZRE(NEBLER
EEEEBAB LTS EBAEHRALE KT LR X)
oR= i

o Evaluating, with the assistance of our valuation specialist,
the appropriateness of multi-period excess earnings method
used by management to determine the recoverable amount
of intangible assets in the impairment assessment by
considering the industry practice; and the reasonableness of
key assumptions used, including revenue growth rate and
discount rate by comparing with the Group’s business plan
and market data;

s BBHBAFEERFGEHRESENRLFEMRENREA
RETEEPEER - U EE IEJ'HJ/M&E’]ﬁAZ\E

. Performing retrospective review by comparing the actual
results for the current year with the Group’s forecasts
prepared in the prior year to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

e HHMZHBBWRREAMABRRINEZMN  ZEFTMK
BEaREEENT S L

. Assessing sensitivities over the key assumptions used in
multi-period excess earnings method in considering the
sufficiency of headroom;

s HEAHYBBRRTEVEEREGIEENTOM -

. Evaluating the adequacy of disclosure of impairment
assessment of intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

REBEFAATOEFERF  RARREERRBERAZEDAE AN
ENBVEEZREMTPABONERBREEABE I -
Based on the audit procedures performed, we found
management’s key assumptions used in impairment assessment of
intangible assets that are not ready for use to be supportable by
the available evidence.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Jack Li.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

BEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20224 20214

2022 2021

Bt 5% AR® T AR T

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

L'@N Revenue 8 2,749,681 2,518,474

NN Cost of revenue 12 (679,196) (585,468)

E Fl Gross profit 2,070,485 1,933,006

HEREHMAS Sales and marketing expenses 12 (627,751) (579,163)

TTER X Administrative expenses 12 (225,003) (206,457)

X Research and development (“R&D") expenses 12 (123,860) (134,389)

RN Other income 9 12,125 42,833

HiA X Other expenses 9,12 — (16,842)

Hih(E18) W= F5E Other (losses)/gains — net 10 (155,392) 19,118

KERA Operating profit 950,604 1,058,106

BB WA Finance income 11 36,069 7,958

Bl & B AR Finance costs 11 (46,593) (40,191)

BB KA FEE Finance costs, net (10,524) (32,233)

Fr 15 B A1 F 8 Profit before income tax 940,080 1,025,873

FTiS B F & Income tax expense 14 (84,725) (102,512)
EARBEBTAEBEER Profit for the year attributable to owners of

Fi 58 the Company 855,355 923,361

BEEZRRAMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 & E#{% ANNUAL REPORT 101
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

BZE12A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
B 5 AR T ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

Hitt 2 mEK = Other comprehensive income
TEEH S HEZERAIE  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

A
UARBEEBHEZE  Changes in the fair value of equity investments at

FPAH b 2 E IR & 8 IR fair value through other comprehensive income

TRENRAAEBED (“FVOCI”) 26 (221,573) 103,671
AR EEHEETE Currency translation differences of the Company 730,862 (145,354)
ZEABEEF 7B E B Items that may be subsequently reclassified to

#) I8 B profit or loss
ARG B AR EE¥HBE  Currency translation differences of the Company’s

=5 subsidiaries (521,092) 110,312
FRAEZEKRZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 843,552 991,990
DTATEGZEK S Total comprehensive income attributable to:

M
ZIN/NEIEZ PN Owners of the Company 843,552 991,990
AATEEAEEESREAF Earnings per share attributable to owners of

(AR¥% ) the Company (RMB) 15
BREXRRBF Basic earnings per share 1.27 1.42
GREERT Diluted earnings per share 1.21 1.33

FI9E Z224E WX AR S W B MK

AR ER D o
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The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022512 4318
As at 31 December 2022

M12831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
Bt 5% AR% T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
FRHEEE Right-of-use assets 17 18,829 21,983
M- BERXE Property, plant and equipment 18 9,796 7,895
mEE Intangible assets 19 542,241 606,095
LAREENFEBEEES  Financial assets at fair value through
AAEHESNESREE profit or loss (“FVPL") 25, 26 19,806 91,524
UWARBE:EBEHEES Financial assets at FVOCI
FTAEAMEEK A S F
BE 25, 26 123,295 329,449
BERERIEE E Deferred tax assets 31 651 1,520
Ht&E Other assets 20,25 5,301 5,156
ERBEERTE Total non-current assets 719,919 1,063,622
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 21 140,560 174,660
B 5’ IE Trade receivables 22,25 780,962 546,512
HEfme & E Other current assets 23 804,435 90,212
LWAREBEFEAEES Financial assets at FVPL
ATAEHERNEREE 25, 26 202,701 60,188
RekBEZEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 24, 25 1,671,829 2,127,488
RBEELE Total current assets 3,600,487 2,999,060
EEHE Total assets 4,320,406 4,062,682
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EHEEBER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

72022512 4318
As at 31 December 2022

M12831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
Bt 5% AR T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
EZzkBE Equity and liabilities
a81& Liabilities
kRBAME Non-current liabilities
f& 3% Borrowings 30 414,682 762,160
BEERBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 14,570 14,981
HEEBRE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
35(c) 7,355 11,175
HEMERsaE Other non-current liabilities 205 188
ERBEERE Total non-current liabilities 436,812 788,504
REBEE Current liabilities
Bk EMEMNERR Trade and other payables 28 418,752 537,802
HEBE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
35(c) 12,714 11,391
B & Borrowings 30 417,876 382,542
BNERTL I A& Current tax liabilities 42,090 25,035
FEBaEEE Total current liabilities 891,432 956,770
EEHAE Total liabilities 1,328,244 1,745,274
EEFHE Net assets 2,992,162 2,317,408
AEATREBABEES Equity attributable to owners of the Company
(N Share capital 32 237 232
f& 4 % (B Share premium 32 1,710,429 1,727,026
Hoh 4 = Other equity 33 (7) (3)
H Other reserves 34 347,484 299,759
REB & A Retained earnings 934,019 290,394
R Total equity 2,992,162 2,317,408

FI09E Z224E NI ERRE W B MK

HRERD -

FI0MEE224B M5 EZ A E = 2712023
FEIAAMETUNEEZERE -

R
BZE

104

Zhao Hong
Director

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 101 to 224 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

NG Y PN A
Attributable to owners of the Company
Ra  RiHEE  EtkE  EbEE  RERT &5
Share Share Other Other Retained
capital premium equity reserves eamings Total

ME ARETTE ARETR ARETR ARSTR AR%TR ARETR
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

WONFIAIRHES Balance at 1 January 2021 192 - — 16673 148997 311862
2EKE Comprehensive income
ERFE Profit for the year - — - = 923,361 923,361
WAREEEEEZHTAELMEA Changes in the fair value of equity
WENRERANAABERY investments at FVOC| 26 - - — 103,671 — 103,671

INBES Foreign currency translation 34 — — — (35,042) — (35,042)
PENEAR Total comprehensive income - - - 68,629 923,361 991,990
HBEAEEREREANRS Transactions with equity holders of

the Group
BOEER Issuance of ordinary shares 2 37 1,727,026 — — — 1,727,063
BREZETRRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 34 - = = 10,266 (10,266) —
BRiMe Rz Share based compensation expenses 27 - = = 63,013 = 63,013
MEERDHEEERTERR Issuance of ordinary shares to employee

share scheme trusts 32,33 3 — 3) — - -
RE Dividends 16 — — — (4,822) (771,698) (776,520)
BASERERBANR AR Total transactions with equity

holders of the Group 40 1,727,026 3) 68,457 (781,964) 1,013,556
R2021F12A31A M & 8 Balance at 31 December 2021 232 1,727,026 3) 299,759 290,394 2,317,408
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Equity

AAREEAELE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ke RGEE HthE HtEE REEI -
Share Share Other Other Retained
capital premium equity reserves earnings Total
M ARETr ARETn ARTn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tx
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022F1A1B M &8 Balance at 1 January 2022 232 1,721,026 B) 299,759 290,394 2,317,408
2AEKE Comprehensive income
FAFE Profit for the year - - - - 855,355 855,355
WAABEFEEEEHFAZMEE Changes in the fair value of equity
BENRERENAABERY investments at FVOC| 26 - - —  (221573) - (5m)
SR 5 Foreign currency translation 34 - - - 209,770 = 209,770
PENEAR Total comprehensive income - - - (11,803) 855,355 843,552
BARERESBANRS Transactions with equity holders of
the Group
ERZEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 34 - - — 7,185 (7,185) =
BiMeHS Share based compensation expenses 27 - - - 52,343 — 52,343
REERNHEGTETLRR Issuance of ordinary shares to the
employee share scheme trust 32,33 6 - (6) - - -
BERGHEBR Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary
shares 32,33 (1) (32,726) - — - (32,727)
TEERE Exercise of share options kY] - 16,129 2 - — 16,131
RE Dividends 16 - - - — (204,545 (204,545
HBAEEREREANRZAE Total transactions with equity
holders of the Group 5 (16,597) (4) 59,528 (211,730) (168,798)
R2022%12A31A M & Balance at 31 December 2022 237 1,710,429 (7) 347,484 934,019 2,992,162

FI9E E2UENNEFAZETERED
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The

notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REmINRE
B YA B

BN A E

BN SR

RETHMBREFH

RETBFRBRERE
ME - BEERENRK
LSRN

ERIRE RS

U 8 E 77 K

WEARREESERE
EHFAEHNERNEH

BE

HEARAEEFEALR
BEALHERXN SR

BEMSHRE
tlj’émﬁ}ﬂ_m 155

Qi)
BRI E DB MEFHIEA

tlj’imi & 5 K 2% f%él’]ﬁﬁ

/S RIAE
SRR 2R

REZDFAREFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment

Payments for software
Payments for licenses

Acquisition of time deposits
Acquisition of financial assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposal of time deposits
Proceeds from maturity of debt investment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Decrease in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited

B 5
Note

35

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

HZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20214
2021
ARET T
RMB’000

1,213,580
7,958
(47,861)
(144,221)

1,029,456

(5,700)
(3,556)
(181,556)
(72,759)

(1,134,412)

1,109,326

272
162,148

(126,237)
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RETEMERERE Cash flows from financing activities

17 1 B8 A 1 Exercising of share options

BITEBER Issuance of ordinary shares
MENROEEHBH Principal elements of lease payments

i [0 3 33 AR R Payments for repurchase of ordinary shares
X AHRITER Payment for bank borrowing

TR XA R Payment of listing expenses

2R R Dividends paid

B EEE (FTA) A8 3R £ Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
FH activities

RERBELZEBEYWORYL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

¥ F R equivalents
FUEeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
EREHHIBE RIMEE  Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
B E equivalents

FRESRESLZEMHEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

BZE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20214
2021
B 5 ARETFT
Note RMB’000

32 1,734,174
17 (10,331)

(777,792)
(3,179)
16 (827,303)

115,569

1,018,788
1,118,986

(10,286)

2,127,488

FI9E Z214ENM T AZEMBHRED The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 May 2020 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961 as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in developing
and commercializing a portfolio of marketed products as well as pipelines
with potential in their focused therapeutic areas including oncology and
severe infection.

The Company completed the initial public offering (“IPO”) and had its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx") on 3
March 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cop. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVPL or FVOCI
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 6.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated on
consolidation.

— New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January

RIATES 2022:

RUTHMH 2%

# 8 BNEEHBER
Effective for annual

periods beginning

Standards on or after
(AR ZRDFEIFEUEFT R ME BELRE FREAEINNMAERE] 2022F1A1H
Amendment to IAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use” 1 January 2022
(BB B 75 i 5 R AU 357 (B AT )3 B A iE 42 2022F1A1H
Amendments to IFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual Framework” 1 January 2022
(BREsERD)EIRETRNIBEELEELN — BITEOHKAE] 2022F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 37, “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract” 1 January 2022
2018 F E2020F KR M B EERD 2 FE 2 2022F1A1H

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

L& AT H B B R
eI EEATE A
A& Y2 AT R R
MELEATE -

1 January 2022

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.
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21 REEEm) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
— R F AT ERR — New standards and interpretations not yet
2 FE adopted
EREMERREXRAARE Standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
EiE: 37 R = 0 I issued but not yet effective and not been early adopted by the
BT RZ2BHT: Group are as follows:
RUTEHHZ2EH
% A BHNFEPBEXN
Effective for annual
periods beginning
Standards on or after
(IR B 15 S ERDFE 7R MR A 4] 2023F1A1H
IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023
(BB EZADFE IR KRBT B REENEBREF2R)UERT )@ T BHEN K E 20231710
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 1 January 2023
(R ZADEIRET RN AESERRB LIRS 2023F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 1, “Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-current” 1 January 2023
(BB gt EZRDESK (BT NGt st E & 2023F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 8, “Definition of Accounting Estimates” 1 January 2023
(BB EZANDENRRUERIRN) — HE-—SHGEENEERBEEBNELHE 2023F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction Tax 1 January 2023
(BB Br S A R E105% RCEBR A LR E28R (BN EERABERAHEGELEZH %€
MWEELEIEAN]
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and Its Associate To be determined

or Joint Venture”

EECH A ER KRBT RET The directors have performed assessment on the new standards
b WYL B AR - B and amendments, and has concluded on a preliminary basis
A RBIRNERETEEHAK that these new standards and amendments would not have
SEMAEHUBHRRELEERXR a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
HE statements when they become effective.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.2 Subsidiaries

(a) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/
losses on transactions between the companies within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

(i) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations other than those
under common control, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(1)

(ir)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’'s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(iif)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
("OCI") in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

(b) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
of the Company are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial information of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The functional currencies of the
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated outside of Mainland
China are USD, EUR or HKD, while the functional currencies
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China
are Renminbi (“RMB"). As the major business of the Group
are within Mainland China, the Group determined to present
its consolidated financial statements in RMB (unless otherwise
stated).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation when items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within “Other gains/
(losses) — net”.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
FVPL are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as at FVOCI are recognized in
OCl.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

3 income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

3 all resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognized in OCI.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes the expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of PP&E is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

fEtaEREHY
Estimated
useful lives

3E5F
3-5 years
4F

4 years

FABRMEEEGAAIEBERIOREE

Shorter of remaining term of the lease and the estimated useful lives of assets

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals of PP&E are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in “Other gains/
(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.6 Intangible assets

(a)

R&D expenditures

Research expenditure on research activities is recognized as an
expense as incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities is recognized if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

3 it is technically feasible to complete the intangible assets
so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible assets
and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the intangible assets;

3 it can be demonstrated how the intangible assets will
generate probable future economic benefits;

3 adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible assets are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible assets
during its development can be reliably measured.

The Group’s R&D expenditures incurred did not meet the
capitalization principle above and were expensed as incurred
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.6 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Licenses

Payments made to third parties to in-license or acquire
intellectual property rights, compounds and products include
initial non-refundable upfront payments, subsequent milestone
payments and royalty payments. Upfront and milestone
payments are capitalized as intangible assets when incurred,
unless these payments are for outsourced R&D work which
follow the capitalization principle in Note 2.6(a). Royalty
payments incurred along with the underlying sales are
expensed as incurred and charged to cost of revenue.

Additional payments for purchase of intangible assets
contingent on future events are not considered on initial
recognition of the assets, but are added to the costs of the
assets initially recorded when incurred, or when related
liabilities are remeasured for changes in cash flows, if such
payments are related to the costs of the assets.

Subsequent internal R&D expenses in relation to in-license
intellectual property rights, compounds and products are
expensed unless capitalization principles are met in accordance
with the accounting policy as mentioned in Note 2.6(a).

Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that
have an indefinite useful life or not available for use are not
subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired (Note 2.7).
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2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Licenses (continued)

Intangible assets recognized related to in-license arrangements
are amortized on the straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives when they become available for use (Note 6(c)).

Estimated useful lives of available for-use intangible assets are
as follows:

SE20F (ERNBEESIALHPRIFAERHENRUREERE))

5-20 years (based on the terms of the in-license arrangements or the estimated duration of product

sales, whichever is shorter)
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(c) Software

Costs incurred to acquire and bring to use of software are
capitalized as intangible assets and amortized over their
estimated useful lives (generally 3 years).

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.8

Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be
recorded either in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

See Note 25 for details of each type of financial assets.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments into the following measurement categories:

o Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other gains/(losses) — net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognized in “Other gains/(losses) — net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
“Other gains/(losses) — net” and impairment expenses
are presented as a separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

3 FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognized in profit or loss and presented net within
"Other gains/(losses) — net” in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized
in profit or loss as “Other income” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognized in “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(d) Offsetting financial instruments

(e)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Impairment

The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortized cost, including loan
receivables, trade receivables and other receivables (including
receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate receivables,
rental deposits and interest receivables) on a forward-looking
basis, and with the exposure arising from financial guarantee
contracts. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
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2.8 RERHMEMEE 2 2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(e) RE®) (e) Impairment (continued)

H b e U XIE (B 4 1% R Impairment on other receivables (including receivables from
WA EWGKRIE - SRR licensing income, purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits
Rl HE HEZRE RE and interest receivables) and loan receivables is measured as
W R B K B B KA R either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
BRREABBREEERE credit losses, depending on whether there has been a
AIFEAEREE BB significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
E -RITEVITHRER significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
BHREERR KEIE N - since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
WMEKRKRENEERRS lifetime expected credit losses.

VFHERIAKC BREF I -
ARENFERRAGE

BREGE -

29 78 2.9 Inventories
GEFZRERME T2 Inventories, mainly consisting of raw materials, work in progress and
KPR @) R K AR R ] 3 F E finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
WEREEIR KABEREE value. Cost comprises amounts related to direct materials, direct
BEME BEBELTIUREELD labor and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
MAZkETHEEREBRD expenditure. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
T - BEFEOXNAEHNR deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated
EHMRFTNEEE - 0] #IBF selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
EREFEBBERINMETE costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
B 14 5T ST AL P & A AR LA &% 88 sale.
BB MmETRR -

210 EZEWRIE 2.10 Trade receivables
BESRWFEBEREBTEBA Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
BhmiEEemi R ERSE or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
WEFHRIE - B EWNKIE are generally due for settlement within 90 days and therefore all
—MAROORNEBHAE At classified as current.

2B BARDHE -

EURAARBERRE  BHENK Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
REVTREGREHELHEER consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
(BEEARAREKD BRI - K financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
SERFEESRENRIE WX Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
WHReHRene  AEEZES contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
NERF R X LR EHK AT E o amortized cost using the effective interest method. Details about the
BEASBRERRLTES Group's impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance
BREENFBENMF2.85%E - are disclosed in Note 2.8.
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term and highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.
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2.14 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit
or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

2.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Financial guarantee contract is recognized as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair
value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with
the principles of IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognized as part of the cost of the investment.

2.17 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion of the
Company and its subsidiaries, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the consolidated balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred income tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCI or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in OClI

or directly in equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance

reduces income tax payable and current tax expense.
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2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognized in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China have to
make contribution to staff retirement schemes managed by
local government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as and when incurred. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions once the
contributions are paid by the Group in compliance with the
relevant rules and regulations. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire retirement scheme obligations
payable to the retired employees. Contributions made to these
schemes vest immediately.

The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme ("MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund.
Both the Group and the employees employed by the Group in
Hong Kong are required to contribute to the scheme monthly.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred.
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2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each year. Contributions to the
housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances
are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognized until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognized as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation for
payment of bonus as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 1 year and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.
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2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(f) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the Group recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

2.20 Share-based payment

The Group operates share incentive plan, under which it receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(restricted shares units (“RSUs"”) and options) of the Company. The
fair value of the services received in exchange for the grant of the
equity instruments (RSUs and options) is recognized as an expense
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding increase in equity.

The fair values of share options granted are measured on the
respective grant dates based on the fair value of the underlying
shares. In addition, the Group is required to estimate the expected
percentage of grantees that will remain in employment with the
Group or, where applicable, if the performance conditions for
vesting will be met at the end of the vesting period. The Group only
recognizes an expense for those share options expected to vest over
the vesting period during which the grantees become unconditionally
entitled to these share-based awards.
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220 AR RERONSR ) 2.20 Share-based payment (continued)
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In terms of the RSUs and options awarded to employees, the total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of equity instruments (RSUs and options) granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-marketing performance and service conditions are included in
calculation of the number of RSUs and options that are expected
to vest. The total amount expensed is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of RSUs and options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In some circumstances, employees may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognizing the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new ordinary
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium.
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2.21Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

—  the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

—  the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and

—  the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for further operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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The Group principally derives revenue from sales of products.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold,
stated net of discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The
Group recognizes product revenue at the point in time when the
performance obligation under the terms of a contract with the
customer is satisfied and control of the product has been transferred
to the customer.

The Group’s contractual arrangements with certain of its
distributors contain variable considerations in connection with
the price mechanism. If the provincial tender price is below or
above a reference price (baseline price), the Group may owe price
compensation payable to or is due price compensation receivable
from the distributor. The provincial tender price is the ultimate end-
point sales price approved by provincial authorities in China. The
Group estimates the variable consideration using the expected value
method and takes into consideration the tender price as at the report
date as well as the recent market trend. The variable consideration
(whether price compensation payable or receivable), under the
principles of IFRS 15, is recognized at the time when the underlying
originating sale is recognized.
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2.24 Leases

The Group leases office and buildings as lessee. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years with no extension
option. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is amortized over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.
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2248 (&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

. any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and leases with a
remaining term of 12 months or less as of the date of initial adoption
of IFRS 16.

The right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities are present separately
on the consolidated balance sheet.

Lease transaction is considered as a single transaction in which the
asset and liability are integrally linked, there is no net temporary
difference recognition at inception. Subsequently, as differences
arise on settlement of the liability and the amortization of the leased
asset, there will be a net temporary difference on which deferred
tax is recognized. The Group's deferred tax balances related to lease
transactions were minimal as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and
the Group will comply with all required conditions.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and recognized in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to PP&E are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net
fair value gains/(losses) on these assets. Interest income on financial
assets at amortized cost and financial assets at FVOCI calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk management program of the
Group focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on financial performance of the

Group.

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The transactions of the Company are denominated and
settled in its functional currency, USD. The Group's
subsidiaries in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong are
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB.
Foreign exchange risk primarily arose from recognized
assets and liabilities in the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands when receiving or
to receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay
foreign currencies to business partners. The Group's
major financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign
exchange risk are mainly cash and cash equivalents and
trade receivables in RMB which are disclosed in Note 24
and Note 22, respectively.

For the Group’s subsidiaries whose functional currency is
USD, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
USD with all other variables held constant, the impacts
on the profit before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2022 would have been approximately
RMB61,302,000 higher/lower (2021: RMB12,253,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
gains or losses on translation of net monetary assets
denominated in RMB.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risks arise from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained in June 2020 (Note 30)
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates.

If the interest rate of borrowings with floating rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower, the profit before
income tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
have been approximately RMB5,829,000 lower/higher
(2021: RMB7,985,000 lower/higher).

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables (including
receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate receivables,
rental deposits and interest receivables), loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables
(including receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate
receivables, rental deposits and interest receivables), loan
receivables and financial guarantee contracts represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group did not record any significant credit losses
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(1)

Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents

To manage this risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, they are mainly placed with banks with high
credit rating. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions. The expected
credit loss is close to zero.

Credit risk of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of at least 24 months before the
balance sheet date and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables, or
significant adverse changes in the market environment,
including, among others, the economic impact of the
unprecedented COVID-19 on the customers.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ir)

Credit risk of trade receivables (continued)

The expected credit loss was minimal at 31 December
2022 and 2021 as the trade receivables were considered
to be of low credit risk.

As at 31 December 2022 approximately 84% (2021:
30%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from a
subsidiary of a sizeable state-controlled pharmaceutical
product distributor (“Customer A”) that was newly
engaged in 2021, and the trade receivables balance
due from a subsidiary of a sizeable state-controlled
pharmaceutical product distributor (“Customer B”) is
less than 10% (2021: 50%).

The credit period granted to the Group’s customers is
usually no more than 90 days and the credit quality
of these customers is assessed based on the financial
positions of the customers, past experience and other
factors. In view of the sound collection history of
receivables due from the customers, management
believes that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding trade receivables balances due from the
customers is not significant. The Group considered the
impact of COVID-19, incorporated related forward-
looking factors to measure expected credit losses, and
determined that the expected credit loss remained to be
minimal as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i)~ Credit risk of trade receivables (continued)

The following table summarized customers with balances
greater than 10% of trade receivables:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
20214
2021
30%
50%

* Less than 10%

(iif)  Credit risk of other financial assets at

amortized cost

Other financial assets at amortized cost mainly comprise
time deposits, receivables from licensing income,
purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits and interest
receivables. The Group considers the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
counter party’s ability to meet its obligations;
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31 &RERBER®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EEREE %) (b) Credit risk (continued)
(iii) B it e 8 55 P AN (ifi) Credit risk of other financial assets at

AT B BB E amortized cost (continued)

#Y 1= B 2 B2 (%)

e HFHIHKE . actual or expected significant changes in the
¥BEERNE operating results of the counter party;
E3/i8

e HFHFBHEHE . significant changes in the expected performance
RRTBEE and behavior of the counter party, including
EAREE B changes in the payment status of the counter
BEHFFAR party.
BEREEE o

EHFROGEER The credit risk on time deposits is limited because

AR RERER deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings and

DEBRAEBRI management does not expect any loss from non-

FRRIRTT BB performance by these counterparties.

EHEBHIERZSE

HFEHTTBHOMmEE

EE 8 o

20224124318 - As at 31 December 2022, there was no significant

BV EREREE increase in credit risk since initial recognition (2021: nil).

B B 3 & BRI The Group assessed that the expected credit losses for

Q021F: F) X & these financial assets within the next 12 months are not

BETXAREZER material.

& E RN K KI2E
ARMBEHEER
BIYTEK -
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
adequate committed credit facilities. The Group's primary
cash requirements are for payments for acquisition of license
arrangements, purchases of inventories, payments for operating
expenses, capital injections into subsidiaries, and unexpected
cash outflow due to other unforeseen crisis.

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through a combination of cash
generated from operating activities, the net proceeds received
from the global offering of the Company and other funds
raised from the capital markets from time to time.

The cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
current assets (excluding prepayments) held by the Group
are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets
of RMB2,709,055,000 (2021: RMB2,042,290,000). With the
consideration of anticipated operation cash inflows, and the
ability of adjusting the pace of its operation expansion and
expenditures, the directors are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient cash flows in the near future to manage the
liquidity risks.
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3 ZREREEe 3 Financial risk management (continved)
31 &RERBER®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) mEEZLREEE) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
TEBREBEEERBEXRBZE The table below analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial
EXREEBHANFE LA - liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
BASENFITESRE remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
BB ZEATEBAET - maturity date.
XKABRENEERALR The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
BB EME - ARAER undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
W ZEWTEKR R12@E their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
AR SN ERBESENE significant.
BR T 45 84 o
1R 1228 2E5F 5L L At
Less than Between 1 Between 2 More than
1year and2years andb5 years 5 years Total
ARETRT AR¥TR AR%Tn AR¥Tx AR%Txn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
$2022412 8318 At 31 December 2022
BoOREMERKIE Trade and other payables
(TEREMNT 2 RIEL) (excluding salaries and
bonus payables) 279,966 — — — 279,966
EE: Borrowings 445,461 430,815 — — 876,276
HEaR Lease liabilities 12,850 6,322 1,304 — 20,476
738,277 437,137 1,304 — 1,176,718
R2021512A318 At 31 December 2021
BoOREMERTKE Trade and other payables
(T REREM e RIEL) (excluding salaries and
bonus payables) 444,924 — — — 444,924
EF Borrowings 406,751 401,749 389,106 = 1,197,606
HEaE Lease liabilities 11,422 9,170 3,032 — 23,624
863,097 410,919 392,138 — 1,666,154
M2022F K 20214F12 A318 - As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have
AEEBYETESHAE - derivative financial liability.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group considers its capital structure as the aggregate of total equity
and long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in order to have funds
available to support the business activities which the directors intend to
pursue in addition to maximizing the return to shareholders. The directors
do not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management, but
rather relies on the expertise of the Group’s management to sustain future
development of the business.

In order to carry out current operations and pay for administrative costs,
the Group will spend its existing working capital and raise additional
amounts as needed. The Group reviews its capital management approach
on an on-going basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size
of the Group, is reasonable.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair
value as of each balance sheet date, by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorized into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1);

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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5 AREBEMGE

5 Fair value estimation (continvea)

T % 5 7R 7820224 K&2021412A31H The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured at fair
BRAnRBEFEZASEAE: value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:
—B& ey - EZER CE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARBT T AR®T ARBTTT AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2022512 8318 As at 31 December 2022

NAREBEEFEEEZEHFTAEHEZMER Financial assets at FVPL —

BE—N®— #EEFR(ME20) Current — structured deposits
(Note 26) — 141,000 — 141,000
NWAREBEFEEEZEHFTAEHEZMER Financal assets at FVPL —
BE— T8 — J#RFREME20) Current — transferable certificate
of deposits (Note 26) — - 61,701 61,701
WARBEFEEEZHFAEMEZENER Financal assets at FVOCI —
SREE — FNE — RERE (MF20) Non-Current — equity investments
(Note 26) 74,543 — 48,752 123,295
NAREBEFEEEZHFTAEHEZMER Financal assets at FVPL —
BE—Fn® — RERE (M:E26) Non-Current — equity investments
(Note 26) 1,106 — 3,952 5,058
WAREE quzHﬁm FANEHEZM SR Financial assets at FVPL —
BE—FRe— BEBERE(ME20) Non-Current — debt investments
(Note 26) — — 14,748 14,748
75,649 141,000 129,153 345,802
®2021512A318 As at 31 December 2021
NAREBEFEAEZHFAENBENER Finandal assets at FVPL —
BE—TE— % 177 3 (Pt & 26) Current — structured deposits
(Note 26) — 50,183 — 50,183
NAREBEFEEEZEHFTAEHBEZMNER Financial assets at FVPL —
BE— Y — EEFRE(MT26) Current — transferable certificate
of deposits (Note 26) — — 10,005 10,005
AABEFEAHEYHALMEELE Financial assets at FVOCI —
CREE —FRD — RERE (Hi26) Non-Current — equity investments
(Note 26) 284,819 — 44,630 329,449
ARBEMEEEZHTAEZHEBENSE Financial assets at FVPL —
BE—Fny — RERE (M :E26) Non-Current — equity investments
(Note 26) 1,485 — — 1,485
NAREBEFEEEZEHFTAEHBEZMNER Financial assets at FVPL —
BE—Fne — EHRE(ME20) Non-Current — debt investments
(Note 26) — — 90,039 90,039
286,304 50,183 144,674 481,161
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()

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at each of the reporting dates. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;
o Discounted cash flow model and unobservable inputs mainly

including assumptions of expected future cash flows and
discount rate; and

° A combination of observable and unobservable inputs,
including risk-free rate and expected volatility, etc.
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5 Fair value estimation (continvea)

() EE=EBRANEFIA @) (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
AEBEERBENEZER Level 3 instruments of the Group's assets and liabilities include long-
TEBERURAABETZEAH term equity and debt investments measured at FVPL and long-term
FHAEHBREZEHBEAR equity investment measured at FVOCI (Note 26).
FEBEEEUNRNAAREBER
EAHEZHTAEMEE K E
B R H R 1R A (i 5E26) -

& 2 % & £20224F K20214F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
RANBIEFEUNRAABEGE long-term debt investments measured at FVPL for the years ended 31
BEEHIFAEHEZEZRY December 2022 and 2021.
EBRENE=-"ERIELEH -
BZ1N2AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R At beginning of the year 90,039 52,988
= Addition — 38,912
NRABEEZE Changes in fair value (74,179) —
B 1% & 2 8 Maturity of a debt investment (6,359) —
JE N =R Exchange differences 5,247 (1,861)
FR At the end of the year 14,748 90,039
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5 AREBEMET@ 5 Fair value estimation (continved)
() EX=BHRANEMIA® (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
T & 2 5 B £2022%F R20214F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
RANBIEFENUNRAABEGE certificate of deposits measured at FVPL for the years ended 31
BEEHAAERERZFR December 2022 and 2021.

ENE=—ERIAZY -

BZ12A31ALEE

Year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RE A At beginning of the year 10,005 —
nNE Addition 50,000 10,000
ANREEZ Changes in fair value 2,042 317
U B B BT 15 3K 0B Proceeds received (346) (312)
FR At the end of the year 61,701 10,005
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5 AREEMST @ 5 Fair value estimation (continved)

(9]

EE=BHRANEHMIE #) (c)
&R 2% & 220229 %20214F
NRANNBLEFEULNARBET=E
BEZFHFAEMEZE YR E Z
BEKENE-"ERTALZS -

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
of equity investment measured at FVOCI for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

BZE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE A At beginning of the year 44,630 52,246
AAEBEED Changes in fair value — (6,384)
fE N Z% Exchange differences 4,122 (1,232)
FR At the end of the year 48,752 44,630
T % £ % B £20224F &20215F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
12ANAEFEUARABEGSE equity investment measured at FVPL for the years ended 31 December
BEEHFAEHEE 2 RIE 2022 and 2021.
RENE=ERTEZH -
BZ12A31MALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RE ) At beginning of the year — —
NE Addition 3,588 —
ME 3, = 58 Exchange differences 364 —
FR At the end of the year 3,952 —

G

HZE2022F K2021F12A31ALEFE -
AABEEBRIPENE—EBR F
“ERREZER BN EER -

AEBRETUBRBERAEERSE
“ERTAGENERK - ZEHKR
BARBREEREHMRENMGET
B ELBE-RERBERME
EAEEE="ERTANTAEE "
BEFREGRBINGEEERLHE -

Note:

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 of fair value hierarchy
classifications during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis. At
least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments. External
valuation experts are involved when necessary.
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(c)

#at

Description

WRAE

EE=BRANEMIA @)
FZERITANGHEFTERRE
EAiH:m TLA@)%{EEJEE
BERAAZHER E’JEHHE
ﬁ“}xﬁ(ﬁﬁf{%) RIEETR
’Aluﬁfﬁﬁiﬂﬁg@‘ﬁ)\
EHEaORARERSE (M3
26) MR ABEFAEEEES
FFAE BB RN E IR E (M
2600 RARNAREEFELEEDH
FEAE ML 2 E U 5 8 AR IR A (B
i26) c AR ZEITAWERE
BMZEE EAABEIER
ZEERNHERM(EERR
iﬁfﬁulbi/ﬁv)#m"

TR BEELEEEE =R
AREBEFEFMAERTTH
Rig A2 EHNELER -

AABEEM2A318

Fair value at
31 December

BHEEARBIHA

EHRENEBRE

Debt investments measured

at FVPL

AR B

n“'EEHH@j#)\

EHBRANTEETLE
Transferable certificate of
deposits measured at FVPL

20215
2021
ARETT
RMB’000

90,039

10,005

(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The valuation of the level 3 instruments mainly included long-term
debt investments measured at FVPL in unlisted companies (Note
26), a long-term equity investment measured at FVPL in an unlisted
company (Note 26), short-term investments measured at FVPL (Note
26) and equity investments measured at FVOCI (Note 26). As these
instruments are not traded in an active market, their fair values have
been determined by using various applicable valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flows approach etc.

The following table summarizes the quantitative information about
the significant unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value

measurements.

BAZHEE FABEEBASHE
FTABERBARE R12A31H AAEENER
Relationship of
Unobservable Range of inputs unobservable inputs
inputs 31 December to fair value

20216

2021
KR 47.20% HEHKREER -
ARABEBE
Expected volatility The higher the expected
volatility, the lower the fair
value
gl 336% HREHS AABEBE
Discount rate The higher the discount rate,

the lower the fair value



(c)

EE=BRANEMTR @)
fiti 8 £A 05 08 T B2k F5% T
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2022&12)%315 AR BEE

BEEH H\*‘*H}Ha SH &
i%&éfﬁﬁfamﬁ@ﬂ\ # R
L H AN R#8,2607T (20214 : 18
/R A A R #146,0007T) ©

fitt 8 B3 % 18 N %k F5%
%ﬁﬁﬁ“aﬁﬁ$@v@§
202212 A318 - AR R BE T
EEEEHFAEHBEZNA
EEEABINAABEBRD,
o 4 A B #174,0007T (2021
R D8 A R #30,000
JT) °

PINENCIE 23 W & 3: 0l
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— WA BEF=EAEHZ
éﬁ‘?r)\ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ&z%m%
BEEEREORSE
T%Eﬁ&fiﬂi@aa%ém
RERAFEAARE
48,752,0007T (2021 : A B
#:44,630,0007T) °

— NURAREEFEEEZH
TAEHBEENRERE
ERHLPRZERHOK
Ao REABNEKE KR
HITHE BEABARE
3,952,0007T (20214F : T~ i@
) e

AEEEEZERKRETHNER
BELRTHRE YRBARE
FHEYEERAAAEEED
M RE R ©
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B 5 W IR Rk OE ik K
AHENEREERAERT
LWARBEFENEREGR
RESREMENREBEREE
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BEEE -
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Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

If the expected volatility had decreased/increased by 5% with all
other variables held constant, the fair value of debt investments
measured at FVPL would have been increased/decreased by
approximately RMB8,260 as of 31 December 2022 (2021: increased/
decreased RMB146,000).

If the discount rate had decreased/increased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the fair value of transferable certificate of
deposits measured at FVPL would have been increased/decreased by
approximately RMB174,000 as of 31 December 2022 (2021: increased/
decreased by approximately RMB30,000).

The following financial instruments with unobservable inputs are not
included in the above disclosure:

—  An equity investment measured at FVOCI is valued based on
calibration to recent transaction prices or investment cost
without adjustment amounted to RMB48,752,000 (2021:
RMB44,630,000).

—  An equity investment measured at FVPL is valued based on
calibration to recent transaction prices or investment cost
without adjustment amounted to RMB3,952,000 (2021: NA).

The Group has considered investees’ business operations and market
environments, and concluded there is no evidence of significant fair
value changes since the investment date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets that are not
measured at fair value, including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, and other financial assets at amortized cost, and the
Group’s financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value,
including trade and other payables and lease liabilities, approximate
their fair values due to short maturities or the interest rates are close
to the market interest rates.
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B RABEREBELRIEMEA
Z(EREHNEEAHEBATHESS
BB A )RR T #5 ARG o

AEBHRRERGBHRBRR - BE
B MELANSFBIRZAEMNNE
HMERGER RTEYBRFEFEK
REBEKREELABEEAEENAR
B fil 5 AR AR Y T SR o

() EEREZHFEENBTLEE
"B
AmBERFRRTAEA
BERTHARNBREAES
FETAENH  REF B4R
1R 2 R A H A8 % LR A
B A R TR E B o A
CEARBETERMEIHE
SESIATERCRE F SR8
T RERRZHESEA
mEEENNRME -

REFEEREEBLETR
O+ ENSHERRRNERIRE -
AkEcEUNEFLEEND R
BENMKREHEXAEFERBEE
MENRSEAE - BREE
HRETFESREREERE R
Rk HE BIEsY AR BEER
MBEEER HMELENOKINE -
MERENER SHATLH
TEERERNBRABREERELR
% Hi R B KR UK &= 0% BT A AD BL 3R
Ko pBEINREREZERLE
EABONESELEM(CGU))
WA ke SsE BREZAN
19 I FE o

(b) FFENAREE

HMTEFEERTHENEZRE
E HERAAEBEERRENMGHE
R ETEE - ZEFHENRE
TAMHEBEERR KENUR
nBETRBARNE TRR
RER BB EMN B
HERBRKRKTHEB - FBER
B SESHR ER -

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets associated with
license arrangements

Intangible assets associated with license arrangements that have an
indefinite useful life or not available for use are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The Group obtained license
arrangements through acquisition for the purpose of continuing
the research and development work and commercialization of the
products, which are classified as license within intangible assets.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
intangible asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an intangible asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The impairment
assessment of intangible assets involves significant management'’s
estimates and judgements, including the expected achievement of
drug development milestones, success rate of commercialization,
the outcome of new drug development, the revenue growth rate of
each pipeline products under respective license arrangements and
the discount rate used in the multi-period excess earnings method.
The impairment test is based on the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the intangible asset is related. Key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 19.

(b) Fair value of measurement

Fair value of financial assets, in the absence of an active market, is
estimated by using appropriate valuation techniques. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions about credit risk, volatility and
liquidity risks associated with the instruments, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
Further details are disclosed in Note 5.
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(d)

(e)

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group's finite life intangible assets generated from its in-license
arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives, which are estimated to be the period of the in-
license arrangement. If the Group’s estimate of the duration of sale
of product is shorter than the arrangement period, then the shorter
period is used. Additional amortization is recognized if the estimated
useful economic lives are different from the previous estimation.
Useful lives are reviewed at the end of the year based on changes in
circumstances.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

For temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax assets, the
Group assesses the likelihood that the deferred income tax assets
could be recovered. Deferred tax assets are recognized based on the
Group's estimates and assumptions that they will be recovered from
taxable income arising from continuing operations in the foreseeable
future.

Variable arrangement in contract with customers

When the consideration in a contract with customers includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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7 DEER
TELBARECHBETCAAERR
HITES MTESERESLAEE
MAEHEE URERDERKRIRT
HEL R - Al KT AEE
MEERE—KEDE -

HE2022F 202112 B31BILEE -
BIRAREER DT -

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Group, who reviews the Group’s consolidated results as
a whole when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance. Therefore, it is determined that the Group’s operations
represent a single operating segment.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the geographical
information on the total revenues is as follows:

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021

ARET T AR T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR A Mainland China 2,668,454 97 2,461,986 98
HAh Others 81,227 3 56,488 2

2,749,681 2,518,474

REENEAINRESR TR NEE
MBEENNIFERBDEEBRBENT

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets, broken down by location of the assets, are
shown as follows:

HZE12A318 1L EE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021

AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
NN Mainland China 29,402 5 28,089 4
Hfth Others 541,464 95 607,884 96

570,866 635,973

HE2022F K2021F12A31HIEFE -
HAEFERWABTBRBBIONHER

The customers which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are listed

U as below:
BEZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
% %
=ZFEA Customer A 71% *
®FB Customer B * 70%
* DR10% * Less than 10%
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8 WA 8 Revenue
BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ARE T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R — FF ] 8 757 Recognized at a point in time
— EmiHERE — Product sales 2,749,681 2,518,474
9 Htg ARHEMEAX 9 Other income and other expenses
(a) HuwgA (a) Other income
HE12A318 L& E
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B %8 B (i) Government grants (i) 8,007 8,598
FEETRE U A Royalty income 1,823 1,764
B WA (i) Licensing income (ii) — 31,939
Htp Others 2,295 532
12,125 42,833
(b) HMpx (b) Other expenses
HZE12A31B 1L EE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HIREEEONER EE®IEG) Amortization of intangible assets associated
with licensing (ii) — 16,842
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(b) HpAX(#)

(i)

(if)

BAmMmpERRAER
B A 17 72 TR T 78 B) P B 5
ARG EMLEEA
FHE-

HR2020F2 8 » A& E R H
# N Al M Novartis Pharma
AG (Bl EDI LA
Th#k UWBEUTEE
WATBRER - A ERE
m(VBEREREHREA
RAMB(HREDHEE
B S8EETERED
25 @ 5 i 55 (NIDL) + K (i)
FHREEERERE R
BREBEOBEDZ - I
% BmEER - BEES-
AMEREHERERE A
% B B 42 ¥ (860,000,000
E T E R AR
424,770,0007T) 52 & &
& E Y 820204528 # %
BEREEFRAFANENE -

o

R EE B EREESR
EMMIDLZA - fEAB—18
BEMTH  EFRER
FEEBTTIRIEEERE
Mmoo YMAEEZNEE
FE - HAPR A B202042 A
UARZQ@QAEERNFTEH
BISEREMMIDLZ B
K (b)B202052 A24H & —
FERIBEHDURESE
R BENBIEHAIN
FTAREE M HE & ARKRS
PETE fth e A L F &) 4524 i
AR TEM R 4 &) 18
BHER -

(b) Other expenses (continued)

0)

(if)

Government grants are all income related and there exist no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

In February 2020, the Group entered into several agreements
with Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively
“Novartis”) to purchase all of the rights, title and interests
in, to and under the assets of (i) marketing authorization,
including but not limited to the import drug license (“IDL") of
Zometa product in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and (i) trademarks, domain names, commercial information,
medical information, records and marketing authorization data,
in each case relating solely and exclusively to Zometa product
in the PRC, from Novartis. The total purchase consideration of
USD60,000,000 (equivalent to RMB424,770,000) was recorded
as intangible assets and amortized over 5 years on a straightline
basis from February 2020.

Prior to the Group obtains the IDL of Zometa product in the
PRC, as a transitional arrangement, it was agreed that Novartis
would continue to sell Zometa product in the PRC and pay
the profit of the sales to the Group during the period from 24
February 2020 until the earlier of (a) the date of obtaining the
IDL for Zometa product in the PRC by the Group and (b) one
year from 24 February 2020 (the “Transition Period”). The
profit to be paid by Novartis to the Group during the Transition
Period would be recorded as licensing income in “Other
income” and related amortization expense in “Other expenses”.



(b) HpAX(#)

(if)

(&)

2021618 » RE BT K
BERAOIDLEZE WK A
BRNPBEEO WA
B A(IMAH]) - 720214
THF REBTKGF
BEAAEAMHEMDHEE
HEEEALAEER - #HE
202112 A3MBLEEE » K
EERERERNHEERE
RAEMAl 2BBAAR
#169,751,0007C * 48 & K
BREAEBRHEAIARE
60,572,0007T 5F A TH A X
Kl R RNEBEBERE
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T EEREREERH
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(b) Other expenses (continued)

(if)

(continued)

In January 2021, the Group completed the transfer of IDL for
Zometa, and became the Marketing Authorization Holder
("MAH") of Zometa in the PRC. In the second half of 2021,
the Group completed the conversion of the registered
distributor from Novartis to the Group in all the provinces in
the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognized the sales of Zometa product as “Revenue” with an
amount of RMB169,751,000 with corresponding amortization
expense of the intangible assets of RMB60,572,000 recorded
in “Cost of revenue”. Meanwhile, the Group recognized the
licensing income with an amount of RMB31,939,000 with
corresponding amortization expense of the intangible assets
of RMB16,842,000 recorded in “Other expenses” during the
period that the transitional arrangement was effective at
provincial level.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognized
all product sales of Zometa as “Revenue” and corresponding
amortization expense of the intangible assets in “Cost of
revenue”.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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10 Hfb(&E#E) Wz — FE 10 Other (losses)/gains — net

BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
LAREESFEHEEZH A Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
EHBEENEREEAAE — equity investments (Note 26)
BEEE — REEXE
(Fft 5% 26) (519) (1,411)
LAREBEEBEEZFH A Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
EHETNEREEAAE — transferable certificate of deposits (Note 26)
BEEE — B RFARE
(Fft 5% 26) 2,042 317
LAREBEEBEEZSFH A Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
EHETNEREEAAE — structured deposits (Note 26)
BE2E — EBETK
(Fft 5% 26) 2,183 3,684
LAREBEEBEEZSFH A Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
EHEENEREEAAE — debt investments (Note 26)
BEEE —EERE
(B 7% 26) (74,179) =
SNEE B (W) Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains (85,305) 14,948
E Others 386 1,580
(155,392) 19,118
11 BERARFRE 11 Finance costs, net
BEZ12A31BHLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
H|ITERF B WA Interest income from bank deposits 36,069 7,958
mE WA Finance income 36,069 7,958
BERAMEAX Interest expenses on borrowings (45,497) (39,299)
HEBEMN A (ME17) Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 17) (1,096) (892)
Al & B A Finance costs (46,593) (40,191)
B 78 B AN % 2R Finance costs, net (10,524) (32,233)
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12 RUEBITHBEX 12 Expenses by nature
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
Bt & AREBTT ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KaRkREHMGFEEZH Changes in inventories of finished goods and work
in process 30,825 (14,245)
BERAHAX Employee benefit expenses 13 517,816 445,980
HEMNBREMBFES® S Raw materials and trading merchandise consumed 432,830 442,247
MEGHEMEBHEML  Market development and business promotion
expenses 179,533 194,216
EEEEE Amortization of intangible assets 19 101,951 93,891
EmEEEREEBRE Impairment losses of intangible assets 19 99,467 57,104
R Transportation expense 72,413 37,833
ZiRREFEFRX Travel and meeting expenses 41,392 57,598
HERBE Professional service fees 37,946 33,122
MR BB RBRAKSEB  Testing and clinical trial fees for R&D
E=y 36,002 72,576
RETHEE Royalty fee 29,566 20,536
17 &5 MUR Write-downs of inventories 21 6,449 16,367
FREEESH Amortization of right-of-use assets 17 13,354 10,989
NAZREE AR Utilities and office expense 10,452 8,192
% A % B Auditors’ remuneration
— REBRB — Audit Services 4,028 3,880
— FEREBRY — Non-audit Services 3,200 —
M BEREZETE Depreciation of PP&E 18 3,592 2,966
EmHE% Listing expense — 7,735
Hm Others 34,994 31,332
WA - $56 K285 Total cost of revenue, sales and marketing
X TBRAX - HERX expenses, administrative expenses, R&D
& H A 5 2 4258 expenses and other expenses 1,655,810 1,522,319
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TE&  FEMIEA

VA B A % L 1 89 5 30 (P 5227)
RK2F R ()
FEAED BEARBRKHEAM
& R K2 (b)

Wages, salaries, bonuses
Share-based payments (Note 27)
Contributions to pension plans (a)

Housing funds, medical insurance and other social welfare

contributions (b)

BZEZEN2AMMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20214
2021
ARBFT
RMB'000

318,591
63,013
26,239

38,137

(a)

(b)

B IE P E AR EMBE 6% R
WEE AEEAEFTHEES
EREE R N O SR N /O
AEBEREZMEBBKA(BETL
B e F2MREL BB L
R)BAKI8% T AMATEIER - M
ANEBZEBABANIS%HE23%
(FZAE—ELR)ZFAREIHEER -
ERmERUIINERBERFAOE
BARTEE—FTEE - AR
BRARKEEEEMRIA
BEWMAFARKERIEML -

B E2022F12A31B L FEE - &K
SEHARERARTBTEEBHX
Z AR AT EI AR B 68
FA154,0008 T (HHERARE
137,0007T)(20214F : 90,0007 J©
(2 & »N A R ¥75,0007T))
MmM2022412 A318 A & B A]
A 1E R 1K 3R B i FROK T 0 48 53R (Gt
o T AR BN BT R+ S 5E26(2) R
Frit) 566,000 T (HHERAR
#59,0007T) (20214F : 219,000/
7T HERAR179,0007T) °

AEERTENESEE#ES
ZEBRNEENERERAES -
BERR KERRBRMEAME
BHEeRRE - AEBEEAR
BEEHFSHNMIT%E23% (R
—ELR)MBREESHER K
SERZEESNEE UEH
RN EFAR -

e

(a)

(b)

445,980

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement schemes for its employees
in the PRC. The Group’'s employees make monthly contributions
to the schemes at approximately 8% of the relevant income
(comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus, and subject
to maximum caps), while the Group contributes 18% to 23% of
such relevant income, subject to certain ceiling and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of postretirement benefits beyond
the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement schemes are
responsible for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees.

HKD154,000 (equivalent to RMB137,000) (2021: HKD90,000,
equivalent to RMB75,000) of forfeited contributions by the Group
on behalf of its employees who left the schemes prior to vesting
fully in such contributions were utilized during the year ended 31
December 2022, leaving HKD66,000 (equivalent to RMB59,000)
(2021: HKD219,000, equivalent to RMB179,000) available as at 31
December 2022 for utilization by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions as described in paragraph 26(2) of Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules.

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other employee social insurance plan.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
approximately 17% to 23% of the salaries of the employees, subject
to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is
limited to the contributions payable in each period.
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13 Employee benefit expenses (continuved)

(c) EERARER (c¢) Benefits and interests of directors
—EEHe — Directors’ emoluments
HE202212A31BLFE - K The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable
SEMER EBEAABDGRES by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out as
B F M T follows:
EEAES
I5 §ef  BALER-— BRRRAIAt
B4 RE@FHE HEEAMR  HEEEEH Ezhg BEEL ROMEEX ait
Housing
funds, medical
Pension costs- insurance
Wages, defined and other Other Share-based
salaries, contribution  social welfare employee Discretionary  compensation
bonuses plans  contributions benefits  Director's fees bonus expenses Total
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HZ2005128318 For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2022
HiEs Executive Director
HERE Mr. ZHAO Hong 7,670 63 Ik 134 - - 9,002 17,030
FHTES Non-executive Directors
Ll Zhenfu’t & Mr. LI Zhenfu - - - - - - - -
Daniel Luzius VASELLAf £ Dr. Daniel Luzius VASELLA - - - - 658 - - 658
LIN Shirley Yi-HsienZ (i)~ Ms. LIN Shirley Yi-Hsien (i - - - - - - - -
FRIL) Ms. LI Quan (i) - - - - - - - -
PR b ke Mr. SHI Cen - - - - - - - -
TEELL() Ms. WANG Haixia (v - - - - - - - -
BUkHTES Independent Non-
executive Directors
BEEEL() Dr. LIU Guoen (i) - - - - 658 - - 658
CHEN Ping () Dr. CHEN Ping (i) - - - - 658 - - 658
GU Alex Yushao % £(v)  Mr. GU Alex Yushao (i) - - - - 658 - - 658
Wendy HAYESZ £ (iv) Ms. Wendy HAYES (i) - - - - 658 - - 658
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13 EERABXZ® 13 Employee benefit expenses (ontinued)
(c) EERARERS @) (c) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
—EEME () — Directors” emoluments (continued)

B EZ2021F 128318 I FE » &
EEEN BN AARERES

The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out as

REMAT : follows:
fREARS
T H&M  BRALER- BERBALL
T RERMGE  HERARR  HBEERT EZig BEEL  REIBRX ait
Housing
funds, medical
Pension costs- insurance
defined and other Other Share-based
Wages, contribution social welfare employee Discretionary ~ compensation
salaries, bonuses plans contributions benefits  Director's fees bonus expenses Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE011512A318 For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2021
YrES Executive Director
BELE Mr. ZHAQ Hong 7,162 57 64 124 - - 18,433 25,840
FHTES Non-executive Directors
U Zhenfuft & Mr. LI Zhenfu = = = = = = = =
Daniel Luzius VASELLATE £ Dr. Daniel Luzius VASELLA = = - - 569 - — 569
LIN Shirley Yi-HsienZ ()~ Ms. LIN Shirley Yi-Hsien () — — — — — — — —
R L) Ms. LI Quan (i = = = = = = = =
h4%4 Mr. SHI Cen = = = = = = = =
B SR L) Ms. WANG Xiaozhuo (ii) = = = = = = = =
IEERLN) Ms. WANG Haixia (v) = = = = = = = =
BUEHES Independent Non-
executive Directors
HERET( Dr. LIU Guoen (iv) - - - - 569 = = 569
CHEN Ping £ (i) Dr. CHEN Ping (i) = = = = 569 - - 569
GU Alex Yushao % £(v) — Mr. GU Alex Yushao (i) - - - - 569 — — 569
Wendy HAYESZ £ (iv) Ms. Wendy HAYES (iv) = = = - 569 — - 569
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() EEEMRES#)

—EEME (@)

(i) LIN Shirley Yi-HsienZ £ » 7
20212 ASAEEZEERARTA
FRITES -

(ii) R 2+ W2022612 4198 #
RNARBEFNITESE -

(i) T B 2 &+ RN2021F6H16H
WADNFBTENITES -

(iv)  ZIBB1E+ - CHEN Pingf& + -
Gu Alex Yushao 5t 4 K& Wendy
HAYES %2 = 7202142 A19 8 #
ZEERARRABILIENITE
$ °

(v) T8 8 &+ 12021 6A16H
BEZERARRENITES -

—EFRINEFIRBEBEF

RE F20229F 20214128318
tEE TETNEEEST
3RO 48 A Sk BE B 18 A o

— BB REERE M
BEG XTI E

B E 20224 2021512 A31H
ILFE - AATLRRER G E
ERBAEAME=FIAER
Y(E -

— BREE - AZH12HE
REBHAES - EEHRA
1t X 49 1B & #

20229 K2021%1283180 » I
mERES ABHOXER
EROER EERREMR
HEY -

(c)

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
— Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(i) Ms. LIN Shirley Yi- Hsien was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 5 February 2021.

(i) Ms. Li Quan resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on 19
December 2022.

(iii) Ms. WANG Xiaozhuo resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company on 16 June 2021.

(iv) Dr. LIU Guoen, Dr. CHEN Ping, Mr. GU Alex Yushao, and Ms. Wendy
HAYES were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 19 February 2021.

(v) Ms. WANG Haixia was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 16 June 2021.

— Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

— Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services.

— Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings arrangement in favor of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such directors.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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(c) ESENRER®) (c) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
—EBRXE ZHREH — Directors’ material interest in transactions,
R E A R 2 arrangements or contracts
B 220224 &20215612A31R No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
IEFEFRKFRNEMER @ K the Group’s business in which the Company was a party and in which
AEMEIVEAEBEEKE a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
MAARBESTEESHER indirectly subsisted at the end of the years or at any time during the
FEAEZNEARS  TH years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
REH o
(d) EEEEFHFMAL (d) Five highest paid individuals
REZ2022F12A31BLFE - The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
rEBAEEaMEe AT BE Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 include one director
—ZEEFQONF:—H)(HEMe (2021: one) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown
RO R £l 5 #7) o BB £2022 in analysis above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four
FR2021F12A31BIEFE - B individuals during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
AR EALTHBMES 0T as follows:
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20214F
2021
AR T
RMB’000
TEMFH < Wages and salaries 9,733
[ =gl Discretionary bonuses 4,228
LA B 19 4 2 5 69 < 50 Share-based payments 7,982
ETEAES  BERERN Housing funds, medical insurance and other
H fh#t & 18 | it 5% social welfare contributions 363
H e B4R F Other employee benefits 151
22,457

BFFHNBATHENSSHFMAL
(TEREZ)NAHNDT:

i)
A R #3,000,0017TE
A R #4,000,0007T
A R#4,000,0017TE
A R#5,000,0007C
A R #5,000,0017C &
A K #6,000,0007T
A R #10,000,0017C &
A R #11,000,0007T

Excluding the director, the number of highest paid individuals whose

remunerations for each year fell within the following band is as

follows:

Emolument band
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000

RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000

RMB5,000,001 to RMB6,000,000

RMB10,000,001 to RMB11,000,000

BZ12A31MBLFE

Year ended 31 December

20214
2021
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14 FR8BBX 14 Income tax expense
AEBBOMMERAZSNOT The income tax expense of the Group are analyzed as follows:
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AREBTT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ENEA T 13 4 Current income tax 84,267 84,973
RIEFTIS T Deferred income tax 458 17,539
P18 BiBA X Income tax expense 84,725 102,512
AEEBAABENRIBEERNREKAE The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount
ARASBEETERBMNBENBXRFE that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profit of the entities
BHMEmEE REOT: comprising the Group as follows:
BZ12A3MBALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AREBTT ARB T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FT 15 B A0 7 E Profit before income tax 940,080 1,025,873
RERAMETE () Calculated at applicable tax rates (a) 64,269 84,642
B 78 #0 74 (b) PRC withholding tax (b) 5,755 5,723
S B] Bt AT 1S B BR 89 B 2 (o) Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes (c) 21,351 17,167
KERBELEMSHEENTIE  Tax losses for which no deferred income tax assets was
& 18 recognized 395 3,009
FALATARERTIEEE Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses (16) (1,555)
AT BEREE Over provision in prior years (7.029) (6,474)
FrEBimx Income tax expense 84,725 102,512
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(a)

(b)

(c)

B PR 1S

AEBREERBALEHD
B9 B 0 R B TR 1T 0 4
MEE - REREG - B2
55 70 6 38 B R B $R25% #0 B K
HEMEE -

ARRAREETHEBARAAR
BHEREARENHEHS
MKW ERLERAF
WEABMNHEREMSHR -

EEBAMALNERAHN
EBNNER  B2EEBLER
i BB B0 B R 58.25% ¢ B EP
2 BI4216.5% K Bt B8 Fi o

FEIFE I
BREEANPEARLMBER
WEH  EHRBEK B RR R
2008F1A1BE 2 & EE R FE R
HNBEEEERERE  AEA
5% 310% Ky T 3= 45 4% 78 0 P
BH - BB ARIIERESR
AMKZAENBER - KAEHE
ERBRAIAEEFECENES
BB E LB RPN
BRARIKKRD KR BIRS%HE
MBEBRETHBEBAE M
31) °

A B AT 18 B HIBRAVBAZ
AN E R B 22022 F K 2021412
A3ALLFERAMBHERE
EHRAEARAKANBERRBB
BREBRSRBEMNAE M
BERFMAENBBATEN L
BORATHRZEBBEER
FEDHBELERLAK -

(a)

(b)

()

Current income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China was calculated at tax rate of 25% on the assessable
profits for the periods presented, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as exempted companies with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, are
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits
tax, of which, the tax rate is 8.25% for assessable profits in the first
HKD2 million and 16.5% for any assessable profits in excess.

PRC withholding tax

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends distributed
by a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with
respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008 are generally subject
to a 5% or 10% withholding income tax, depending on the country
incorporation of the foreign investors. The Group has recognized
deferred tax liabilities at 5% withholding tax rate for undistributed
profits of its subsidiaries in the PRC in accordance with the double
taxation treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong (Note
31).

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes

The Group’s non-deductible expenses during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 mainly represented business and
entertainment expenses that exceed the deductible ceiling and
exchange losses arising from non-trade balances pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of
the PRC and Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong.
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Il

15 Earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective period.

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RATHEE AELFEAFE Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 855,355 923,361
BEITEE R IME TS Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(F B (thousand shares) 673,221 651,801
BREARBN (AT AR K Basic earnings per share (expressed in RMB per share)
) 1.27 1.42

by EBREBRANDERBREHIR
FMBEBABEEINLTBRE
MREBEITEIINE BRI E
FHEEEBE - B 220227
F2021ENA3MBLEE - 8K
MERRMEERITE KT

(b)  Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assumed
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted earnings per share
was calculated by considering the ordinary shares issuable upon
the exercise of outstanding share options (using the treasury stock

FOEREEBETEINLS method).
fRifmst & (EREFREE) -
BZ12A31MBALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR ARB T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RAGHEE ABLFAFE Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 855,355 923,361
BEITEE R INE T E Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(F &) (thousand shares) 673,221 651,801
ERENEEYE Diluted impact of share options 34,919 43,558
GREERFMHTMARIMETF  Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted
HE(FR) earnings per share (thousand shares) 708,140 695,359
FREERT Diluted earnings per share
(AEBRARBXRT) (expressed in RMB per share) 1.21 1.33
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16 BRE 16 Dividends
2022458 4 IR R RN R R B F In May 2022, upon approval obtained from the shareholders at the Annual
ANEg LE#E%E - AKNDQ A E £2021 General Meeting, the Company declared dividends of RMB204,545,000
FRAMBLEFEERREARE (HKDO.35 per share, equals to HKD239,228,000) for the year ended 31
204,545,000t (FAR0.3548 7T - #EE R December 2021. The Company fully paid such dividends on 22 June 2022.

239,228,000/ Jt) © &R A &) B 12022
FOANABBHRNZERE -

202128 - ARRAMERKRKRREIR In February 2021, the Company declared dividends of RMB776,520,000 to
f& B A R#776,520,0007T ° 7220214 then shareholders of the Company. The Company fully paid such dividends
3A2H - ER BB ER ETWH on 2 March 2021, the date before its listing on the Main Board of the HKEx.

HA - ARRAREBBURNZERE -

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F 1 E AT AR B Dividends payable at beginning of the year — 52,199
FRNE KK S Declaration of dividends during the year 204,545 776,520
FAERKRE Dividends paid during the year (205,622) (827,303)
fE N Z% Exchange differences 1,077 (1,416)
F R JE AR B Dividends payable at end of the year — —
B IE2023F3A30B 2 ESF R - In accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated on
NEIERAREIR N REBAREER0.39 30 March 2023, the Company recommended a final dividend to the
BT ° shareholders at HKD0.39 per share.
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17 Right-of-use assets

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

HEWE
Leased properties
AR%T T
RMB’000
R2021F1818 At 1 January 2021
B AR Cost 77,982
BT #H Accumulated amortization (69,172)
REFEE Net book amount 8,810
HZ2021F12831ALEFEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FREFE Opening net book amount 8,810
& X =% Exchange differences (263)
NE Additions 24,425
BIHE A Amortization charge (10,989)
FRE@EFE Closing net book amount 21,983
7A2021F12831H At 31 December 2021
B AR Cost 49,850
RET#EH Accumulated amortization (27,867)
REFE Net book amount 21,983
HZE2022F12A831B L FE Year ended 31 December 2022
FYER®EFE Opening net book amount 21,983
ME 5, = 58 Exchange differences 215
= Additions 9,985
HEE A Amortization charge (13,354)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 18,829
7"2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
R AR Cost 35,320
RET#H Accumulated amortization (16,491)
REFEE Net book amount 18,829
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17 {Eﬁﬁifgﬁis‘:/ 17 Right-Of-USE assets (continued)
EffrElEREGHRERERS The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated
HAEAREENTI &5 : statement of cash flows contain the following amounts relating to leases:

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FREEESH Amortization of right-of-use assets 13,354 10,989

FER X Interest expenses 1,096 892

FRESHBEENSTH Expenses relating to short-term leases 659 242

wEEHHENHE SR Cash outflow for leases as operating activities (1,755) (1,134)

BEEHHEEMNR ST D Cash outflow for leases as financing activities (12,482) (10,331)
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18 Property, plant and equipment

BAGARRE Bl HEWEEE &t
Office furniture Leasehold
and equipment Vehicle improvements Total
ARET T ARET T AR®T AR® TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R202151818 At 1 January 2021
A Cost 44,604 561 2,751 47,916
2HWE Accumulated depreciation (39,150) (561) (2,751) (42,462)
REFE Net book amount 5,454 = = 5,454
HBZ20215 128310 LEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FNEEFE Opening net book amount 5,454 = = 5,454
ERES Exchange differences 1) = = 1)
NE Additions 5,700 — — 5,700
T & Disposals (272) = = (272)
nELW Depreciation charge (2,966) = = (2,966)
FREEZE Closing net book amount 7,895 = = 7,895
#2021512A31A At 31 December 2021
A Cost 47,897 561 2,751 51,209
REHE Accumulated depreciation (40,002) (561) (2,751) (43,314)
REFEE Net book amount 7,895 — = 7,895
HBZ2022512A31BLLEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FNEEFE Opening net book amount 7,895 — — 7,895
EXEE Exchange differences 173 - — 173
wNE Additions 5,768 - — 5,768
& Disposals (448) — = (448)
MEXH Depreciation charge (3,592) — — (3,592)
FERREFE Closing net book amount 9,796 — = 9,796
$2022412 8318 At 31 December 2022
A Cost 57,585 561 1,521 59,667
BEIE Accumulated depreciation (47,789) (561) (1,521) (49,871)
BREEE Net book amount 9,796 — — 9,796
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18 W% - MEKRE =) 18 Property, plant and equipment (ontinved)
MERXBHAGHIZEAKRERUAT Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated statement of
Al comprehensive income as follows:

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000

KA B AR Cost of revenue 577 1,280

HEREHMX Sales and marketing expenses 1,136 954

THHAX Administrative expenses 1,718 573

WMERX R&D expenses 161 159

3,592 2,966
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19 BLEE

19 Intangible assets

AREZTFEA [EEX(4:]
RENEREE EVEE
(B &£ (b)) (B &£ (<)) B4 &5t
Intangible Intangible
assets that are  assets that are
not ready for commercialized
use (Note(b)) (Note(c)) Software Total
AR TR AR TR AR TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2021€181A At 1 January 2021
B A Cost 287,361 465,878 14,360 767,599
RET 8y Accumulated amortization — (84,171) (11,162) (95,333)
o (B &5 18 Impairment losses (19,575) = = (19,575)
REFEE Net book amount 267,786 381,707 3,198 652,691
BZE2021F12A31B L EE Year ended 31 December 2021
FYER@FE Opening net book amount 267,786 381,707 3,198 652,691
PE 5 2= %8 Exchange differences (3,847) (10,044) (29) (13,920)
B (M 5 () Additions (Note (a)) 114,687 = 3,632 118,319
(=3 Transfer (206,317) 206,317 — —
BB A () Amortization charge (Note (d)) - (90,884) (3,007) (93,891)
BB B 1B (B 5 (b)), (i) Impairment losses (Note (b)(i), (c)(i)) (16,104) (41,000) — (57,104)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 156,205 446,096 3,794 606,095
"2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021
B AR Cost 191,436 663,133 17,992 872,561
g 3 Accumulated amortization - (176,037) (14,198) (190,235)
VRN SR | Impairment losses (35,231) (41,000) = (76,231)
REFEE Net book amount 156,205 446,096 3,794 606,095
HZE2022F12A831B L FE Year ended 31 December 2022
FHER®EFE Opening net book amount 156,205 446,096 3,794 606,095
X = Exchange differences 14,575 37,162 32 51,769
N E (M) Additions (Note (a)) 41,318 42,660 1,817 85,795
5 B A (P 5 (d)) Amortization charge (Note (d)) = (99,723) (2,228) (101,951)
BB B 18 (B 5 (b)) Impairment losses (Note (b)(ii)) (99,467) = = (99,467)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 112,631 426,195 3,415 542,241
7A2022%12831H At 31 December 2022
B AR Cost 252,106 762,382 19,625 1,034,113
REt Y Accumulated amortization — (295,187) (16,210) (311,397)
B & 1A Impairment losses (139,475) (41,000) = (180,475)
R ¥ B Net book amount 112,631 426,195 3,415 542,241
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B &

(a)

(b)

HE2021F1N2ANBLEERBET
& E Ty B R A % B B 8 HSPI0-PI3K
% #E LA & DANYELZA® (3F 78 ¥ % 1)
REBMAUSERESIAEDHERE

E-

HE2022F1283NB L FEFE &
& E 5 08 B Vaborem IR #E N — R IX #E
SINEYERNBREMNK -

EATEANRESIAZHEREN
BRVEE

0]

HE2022F12A31B L EE -
TR EMER2EHE
REMHZERD Xl
RIWE  FERAELERRE
BEMFAFTNTBRR A
SEUETEREREEAD
BIELEEETR2ERE A
B8 %A AR %99,467,000
JC (20214 : A R 16,104,000
) REHEERERERF
HREBITHAX -

Note:

(@)

(b)

Addition of intangible assets in the year ended 31 December 2021 was due to
the Group’s acquisition of the license of HSP90-PI3K and milestone payments
for in-licensed drugs including DANYELZA® (Naxitamab) and Oravig.

Addition of intangible assets in the year ended 31 December 2022 represented
the acquisition of the license of Vaborem and the milestone payment for an in-
licensed drug, Zometa.

Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, after considering the
expected achievement of drug development milestones, success
rate of commercialization, outcome of new drug development and
financial conditions of licensors of pipeline products, the Group made
full impairment against intangible assets associated with certain
pipeline products with the total amount of RMB99,467,000 (2021:
RMB16,104,000), which were recognized as administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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(b) BEBRTAEAWRESIAZHEM
BHNETLEE (&)

(i)

2022F12 8318 + & K A
FRAERENSNEES A
ZHERNEFEEREMEA
A R #112,631,0007T (20214
12A318 : A & #156,205,000
T  ZEEFREENFER
EBEARCERBEEZERLEE
FENESELEN(REE
EBEN)OATKRE S EET -
HEMBRSEEEMRENE
RE@m - ZHMBBEFEB L
TEMYSERERETSE
EREAS  UWEAREE
WHERAE  EASEMER
WA kEEE AABEDE
REZEBERE L BAEE
BIEEARAEREEZILN
B AEIBHERBENR
N T 3 4T B 7 2 R A R B
MERSEENSHR  HHEE
Wt EE dn /) T8 ORI BA R (62024 4
F2039F) fEH & ©

EEMERNGITRATDE
RERERHANOHELCER -
WABEERDER S RET
BEAERATEARESIAR
HEMNRSREVEENRE
HRXCREEBRBLEE
BRI B2 A 2R (W TR A 5
BERRMGREZ)ME

MARBEERI TIERALL
BAR K EANBKE - BE
A 2 DA R TR HOR R (B AR
28 REARIABOES
LEFTIEE -

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Note: (continued)

(b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use (continued)

(if)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of intangible assets
associated with in-license arrangements that were not ready for use
without impairment indicator was RMB112,631,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB156,205,000). Annual impairment test is performed in respect of
these intangible assets based on the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the intangible asset is related. The
appropriate CGU is at the product level. The annual impairment test
is performed for each pipeline product by engaging an independent
appraiser to estimate fair value less cost to sell as the recoverable
amount of each pipeline product. The fair value is based on the multi-
period excess earnings method and the Group estimated the forecast
period till the year from 2024 to 2039 for its pipeline products based on
the timing of clinical development and regulatory approval, commercial
ramp up to reach expected peak revenue potential, and the length of
exclusivity for each pipeline product.

The estimated revenue of each pipeline product is based on
management’s expectations of timing of commercialization. Revenue
growth rates are based on the key inputs, such as the estimated market
penetration rates and market sizes etc., of each intangible asset from
the expected commercialization for each of the individual intangible
asset associated with in-license arrangements that is not ready for use.

The costs and operating expenses are estimated as a percentage over
the revenue forecast period based on the current margin levels of
comparable companies with adjustments made to reflect the expected
future price changes.
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19

BILEE

B (&)

(b) BERUFEAHNBEESIAREM
BNETREE (&)
iy (&)

ERAMMBEREDBBRLLE
RMRAEEN —REBRT S
Bk EXBEAREETER
BEFARERRANE M5
HE - BE - RAFERR KR
REEESERTHERE) -

AEBEBEEN-—EETDH
MR R B D — BB D
B U A E RO AT SRR B
AOBNEECEERENEE
AW E S A EZRE - AT
BEHMBERFTE -

AR EHHE20224 2021612 A
BEFEMEMA A KD &5
R ESES N EME
HEEREMBNEENY

19 Intangible assets (ontinveq)

Note: (continued)

(b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The discount rates used are post-tax and represent the Group’s general
business and market risk and were derived from capital asset pricing
model by taking applicable market data into account, such as risk free
rate, market premium, beta, company specific risk and size premium.

The Group performed sensitivity test by increasing the discount rate
by one percentage point or decreasing the revenue growth rate by
one percentage point, which are the key assumptions determining the
recoverable amount of each intangible assets, with all other variables
held constant.

The key assumptions used for the calculations of the recoverable
amounts and the impacts on the amounts by which the recoverable
amounts above their respective carrying amount (headroom) for each of
the pipeline products as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as bellow:

ZRERAHNERBRENAT:
EMERA Pipeline product A
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
202245 20214F
2022 2021
A 3R & Discount rate 17% 17%
WA R X Revenue growth rate -0.3%-82.4% -0.3%-30.5%
AkEeEARET T Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 216,943 556,201
EEHEARETT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 21,035 19,127
#RE Headroom 195,908 537,074
BRI M RENTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (10,352) (28,469)
WA R DEBRENTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (8,416) (20,800)
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19 BFREE:

19 Intangible assets (continued)

MisE: (&) Note: (continued)
(b) EARAHEANTES A RN (b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
NWEFREE(HF) ready for use (continued)
(i) (%) (i) (continued)
EMERB Pipeline product B
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
A3 K Discount rate 17% 17%
WA B R X Revenue growth rate 3.5%-135.7% 5.0%-135.7%
Al e S E(ARET L) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 792,249 681,952
REBEARE T T Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 48,752 44,630
# 8 Headroom 743,497 637,322
AR R M BENTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (64,462) (61,991)
WAEBRRRDHBREOTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (36,318) (40,852)
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BaE: (&)

(b)

BRI &

AR X
AkEERARET T
REEANRETT

R H

IR EEMHBRBENTE
WABRR RO EHREOTE

(c)

BERTEANRESAZHER
BWETEE (&)

(if)

(&)

EHEmMC

Discount rate

Revenue growth rate
Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand)

Headroom

ERERBREENGEBRRD
ERERHE AEERR W
AEEEERRETLEER
WEEEAERENEFNEE
BRRELAEAGRES BT
SERAEFREERLETR
E&E -

BiE LM TFEER BE
BREZREBEHEEEN R
20224 K%2021412 A31H £ K
A AMRESI ALTHAER
WEFMEEYERE -

HEBHXLLHWRESIAZRHFEEBY
BRILEE

)

202146 - AR ERES| A%
MRENHEERBEEZ
NEBEFENETHERY
HMEBRRRBEEFER K
T ®EE Mo R2021F12 831
B - A% B S 5 78R % RS
ANEY®HHEE fHIRBELR
% A R %41,000,0007T bA #5 8
BMEFEENEREMRS
HA Bl 558 o & E20214F12
A31BLEE REEBBAR
#41,000,0007c R & Hr 2 E K
ERANBRABTHRAX -

Note: (continued)

(b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use (continued)

(if)

Carrying amount (in RMB thousand)

Impact headroom by increasing discount rate
Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate

(continued)
Pipeline Product C

M12A31H
As at 31 December

20214
2021

T 5E FANA
I3 FNA
i FANA
i ANA

i FANA
i ANA
3 FANA

Considering there was still sufficient headroom based on the sensitivity
assessments above, the Group believes that a reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions, on which the Group has based
its determination of the recoverable amount of each above intangible
assets, would not cause their carrying amounts to exceed their
respective recoverable amounts.

Based on the results of above assessments, except for impaired
intangibles that were disclosed, there was no impairment for the
intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that were not
ready for use as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(c) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are
commercialized

)

In 2021, certain in-licensed drug failed to be enrolled in the list of the
fourth volume-based procurement. Consequently, the Group rearranged
the business plan for the in-licensed drug, which led to an uncertainty
in future sales. As at 31 December 2021, the Group revisited the
sales forecast of the in-licensed drug and recorded an impairment
provision of RMB41,000,000 to write down the carrying value of the
related intangible asset to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
of RMB41,000,000 was recognized as administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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eAD? .
19 BFEEE 19 Intangible assets (coninved)
MisE: (&) Note: (continued)
(0 HEBELHBERSIAZEHEBEN (c) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are
BREE(#) commercialized (continued)
(i) (&) (i) (continued)
720225128310 - B B F 8 As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of intangible assets
ERBHNRESI AT HIER associated with in-license arrangements that had commenced sales and
WEFEENEEERARKE amortization was RMB426,195,000 (2021: RMB446,096,000).
426,195,0007T (20214F : A R¥&
446,096,0007T) °
B E2022F12A31B EFE I No impairment provision was recognized for the intangible assets
EHEANEE® E LN ERESD associated with in-license arrangements that are commercialized for the
AZHHRBHEREEDNR year ended 31 December 2022.
BEEE -
(d) #HEFEIZISHAGHZERFZRU (d) Amortization expenses have been charged to the consolidated
TEH: statement of comprehensive income as follows:
BZ12A3MALEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥TT AR®ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
L NN Cost of revenue 99,723 74,042
HEREHMAX Sales and marketing expenses 1,879 2,536
THEAX Administrative expenses 134 181
MERX R&D expenses 215 290
i ) Other expenses (Note 9) — 16,842
101,951 93,891
20 Hth&EE 20 Other assets
#12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBEAAGEN ST A Financial instruments at amortized costs:
—HE%e — Rental deposits 5,301 5,156
FEFEERRBMRAT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 4 E#i%5 ANNUAL REPORT 185



& O B 1% ¥R R B A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

21 FE 21 Inventories
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R 8 Raw materials 39,485 36,310
2K M Finished goods 101,075 138,001
et Work in progress — 349
140,560 174,660
ERGFERFOEERENERFE Write-downs of inventories were recognized for the amount by which
MNEBEBRAGFEEMRR - LT AEGH2 the carrying amount of the inventories exceeds its net realizable value
AREENMRAKRE—F - BE and was recorded in “cost of revenue” in the consolidated statement of
2022F12A3MB I FE WM F & MUK A comprehensive income. Write-downs of inventories were RMB6,449,000 for
A R #6,449,0007T (20214 : A R #& the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB16,367,000).
16,367,0007T) °
22 EZRWFIE 22 Trade receivables
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 W RIE Trade receivables 780,962 546,512
BB S EWGRIB R E R E Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables — —
B REWKKIE — F58 Trade receivables — net 780,962 546,512
M2022F 2021128318 » AEEE As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, fair values of the trade receivables of
SEWRENAAEERELREER the Group approximated their carrying amounts.
= o
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22 Trade receivables (ontinuved)

(@) Aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date is as

ZHRBROTMAT follows:
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
61E A A Up to 6 months 775,258 546,512
6Z121& A 6 to 12 months 5,704 —
780,962 546,512
NEBEBNESEWRARE —RKRE The Group's trade receivables are generally collectible within 90 days
EEHHEMNIORRNIE - B S5 from the invoice date. No interest is charged on the trade receivables.
JE e R IB A UH B e
(b) Z U IEIAT 5 &G : (b) Trade receivables were denominated in following currencies:
M12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 780,177 545,665
ETT usD 464 260
T HKD 321 587
780,962 546,512
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22 %-J\J%EELI&/TAI,\w_

(9]

AR ER B e A (BB B 75 S 5 R R
FIORHBL T EFEED K
RENEHAEEBE  ERE
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RPAER - BAHEBREXTDE
KA P &3R5 A R AR
BHWELEEBR ELER
’Zi“‘ﬂﬂ%l«x&ﬂﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%%

FRHEERUBKBRENNEBRRZ
F‘I%E’\Jaﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁuﬁ%Wa/m

20224 20214128318 » H
R 7% 5 B W 3R 0B I £ HE R D 8%

ZHESERNBELBERRD
u:l/ﬁ ’ E_:[ngfﬁﬂ_%\ E’JEﬁfJ—
AR B T ORISR R A E A S 0 i
EHEEEEBR/ ) - RAEE
£ 5 2 72022F K2021F12A
BSHMEHGEEEERENR
COVID-198) %2 & K # A A8 B Al
e A = I E R20226F &
2021 F 12 A3TAMTEHEERBE
MB&R/A -

HtRBEE

22 Trade receivables (ontinueq)

(c)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses of trade receivables, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of related customers
and the corresponding historical credit losses. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
minimal as these receivables had no history of default, most amount
of trade receivables were subsequently settled, and there was no
unfavorable current condition and forecast future economic condition
identified. The Group considered the impact of COVID-19 and
incorporated related forward-looking factors to measure expected
credit losses as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and determined that
the expected credit loss remained to be minimal as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

the expected credit loss was

23 Other current assets

M12A831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T ARB T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBHEA AT ENSRB TA:  Financial instruments at amortized costs:
— EHFER — Time deposits 767,106 72,759
— BRRE R B R W KB — Purchase rebate receivables 9,439 6,940
— W F B — Interest receivables 7,834 527
—HEZe — Rental deposits 263 624
H A Others:
— ERERARE — Prepaid clinical trial fee 13,481 4,971
— A Y Bl 18 {E & — Value-added Tax recoverable 4,357 —
— FER B — Prepaid insurance 470 2,454
—MEEBX — Advance to employee — 259
—H At — Others 1,485 1,678
804,435 90,212
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23 Other current assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of other current assets
were primarily denominated in USD (2021: HKD) and approximated their
fair values at each of the reporting dates. Other financial assets that are
measured at amortized costs included time deposits, receivables from
licensing income, purchase rebate receivables from the suppliers, rental
deposits and interest receivables were considered to be of low credit risk,
and thus the impairment provision recognized during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 was limited to 12 months expected losses. The
expected credit losses were minimal as these receivables had no history
of default, certain amount of receivables were subsequently settled, and
there was no unfavorable current conditions and forecast future economic
conditions identified as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

M12831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REFEXARFERS Cash in bank and in hand 330,182 481,199
3@ BRE B BER 47 3 Short-term bank deposits with maturity less than 3 months 1,341,647 1,646,289
1,671,829 2,127,488
A3 &8 E: Denominated in:
M12A31H
As at 31 December

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 701,118 341,131
HKD 502,950 1,090,319
usD 466,882 695,999
Others 879 39
1,671,829 2,127,488
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25 REFESNERMIA 25 Financial instruments by category
R128318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®B T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000

REAMEEEBEREIMEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
B AT ENSREE:  Financial assets at amortized costs:

—RekReEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 1,671,829 2,127,488
— B 5 R FHIE — Trade receivables 780,962 546,512
— HitmehEE(FEIETENMN  — Other current assets (excluding prepayments)

HIA) 784,642 80,850
— HEECIEIEEMNFKIE  — Other assets (excluding prepayments and tax

Ko JE WL F 5K receivables) 5,301 5,156

NWAREBEGEBHEZEH A Financial assets at FVOCI:
HthrmksNemEE:
— UWAREEFEBEZEHF — Long-term investments measured at FVOCI
AEMEERSORPRE 123,295 329,449

UARBESFEBEHEE ST A Financial assets at FVPL:
EHEZNEREE:

— UAREEFEHBEEEF — Short-term investments measured at FVPL
AEHEENEHRE 202,701 60,188
— UARBEFEBEZE S5 — Long-term investments measured at FVPL
AEHEENRARE 19,806 91,524
3,588,536 3,241,167
REVHEEEBBERESIHWAME Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
HEBEKA AT ENSRBBME:  Financial liabilities at amortized costs:
— B R HMEMNFE(CREIE — Trade and other payables (excluding salaries and bonus
FET & RIEAT) payables) 279,966 444,924
— fax — Borrowings 832,558 1,144,702
— HHEEaE — Lease liabilities-current 12,714 11,391
— JFRIHBEESRE — Lease liabilities-non-current 7,355 11,175
1,132,593 1,612,192
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26 EREERKE 26 Financial assets and investments
(a) UAREEFTEEHEEHH (a) Financial assets at FVPL
AEHEZNESRMEE
LARBEAEEEZETHHA The financial assets at FVPL comprise the following investments:
EfEENSREERENT
®E
M12A831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
— REEE — EW(0) — Equity investments — Listed (i) 1,106 1,485
— B ERE — F LM (M 3E5) — Equity investments — Unlisted (Note 5) 3,952 —
— BB A ) — Debt investments (ii) 14,748 90,039
19,806 91,524
REEE Current assets

WARBETEEHEEZS A Short-term investments measured at FVPL (iii)
1B 25 a0 R IR E (i)

— EEEER — Structured deposits 141,000 50,183
— AT EETRE — Transferable certificate of deposits 61,701 10,005
202,701 60,188
(b) UAREEFTEEHEEHH (b) Financial assets at FVOCI
AHZHKENEMEE
LARBEFEEEZTHHA The financial assets at FVOCI comprise the following investments:
H2ERENEeHEERR
TR E
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
—RE®ZE — EW>) — Equity investments — Listed (i) 74,543 284,819
—RERE — FE L™ (M5 — Equity investments — Unlisted (Note 5) 48,752 44,630
123,295 329,449
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(b) UAREEFEAESEH
AH2EHKENEHEE

(%)
(i)

(ii)

LT ERE
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B o

EERE

2022412 A318 © K &
BEELHABHRAXITAE
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BERFETENE R E
BIRAABERARE
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R #90,039,0007T) °
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(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Equity investments Listed

The fair values of listed securities are determined based on the
closing prices quoted in active markets. They are accounted for
using their fair values based on quoted market prices without
any deduction for transaction costs.

Debt investments

The Group made debt investments with embedded
derivatives in certain investees which principally engaged in
pharmaceutical business, the aggregated fair values of which
were amounted to RMB14,748,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB90,039,000).

These investments include: (a) redeemable preferred shares that
the Group has the right to require and demand the investees
to redeem all of the shares held by the Group at guaranteed
predetermined fixed amount upon redemption events which are
out of control of the investee; (b) loan receivables embedded
with a warrant to acquire preferred shares of the investee at an
assigned price; and (c) loan receivables that can be converted
into preferred shares of the investee upon conversion events
which are out of control of the investee. These investments,
together with the above embedded features are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest. Accordingly, they are
accounted for as debt instruments and measured at financial
assets at FVPL.
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(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(iii) Short-term investments measured at FVPL

The short-term investments measured at FVPL are structured
deposits and transferable certificate of deposits, denominated
in RMB and USD, with expected rates of return ranging from
2.70% to 3.55% and 1.15% to 3.32% per annum for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively. The returns
on all of these investments are not guaranteed, hence their
contractual cash flows do not qualify for solely payments of
principal and interest. Therefore, they are measured at FVPL.
None of these investments were past due.

The fair values are based on cash flow discounted using the
expected return based on management judgment and the fair
value of structured deposits and transferable certificate of
deposits are within level 2, level 3 and level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, respectively.

(iv) Amounts recognized in profit or loss

BZ12A31ALEE
For the year ended December 31,
20214
2021
AR T
RMB'000
BEEENARLEEEE Fair value changes on equity investments (1,411)
EHFRENAAEBEE Fair value changes on debt investments —
UARBEEZBEZE A Fair value changes on short-term investments
EHBEENEHEENAR measured at FVPL
BEEZH
— BEEETER — Structured deposits 3,684
— AR TT K E — Transferable certificate of deposits 317

BqBE

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(v) Amounts recognized in OCl/

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended December 31,
20214
2021
AR T
RMB’'000

URAREESEBHEZS A Fair value changes on equity investments

HEMm2mKERERENZA  measured at FVOCI
ABEE

(a) BR#E
(i) 2018451 &/}%202045F
&

R2018% 678 » Silver
Biotech Elements Limited
([SBE] » 7K & B 120204
BEHAHFER A B EH
& B % B &t 81 (20185 &t
B RrmAKEEES
RESRHREERE -
2018F ST El ¥ 22 TE B #
4228 B I% SBE @ & (15
Hs34B 8RR EABRD
7.78%) FA BA B 1T © 20184F
SFEIETHERESHENS
HWHREE LB R AS
NF - FAETAEEE
B A B AR 32 AR R 0 AR 3 B
CHIWTHITZRALRE
BAEHMB®RE -

103,671

(a) Share options
(i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan

In June 2018, Silver Biotech Elements Limited (“SBE”), the
holding company before the reorganization of the Group in
2020, adopted an employee incentive plan (the “2018 Plan”),
which permits the grant of stock options to the employees and
directors of the Group. Under the 2018 Plan, a total of 4.22
million, representing 7.78% of 53.41 million common stocks of
SBE were initially reserved for issuance. The stock options under
the 2018 Plan have a contractual term of eight years from the
grant date. Stock based compensation expenses related to the
stock options granted to the Group’s employees were pushed
down and recorded in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.
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(a) Share options (continued)
(i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)

In December 2018, April 2019, April 2020 and July 2020, SBE
granted 3,878,500, 339,000, 936,121 and 650,000 stock
options to the Group’s employees, respectively. All of the stock
options were granted with performance conditions of which
vesting is contingent upon meeting company-wide performance
goals and respective individual’s personal performance goals,
compensation cost is recognized over the requisite service
period if it is probable that the performance target will be
achieved. The Group reassesses the probability of achieving the
performance conditions at the end of each reporting period
and records cumulative catch-up adjustments for any changes
to its assessment.

SBE distributed dividends to its shareholders in November
2019, exercise prices for the share options granted under
the 2018 Plan in December 2018 and April 2019 were
automatically adjusted from USD8 to USD5.24 based on the
proportion of dividend distribution. No incremental share-
based compensation expense was recognized as a result of the
exercise price adjustment.

In June 2020, together with the reorganization, the Company
adopted another option incentive plan (the “2020 Plan”) to
replace the 2018 Plan, and its terms and conditions remain
the same as the 2018 Plan of SBE except that each share of
SBE proportionally splits into 10 shares of the Company. The
Company’s proportion of equity remained the same as SBE after
the reorganization. No incremental share-based compensation
expense was recognized as a result of this modification.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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(a) Share options (continued)

(i)

2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)

On 5 February 2021, the Company's board of directors
approved and declared a dividend of approximately USD120.0
million from its consolidated retained earnings as of 31
December 2020 to its then existing shareholders and the
dividends were paid on 2 March 2021. Exercise prices for
the share options granted under the 2020 Plan in December
2018, April 2019, April 2020 and July 2020 are automatically
adjusted from USD0.524 to USD0.308 based on the proportion
of this dividend distribution. No incremental share based
compensation expense was recognized as a result of the
exercise price adjustment.

On 24 March 2022, the Company's board of directors
approved and declared a dividend of HKD239,228,000
(RMB204,545,000) from its consolidated retained earnings as
of 31 December 2021 to its then existing shareholders and
the dividends were paid on 22 June 2022. Exercise prices for
the share options granted under the 2020 Plan in December
2018, April 2019, April 2020 and July 2020 are automatically
adjusted from USD0.308 to USD0.263 based on the proportion
of this dividend distribution. No incremental share based
compensation expense was recognized as a result of the
exercise price adjustment.
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27 Share-based payments (continved)
(a) Share options (continued)

(i) 2018451 Z/R20204F (i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)
58 )
T % 8 it B £2022F & The following table summarizes activities of stock options
2021F12A318 It F E R granted to the Group’s employees under the 2020 Plan for the
B2020F st B TAEE year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:
EEMNBREHRETH:
HZE2021F12A318 LFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
BihBERKRESN
FEITEE
(&) EREHE
Average
exercise price
per option Number of
(USD) options
RE ) As at beginning of year 0.524 54,778,710
RER As at year end 0.308 54,778,710
REKRFBERAIITE Vested and exercisable at year end 0.308 40,835,105
B E2022F12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December 2022
BHEREN
EHTEE
(£7x) EREHE
Average
exercise price
per option Number of
(USD) options
RE A As at beginning of year 0.308 54,778,710
REANAITRE Exercised during the year 0.263 (8,575,000)
R ERE I Forfeited during the year 0.263 (1,256,268)
R As at year end 0.263 44,947,442
RERGBRAIITE Vested and exercisable at year end 0.263 44,947,442

B E2022%12A318 Ik F
E-HRIERREERFT
M X 2 o B920204F &t &
T HDAEERNNR
REMBHEAITAEARE
8,169,0007T (20214F : A B
#59,349,0007T) °

BEEZRRAMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 & E#{% ANNUAL REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total expenses arising
from share-based payment transactions under the 2020
Plan recognized as part of employee benefit expense were
amounted to RMB8,169,000 (2021: RMB59,349,000).
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27 URDABERNST R

(a) BR

(i)

)
20184 ;&R 2020F
& om)

P& £2022F K2021412
A318 Ik F K20204F & &
TH T AR TT 6 A BB AR A A
BIHAE RITEBEWLT

27 Share-based payments (continved)
(a) Share options (continued)
(i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)

Share options outstanding under the 2020 Plan as at the end
of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

HE201F12R31ALLFE HZ202025128318LEE

Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2022
Rt A 38R 1@ fB IR fE TEE iR
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share options ~ Exercise price  Share options
2018512 A 158 2026512 A15H 0.308% T 35,976,500 0.263% 1t 30,338,200
15 December 2018 15 December 2026 UsSD0.308 35,976,500 USDO0.263 30,338,200
2019F4A1H 20275 4A1H 0.308% T 2,941,000 0.263% 1t 1,657,000
1 April 2019 1 April 2027 UsD0.308 2,941,000 USD0.263 1,657,000
2020 4A18 2028 4A1H 0.308% T 9,361,210 0.263% 1t 6,802,242
1 April 2020 1 April 2028 UsD0.308 9,361,210 USD0.263 6,802,242
2020%7R18 2028%7A1H 0.308% T 6,500,000 0.263% 1T 6,150,000
1 July 2020 1 July 2028 UsD0.308 6,500,000 USD0.263 6,150,000
A&t 54,778,710 44,947,442
Total 54,778,710 44,947,442
RERBATEBREDMETFHRBAOHER 5.65F 5.46%F
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 5.65 years 5.46 years

(i) BEXAFZREZEBRE (i) Post-IPO Option Plan
it &
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On 22 January 2021, the Company adopted a Post-IPO Option
Plan, under which stock options with a total of no more
than 67.78 million shares can be granted to the selected
participants. The stock options under the Post-IPO Option Plan
have a contractual term of ten years from the grant date.
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(a) Share options (continued)

(i) BARAFHREZBRE (ii) Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)
Tt &)
202246+ KN A 7 B & In 2022, the Company granted 21,808,100 (2021: 3,824,900)
BRAAHRAEBEERER stock options to the Group’s employees under the Post-
BEmAEEEIR IPO Option Plan. All of the stock options were granted with
F21,808,100 (20214 : performance conditions of which vesting is contingent upon
3,824,900) & % = B ## - meeting company-wide performance goals and respective
FMEBREHENR LY individual’s personal performance goals, compensation cost
B %5 B R 1 R e E is recognized over the requisite service period if it is probable
B AR BEERERENR that the performance target will be achieved.
EENEAEREERA
AT SRR - W AT AR E B R
MEZE - BIE Y E RS H
A T 3R Fr B AKX o
T & B i & =2022F & The following table summarizes activities of stock options
202112 B31H It F E R granted to the Group's employees under the Post-IPO Option
BEARRBEERBRE Plan for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:
FERTASERENE
REEEEE
HZE2021F12A31BLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
TR BB AR 91T
EEET) i g & 2 E
Average
exercise price per Number
option (HKD) of options
R E ) As at beginning of year — —
FARE Granted during the year 10.16 3,824,900
FRIZIK Forfeited during the year 10.16 (79,800)
RE R As at year end 10.16 3,745,100
RERBBRAITE Vested and exercisable at year end — —

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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27 URGBAEBRNSTR e
(a) BR%E®

Share-based payments (ontinued)
(a) Share options (continued)

(i) BEXABHEEBRE (ii) Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)
58 )
B 220225128318 L FE
Year ended 31 December 2022
BRERETYSY
THEEGER) BREHE
Average
exercise price per Number
option (HKD) of options
RE As at beginning of year 10.16 3,745,100
FRFH Granted during the year 7.89 19,208,100
F R IR I Forfeited during the year 8.83 (1,443,130)
RER As at year end 8.22 21,510,070
RERGBERAIITE Vested and exercisable at year end 9.74 1,467,820

200

B =20229128318 Ik £
E BRAEBRAMAX
—WOoOHBERLAHAEE
BEBRESEE TR
MAERNTRXRSE
ERRAXBBEAARE
35,950,0007T (20214F : A B
#3,644,0007T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total expenses arising
from share-based payment transactions under the Post-IPO
Option Plan recognized as part of employee benefit expense
were amounted to RMB35,950,000 (2021: RMB3,644,000).
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S =h .. v
27 L/{ Hﬁ 1%%%@9’9{#%&12 27 Share-based payments (continued)
(a) BRE®) (a) Share options (continued)
(i) BEXABHEEBRE (ii) Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)
Fog 1 )
R E £2022F %20214F12 Share options outstanding under the Post-IPO Option Plan as at
A3BEFER AR the end of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 have
MEErBREFTEET the following expiry dates and exercise prices:
MARITEEREN D EA
RITEEBWOT :
HZ201F12A3NALEFE HE2025012831ALEE
Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2022
REAH 38R 1RE R fE TEE BRE
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share options ~ Exercise price  Share options
R2021FR 203168 A31H &2031411A30R 9.2978 7T~ 9.2978 T -
10.188 7T 3,745,100 10187 1T 3,176,970
During the year of 2021 31 August 2031 and 30 November 2031 HKD9.29- HKD9.29-
HKD10.18 3,745,100 HKD10.18 3,176,970
20225 A 2030F4818H R2032 11 A1E 6.33% -
TER TER 8.40% 1T 18,333,100
During the year of 2022 18 April 2030 and 11 November 2032 HKD6.33-
NA NA HKD8.40 18,333,100
=5 3,745,100 21,510,070
Total 3,745,100 21,510,070
RERRMKRTEBREOMETIHNASHER 9.68F 7.61F
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 9.68 years 7.61 years
BT 1% ] 7% R 1 7Y 2 72 Fair value of options granted
&
BEEAAAEESRER The fair value of each option granted under the Post-IPO
RETEI R BB &1 38 AR Option Plan were estimated on the date of each grant using the
WAAEBE DEETR binomial option pricing model with the assumptions (or ranges
Fro) R & (s A& &) £ A thereof) in the following table:
THEAHEEEELERSE
& #% 5 B EA il 51
HZENAALEFE
For the year ended 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
TEEERT) Exercise price (HKD) 6.33-8.40 9.29-10.18
B A% 4 EA PR Option life 8E 104 106
8-10 years 10 years
EEE R & TE BB R IK & Expected price volatility of the underlying shares 47.93%-48.71% 47.37%-49.63%
= [ g 7 = Risk-free interest rate 1.94%-4.04% 1.49%-1.57%
REBEHBEHEHERED Fair value per option at grant date (HKD)
DARBEGET) 2.95-3.89 3.79-4.66
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(b)

ZIRFIR D EN

MR2021F 18228 - A2 A KR &R
HERRMAUBRGDREROS
FEE(ERLAHAREATR
HIRGBEMGTE]D B AR
7] & 36,689,963 % B 19 #5 3 17
EETFTAEERETESE Sl A
BURHEMBAREMRERES -
EREMEBEEASETHEBIKMN
IR ©

R2022%E 48198 - 2022784
H %2022 9A8H » AA AR &
BAAHABEEIRAIBRHDE
iz 5t 2| % Bl &% H2,408,50017

150,0001% &%41,50017 X R %l A%
P EAL -

T A X BRI B 0 B8 {7 29 Ff 75 4R
BMGEHRL  HEBRARE
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ERERBE MHBMKEAR
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(b) RSUs

On 22 January 2021, the Company's shareholders approved and
adopted a share based payment scheme (the “Post-IPO RSU Plan”),
under which a total number of 6,689,963 shares of the Company will
be issued and granted to certain directors, officers, and other key
contributors and employees of the Group subject to certain vesting
conditions after the Listing.

On 19 April 2022, 4 July 2022 and 8 September 2022, the Company
granted 2,408,500, 150,000 and 41,500 of RSUs under the Post-IPO
RSU Plan respectively.

All of the RSUs were granted with performance conditions of which
vesting is contingent upon meeting company-wide performance goals
and respective individual’s personal performance goals, compensation
cost is recognized over the requisite service period if it is probable
that the performance target will be achieved. RSUs granted under the
Post IPO RSU Plan vest in two years and will expire between eight to
ten years.

The following table summarizes activities of RSUs granted to the
Group’s employees under the Post-IPO RSU Plan for the year ended
31 December 2022:

B E2022F12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

N Y]
FATE
FREIK
NER

REREBRAITE

As at beginning of year
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year

As at year end

Vested and exercisable at year end
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27 Share-based payments (continved)

(b) ZRREIRGEL 2 (b) RSUs (continued)
HZEZ20202F12A31BIEFE  1# For the year ended 31 December 2022, total expenses arising from
RRrEERAMAXI —MBorBNH share-based payment transactions under the Post-IPO RSU Plan
RARBERBERESEET recognized as part of employee benefit expense were amounted to
NEDABERNNRREESE RMB8,224,000 (2021: nil).
B F X 48 %E A A R 8,224,000
(2021 : &) »
() BURGBREBNLTRRS (c) Expenses arising from share-based payment
ELENRAX transactions
RZEABRIEREERTR Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
XHAUBRORERNNRRZS (including share option and RSUs) recognized during the year as part
(BREEREFERZRHRKRHG of employee benefit expense were as follows:
BB T :
HENAMBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AREBTT AR T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BERR Recognized in:
B Cost of revenue 1,412 834
HEREHMX Sales and marketing expenses 25,211 20,522
1TER X Administrative expenses 17,260 35,902
MR R&D expenses 8,460 5,755
IR 19 B & 5 X 48 %8 Total share-based compensation expenses 52,343 63,013
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28 EZRHMENERN 28 Trade and other payables
R12A318
As at 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARB T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B S EMNRIE®Q) Trade payables (a) 102,717 126,920
BN #H e REL Salaries and bonus payable 138,786 92,878
FE AT & 8H Ko HE B R X Payables for marketing and promotion expenses 65,999 87,948
EAMEAAMGRARE Payables for testing and clinical trial fees for R&D 32,630 48,369
EBRNEEXRBEE Payables for professional service fee 28,322 29,706
0B R RN IR Payables for purchase of a license — 95,636
HAh Others 50,298 56,345
418,752 537,802
() ZoEMNFEEZAHHE R (@) Aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date at the
ZHBEEEABERANER DM respective balances sheet dates are as follows:
LUl
R12H318
As at 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARB T
RMB’000 RMB’000
DR —F Less than 1 year 102,717 126,920
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29 HEAE 29 Lease liabilities
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARE T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RUATEHEE SO REMAES  Minimum lease payments due
BN
—1FR — Within 1 year 12,850 11,422
— 1525 — Between 1 and 2 years 6,322 9,170
— 2&E55F — Between 2 and 5 years 1,304 3,032
20,476 23,624
W ARREEE R Less: future finance charges (407) (1,058)
HEBEMNHREAE Present value of lease liabilities 20,069 22,566
1R Within 1 year 12,714 11,391
18224 Between 1 and 2 years 6,191 8,536
2E5F Between 2 and 5 years 1,164 2,639
20,069 22,566
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M®12A831H
As at 31 December
20214F
2021
ARB T
RMB'000
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
—FRIHANRBAER Long-term borrowings due after one year 762,160
b =R Current liabilities
—F N E| B 1) & B A8 3R Long-term borrowings due within one year 382,542

2020668 ARARAKMEEMB A
RISPILEFRB R A£LITHRMHERA A
EBEST(BRANDES—BREA
300EEETTHMRITHRARE]D
SPIL (R EL MY BB A 7] (fiw 38 FA)) B9 48 K
HrEEREBROWERIERZR
BRI o

2020568 + —E£ & % A3008 &%
T (B & R A R #2,123,850,0007T) &
FFEHEIHNEERTER)BEZE
BREPIRE - 20% A EBHERA
BRUATEBEREE: )MAQF MK
RXEXRAAZRE((ERLAERED
B EE 80 7£20205 11 B4R AT SE B R A
B8 & - & B8 X 72 202011 74
BEL (VMM ARAERXEXAR
B E S E AR E2020F11 A48 AT 5%
BREXARZE BHEREEQR
AAMBERAHBEEN—M@A &
(0)2021F3A31H (LU F & A %) Z Al
fEH o

ARAFR2021F3AZREBT BB XA
TRERERAFEE - RIBENE
fll &+ SPILE % Al K202143A318 -
2021F 11 A4A K 2022F 1M A4AEES
He0EEXTT  F-He0EBEXT K
F=HeoaEET -

In June 2020, SPIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained a bank facility (the “Facility”) with a total amount of
USD300 million from China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong
Kong Branch (the “Lender”) with substantially all of SPIL's (and its
subsidiaries’, as applicable) assets and common stocks pledged as
security for the Facility.

In June 2020, a five-year loan of USD300 million (equivalent to
RMB2,123,850,000) (the “Loan”) with floating rate was drawn down
from the Facility. The first installment of 20% principal amount shall
be repaid according to the following schedule: (i) if the Company has
not yet submitted its initial public offering (“IPO") application or has
completed its IPO by 4 November 2020, the first installment shall be
made on 4 November 2020; (ii) if the Company has submitted IPO
application but not yet completed its IPO before 4 November 2020,
the first installment shall be made until the earlier of (a) one month
after the Company’s IPO and (b) 31 March 2021.

The Company completed its IPO on the Main Board of the HKEx on 3
March 2021. According to the repayments schedule, SPIL repaid the
first three installments each of USD60 million on 31 March 2021, 4
November 2021, and 4 November 2022 respectively.
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TN .
30 B (&) 30 BOI‘I‘OWIngS (continued)
ZERBOF R D BHBRO TR : The remaining repayment installments of the Loan are as follows:
=p- REMEASER
Required Principal
Dates Payments
FEx
usb’000
2 B A~ 55 70 2023F11A4H 60,000
4t installment 4 November 2023 60,000
D HNRE A 2024511 H4R 60,000
5t installment 4 November 2024 60,000
BB RITRARFERAX Debt Issuance Costs and Interest Expense
SPIL Bt 5% @b & E 4£795,0003% T (18 & SPIL incurred a cost of USD795,000 (equivalent to RMB5,601,000) in
» A R ¥5,601,0007T) &) 5K AN - 5% &K connection with the Facility, and the costs were recorded as debt issuance
AR EBEEBEITRA  HEZER costs offsetting the carrying value of the borrowings. The debt issuance
WEREE ZEEETRAEERE costs are being amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt using
BRAXEZEEBNFERAERESE the effective interest method.
MERX o
B E2022F R2021F12A3MB L F E - For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, interest expenses in
HZREBZEEANNERAID B A connection with the Facility Agreement was USD6,696,000 (equivalent
6,696,000 7t (FHE 1 A R 45,497,000 to RMB45,497,000) and USD6,087,000 (equivalent to RMB39,299,000),
7T) 56,087,000k ;T(HH & BN A B ¥ respectively.
39,299,0007T) °
31 ELEFAEH 31 Deferred income taxes
M12A831H
As at 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
ARBTT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BELEHEEE: Deferred tax assets:
— ERN2EAREENELEH — Deferred tax assets to be settled within 12 months
RHEE 651 1,520
ELEBEAME: Deferred tax liabilities:
— BRNREABEENIELR — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
ERE (14,570) (14,981)
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31 IEEMRBB e 31 Deferred income taxes (continued)
HE2022F K2021F12A31HILEFE - The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the years
BELEFMGEHREEHEBBEEH(RFTR ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 without taking into consideration the
R ZEERRNEELER) W TR offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction, are as follows:
N
BELEBIBEE E-
Deferred tax assets-
REHE R BEE FERERE =hi
Provision for Provision for
unrealized inventory
profits obsolescence Total
AR¥T T ARET T AREBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7202114818 As of 1 January 2021 13,336 — 13,336
BEZEREMNR Charged to profit or loss (13,336) 1,520 (11,816)
72021512 A31H At 31 December 2021 — 1,520 1,520
7A2022%F1H81H As of 1 January 2022 — 1,520 1,520
B8 = RINKR Charged to profit or loss — (869) (869)
72022412 A31H At 31 December 2022 — 651 651
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31 EEMREBH = 31 Deferred income taxes (continued)

EEHEEE-FENH

Deferred tax

liabilities-withholding

tax

AR T

RMB’'000

7A2021%E1A1H As of 1 January 2021 (9,258)
B8 = RMR Charged to profit or loss (5,723)
"2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 (14,981)
A2022%F1818 As of 1 January 2022 (14,981)
EEZE AR Credited to profit or loss 411
7A2022512831H At 31 December 2022 (14,570)

EREHENEE BB ARRER
MABSREG FeRMEENHRE
BEEUENGEEEZEBRELTAN
BB E o M20224128310 » A &
B I A& 5 A R #12,169,0007T (20214F :
AR #44,147,0007T) &) /& 18 1 RIE &
FIEBEE - AREERFE A M KL
7 BT A R A B I8 B 1B R2023F &
2027 B - REBAPN B A EMK L
W EARIMBBEEBRTERRLHE -

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses carrying forwards

and deductible temporary differences to the extent that realization of the
related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not recognize deferred income tax assets in
respect of losses of RMB12,169,000 (2021: RMB44,147,000). The tax losses
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China will expire from

2023 to 2027. Tax losses of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong

Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

FAEBEIRRAEIRAT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 4 %% ANNUAL REPORT 209



& fF B 7% ] 3% B

At

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2022F 128318 1L FE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

32 RARKRG®E

32 Share capital and share premium

BETERR
52 BE  BROEE At
Number of
ordinary shares Share Share
issued capital premium Total
ARBTTT ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
®202151818 At 1 January 2021 555,199,800 192 = 192
BRADABEERBETERRE Issuance of ordinary shares upon IPO (a) 115,984,500 37 1,727,026 1,727,063
MELEREEEERAA Issuance of ordinary shares to SciClone
(SciClone Option Management Limited) ~ Option Management Limited
(BREERDETEER®D) ("the Option Trust") (b) 3,500,000 1 — 1
[ SCLN ESOP Management Limited Issuance of ordinary shares to
((ZRHARBEMEE] SCLN ESOP Management Limited
BITEBREQ ("the RSU Trust”) (c) 6,689,963 2 = 2
#2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 681,374,263 232 1,727,026 1,727,258
ERTEER
YE R A& R 13 % B A
Number of
ordinary shares Share Share
issued capital premium Total
ARBTR ARB TR ARB TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
®202251A1A At 1 January 2022 681,374,263 232 1,727,026 1,727,258
T ERE Exercise of share options 1,208,000 — 16,129 16,129
mEERERETEETLARD) Issuance of ordinary shares to the Option
Trust (b) 16,750,000 6 — 6
BERFTHLERWQ Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary
shares (d) (4,576,500) (1) (32,726) (32,727)
®2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 694,755,763 237 1,710,429 1,710,666
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20214 3H38 © £ & BB X FT
FIR EWE - RRRAERR18.80
5 JT %% 17115,984,5000% & i@ A% -
S & TSR IE 58 492,180,509,000
& T (A& R A R %1,814,837,000
To) o IR ER D EITHEEM
O EmHAY  EREFEY
#2,075,049,0007%8 7T (HHE A R
#1,727,063,0007T) °

HE202F12A31BLEEE - AR
AlRERBEEETRESEAL
16,750,000 4% (20214F : 3,500,000
i%) & @A% - LAMR 4R AR R]120204F
FTEIREAARBEERERER
B ERARXBRRREARAF
BEEMRK -

20226128318 - BREETE
A #912,883,0000% & 5 A BR 51 {E A<
A 7 B 17 B% 15 (20214F : 3,500,000
AR A% 19)

MR2021F28 » AR Al Mm% Rl
BRMHBEAMELETRERAHR
6,689,963 L@l - ZEE B
BITRBERRATAERLAHZ
E 18 X BRI AR 19 B AL 5t 8l LA {5
AFXBRREABRBAFTEL
BRMERE SRS KMDEEN
=7 (20224 : &)

HE2022F128318 © R K&
1 B 7 {= T ¥ B 196,689,963 %
B 5 A BB VE AR R EF KRG
(20214 : 6,689,963 % A% 17) °

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

On 3 March 2021, the Company, upon its listing on the Main Board
of the HKEXx, issued 115,984,500 ordinary shares at HKD18.80 per
share, and raised gross proceeds of approximately HKD2,180,509,000
(equivalent to RMB1,814,837,000). The net proceeds were
approximately HKD2,075,049,000 (equivalent to RMB1,727,063,000)
after deducting listing expenses directly relating to the share issuance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company issued and
allotted total 16,750,000 (2021: 3,500,000) ordinary shares to the
Option Trust for the purpose of holding ordinary shares under the
Company’s 2020 Plan and Post-IPO Option Plan on trust for and on
behalf of the grantees.

As of 31 December 2022, 12,883,000 shares held in the Option
Trust are accounted for as treasury shares of the Company (2021:
3,500,000 shares).

In February 2021, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
6,689,963 ordinary shares to the RSU Trust. Such ordinary shares
were directed to the RSU Trust for the purpose of holding ordinary
shares under the Company’s Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on
behalf of the grantees (2022: nil).

As of 31 December 2022, 6,689,963 shares held in the RSU Trust are
accounted for as treasury shares of the Company (2021: 6,689,963
shares).

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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32 RARKRG=EE@

(d)

HE202F12A831BLEFE AR
7) B 614,976,500 % %% 17 7£ SN L 38
f& - B RE R A K #32,833,000
7T+ H 4,576,500/ K& ) B &
4 + T8 400,000 8% A% 15 742022
F12A3NB ARINIERRQ A ETF

B fp

33 HAupg#E

32 Share capital and share premium (ontinveq)

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company repurchased
4,976,500 outstanding ordinary shares with a total consideration of
RMB32,833,000, among which 4,576,500 shares were cancelled and
the rest of 400,000 shares are accounted for as treasury shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2022.

33 Other equity

2021412 A31H
As at 31 December 2021

712022512 A31H
As at 31 December 2022

B 5 ARET T & 5 AREF T
Shares RMB’000 Shares RMB’000
B 17 3% 1% Treasury shares 19,972,963 7 10,189,963 3

EEBRORBENEXRETARARE
BEROAIBTERODAFENARF

Treasury shares are shares in the Company that are held by share trusts
for the purpose of issuing shares under the Company’s employee share

& o schemes.
iR &8 AR T
Number of
B3 Details shares RMB’000
R2021F1818 At 1 January 2021 — —
MEBRESTERITEAR Issuance of ordinary shares to the Option Trust (Note 32(b))

(Fft 3E32(b)) 3,500,000 2
AR REIA D EMMEFERITE  Issuance of ordinary shares to the RSU Trust (Note 32(c))

A AR (Kt 5£32(c)) 6,689,963 1
A2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 10,189,963 3

B 13 & B AR T
Number of
shares RMB’000
R2022%181A At 1 January 2022 10,189,963 3
mMBREGEETLTAR Issuance of ordinary shares to the Option Trust (Note 32(b))

(P 5£32(b)) 16,750,000 6
fE [B] 3 38 Ak (P 5232(d)) Repurchase of ordinary shares (Note 32(d)) 4,976,500 1
+T 88 X 8 R (FF E32(d)) Cancellation of ordinary shares (Note 32(d)) (4,576,500) (1)
ERESTPETEMNEAME Share options exercised held in the Option Trust (7,367,000) 2)
2022512 H831H At 31 December 2022 19,972,963 7
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34 Hfthi#E 34 Other reserve
WAREETE
88 -3 DN
t2ERENE UARGBAEEM
MEE HfE EXZEE EERHOLR XD At
Share-based Currency
Financial asset ~ compensation translation Statutory
at FVOCI reserve differences surplus reserve Capital reserve Total
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®TR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R20211E181B 0 &8 Balance at 1 January 2021 190,267 163,054 21,354 15,575 (227,577 162,673
NBE K, Foreign currency translation = = (35,042) = = (35,042)
ERZEEREQ Appropriation to statutory
reserves (a) — — — 10,266 — 10,266
WAREEFEBEEEE  Changes in the fair value of equity
ANEM2EREORERE  investments at FVOCI
WRAREBERE 103,671 — — — — 103,671
TRt & B B 2 Share-based compensation expenses — 63,013 = = = 63,013
RE Dividends — — — — (4,822) (4,822)
R2021FE12 318 M & 8 Balance at 31 December 2021 293,938 226,067 (13,688) 25,841 (232,399) 299,759
M202F1818 M &8 Balance at 1 January 2022 293,938 226,067 (13,688) 25,841 (232,399) 299,759
NEE K, Foreign currency translation - - 209,770 - = 209,770
EREEEREQ Appropriation to statutory
reserves (a) — — — 7,185 — 7,185
WAABESEBEZEE  Changes in the fair value of equity
AEM2EREORERE  investments at FVOCI
WRARBEEE (221,513) - - - = (221,573)
FR 3 5 B B 2 Share-based compensation expenses — 52,343 — — = 52,343
R2022F12 8310 & 84 Balance at 31 December 2022 72,365 278,410 196,082 33,026 (232,399) 347,484
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BIE(CREAREMBE RG] K) P E
W sE A SR B R E KB AR
HEERBAUGKG ZEAREAKT
BRUAFERAEEEOGR TTHE
BRERSZSENEICRABABESR
TEARES HEFAUSETHSE
BA-DEFETCRABAEESHNES
Lt B10% - MAEEAE SN EER
ZERTIMERHEBARTE - BT
BH AR S &6 5 M & EA50%
NANDERN ZCRBABERME
ELARSAUBECENELRN  HR&
ETRBLABETBLIREMELRD
25% ©

s RIBCREARKMBEINE
FRIRTERNMIINGEENE QR
MBERAAUG ZERRAKH
BUAEFERFBRENANERS
RESEBNHEAES HEBREREER
ENAEMNBL LN DR NI0% -
BEREESEHREDZMEARS0% R
ABARY  TREZERAZEE
EENRER  RREBEESTRERY
RE B AL NE A -

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the stipulated
provisions of the articles of association of subsidiaries incorporated
with limited liabilities in Mainland China, appropriation of net profits
(after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) should be made by
these companies to their respective statutory surplus reserve funds and
discretionary reserve funds before distributions are made to the equity
owners. The percentage of appropriation to statutory surplus reserve fund
is 10%. The amount to be transferred to discretionary reserve fund is
determined by the equity owners of these companies. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital,
such transfer needs not to be made. Both statutory surplus reserve fund and
discretionary reserves fund can be capitalized as capital of an enterprise,
provided that the remaining statutory surplus reserve fund shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

In addition, in accordance with the Law of the PRC on Enterprises with
Foreign Investments and the stipulated provisions of the articles of
association of wholly owned foreign subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriation from net profits (after offsetting accumulated losses brought
forward from prior years) should be made by these companies to their
respective reserve fund. The percentage of net profit to be appropriated to
the reserve fund is not less than 10% of the net profit. When the balance
of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital, such transfer
needs not to be made. With approvals obtained from respective boards
of directors of these companies, the Reserve Fund can be used to offset
accumulated deficit or to increase capital.
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Il

35 HEREER 35 Cash flow information
(a) REFBNEREE (a) Cash generated from operations
BZ1N2AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AREBTT ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Fr 15 Bt A1 7 B Profit before income tax 940,080 1,025,873
RTIEEEHFE: Adjustments for:
ME - BERRBNE Depreciation of PP&E 3,592 2,966
=8 Amortization of intangible assets 101,951 93,891
EREEERE Amortization of right-of-use assets 13,354 10,989
BEAREBEFAEHEZMNSE Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
MEENAAEEE 70,473 (2,590)
17 & MR Write-downs of inventories 6,449 16,367
mEEAERBEERE Impairment losses of intangible assets 99,467 57,104
LA B% 17 A 25 7 557 B Share based compensation 52,343 63,013
B A Interest income (36,069) (7,958)
FEF X Interest expense 46,593 40,191
SNEE1E (M as) Foreign exchange losses/(gains) 204,719 (39,438)
EEELBE: Change in working capital:
FEER AL, (1 ) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 27,651 (13,087)
B 5 FE W SR IEE N Increase in trade receivables (234,450) (221,721)
HEmsEEREMEE (2 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets and other assets
m)om (12,714) 39,030
BN EMBEMARIECRL), (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
o (14,635) 148,950
KEFRMBNES Cash generated from operations 1,268,804 1,213,580
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35 BEREEFEE »

35 Cash flow information (ontinved)

(b) FEESRENMETH (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
BZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR® Tt AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BAHELHKBEFEREEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets through lease

(Bt 5E17) arrangements (Note 17) 9,985 24,425
(c) BHEFEYER (c) Net cash reconciliation
LTHIWMRASEFENR S F Set out below is an analysis of net cash and the movements in net
BRBESFHEEHNHN - cash for each of the years presented.
M12A831H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BeRkREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,671,829 2,127,488
BR——FANEERE Borrowings — repayable within one year (417,876) (382,542)
BR— —FREE Borrowings — repayable after one year (414,682) (762,160)
HEAE - —FRIH Lease liabilities — due within one year (12,714) (11,391)
HEAE — —F%&IE Lease liabilities — due after one year (7,355) (11,175)
REFE Net cash 819,202 960,220
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35 BEREEE
(0 BL&FHEYUE®

35 Cash flow information (ontinved)
(c) Net cash reconciliation (continued)

METBHELENER
Liabilities from financing
activities
AeR
HeEEY HESRE &R &t
Cash and cash Lease
equivalents liabilities Borrowings Total
ARBTTT ARET T AR®ET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R202F1 81BN R & FE Net cash as at 1 January 2022 2,127,488 (22,566) (1,144,702) 960,220
RERERE Financing cash flows (512,243) 12,482 435,330 (64,431)
HHED New leases - (9,985) — (9,985)
HNEE 37 B Foreign exchange adjustments 56,584 - (123,379) (66,795)
Hih &8 Other changes
8 F % Interest expense - (1,096) (45,497) (46,593)
MEFEUEERERERS) Interest payments (presented as operating
cash flows) - 1,096 45,690 46,786
R2022F12831AN RS FE Net cash as at 31 December 2022 1,671,829 (20,069) (832,558) 819,202
R202M1E1BIBNERFE Net debt as at 1 January 2021 1,118,986 (8,472) (1,954,477) (843,963)
RERERE Financing cash flows 1,018,788 10,331 777,792 1,806,911
WRL New leases — (24,425) — (24,425)
HNEE A B Foreign exchange adjustments (10,286) — 24,313 14,027
Hith &8 Other changes
FERZ Interest expense — (892) (39,299) (40,191)
FMEREUCEERERERS) Interest payments (presented as operating
cash flows) — 892 46,969 47,861
R20M1ENRAMBNESFE Net cash as at 31 December 2021 2,127,488 (22,566) (1,144,702) 960,220
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MBS iEER - AR NEERHEE
ZHI S - HAHE TN H B RE
BRRENERTZESN - ZLRES -
ARBAXEAB A EHNNET TK
BRI

HE2022F K2021F12 A31HIEFE -
AEBYVEBRBEBE LGRS -

TEEEASHMH
ANERBERBENRERFEEERE
EHHHMT :

A & B 7120229 K2021F12A318 I
EAMEAREERE °

20231868 ARAREEES S
Somerley Capital Limited# X &R A2 A
REBKHERSEYN  LWREBRKRH
10.067 7T B B8 & %77,534,791 8 & 2
AIEAKR(TREDITERND - R2023F
2A158 AR R BHABRRENARE -
I HE O Z LK B E K o 7202353
A1B - ZHERK AR AT KK
1£10.067% 7T [@ §§77,534,791 % B& 15 -
BRERIBEEET - BBEHE
B2 B 1) B R2023438108 544 °

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control, common
significant influence or joint control.

The Group did not have related party balances or transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Key management personnel compensations

The compensations paid or payable to key management personnel for
employee services are shown below:

BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December

20214F

2021

ARBET T

RMB'000

T& - HaeMmiEa Wages, salaries, bonuses 24,765

LA RR 10 A R 89 2 A Share-based payments 22,002

RIKSEFEIHER Contributions to pension plans 336
FEAES BEMKRBRMEM Housing funds, medical insurance and other social welfare

& A8 AR contributions 671

47,774

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

On 6 January 2023, the Company’s board of directors announced that
a conditional cash offer would be made by Somerley Capital Limited on
behalf of the Company to repurchase up to 77,534,791 ordinary shares
(the “Shares”) of the Company at HK$10.06 per share (the “Offer”). On
15 February 2023, an Extraordinary General Meeting was convened and
approved the Offer has become unconditional. On 1 March 2023, the
Offer was completed and the Company repurchased the 77,534,791 Shares
at HK$10.06 per share with a total consideration of HKD780 million. The
Shares repurchased through the Offer have been cancelled on 10 March
2023.
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39 APENEEEBEREREE 39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

S E Company
(a) *REMEEEMEB/R (a) Balance sheet of the Company
BE12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EE Assets
FERBEE Non-current assets
KRB RARIEE Investment in subsidiaries 6,682,589 6,117,534
KAREEGFEBEHE Financial assets at FVOCI
Hth2HW N E/MEE 74,543 —
MAREBETEAHR Financial assets at FVPL
EHNBENEREE 15,509 —
Efth & & Other assets 59 54
FERBDEERTE Total non-current assets 6,772,700 6,117,588
RBEE Current assets
HEftme&E Other current assets 596,998 849
JE iz 8BSt 5 5K IB Amounts due from related parties 669,284 687,506
HekREEED Cash and cash equivalents 585,278 1,005,863
MEEERE Total current assets 1,851,560 1,694,218
EEHE Total assets 8,624,260 7,811,806
EazRkE8E Equity and liabilities
= Liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 & H A 50 Trade and other payables 12,670 12,072
FE A~ A Bk 5 3R IE Amounts due to related parties 116,944 347
FEBaEEE Total current liabilities 129,614 12,419
SEAE Total liabilities 129,614 12,419
EEFE Net assets 8,494,646 7,799,387
FEREATDMEENER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
[N Share capital 237 232
% 17 4 & Share premium 1,710,429 1,727,026
H A P Other equity (7) (3)
HAh % Other reserves 6,864,260 6,139,024
Z2EtEiE Accumulated losses (80,273) (66,892)
EREE Total equity 8,494,646 7,799,387
A7l A ERERE R202343A30H8 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
BEZSHE TAHTINESRER Directors on 30 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.
= .
HA Zhao Hong
Ea Director
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39 ARFANEERERRHERE

v X107

(b) AAFWHELZE

39

Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

Compa NY (continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

NAREBETE
BHSEIA
Hith 2 E K &N
EREE EXNE tHEE Ch
Currency
translation Capital Financial
differences reserve asset at FVOCI Total
ARBTTT ARBETTR AR®T TR AR® TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R2021E1 818 M &8 Balance at 1 January 2021 (533,651) 6,818,029 — 6,284,378
JNEETE 5, Foreign currency translation (145,354) = = (145,354)
RW2021F12A31B M & ¢ Balance at 31 December 2021 (679,005) 6,818,029 — 6,139,024
R2022F1 A1 1 & &4 Balance at 1 January 2022 (679,005) 6,818,029 — 6,139,024
SMETE K, Foreign currency translation 730,862 — — 730,862
UAREBEFEEEZEHFAEME  Changes in the fair value of equity
ARENRERENAABES investments at FVOC| — — (5,626) (5,626)
R2022F12 A31B K& & Balance at 31 December 2022 51,857 6,818,029 (5,626) 6,864,260
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(c) BBFREINER (c) Information about subsidiaries
M2022F12A318 * XA AIM E The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
EMBLRFBEET : December 2022 are as follows:
AR AH ERgo A Ry g= BRT/BE TEFDH SLEY EERRRRA#ER
BAFEE
Company name Place and date of Particulars of  Principal activities/ place of Attributable equity interests of
incorporation issued/  operation the Company
paid-in capital
W12A318
As at 31 December
20214
2021
BEEREF
Directly held
Sciclone Pharmaceuticals International B2 & * 1992411816 %7T900,000 Em#EE LE FBRERRE 100%
Ltd. (i) B:M1993F7A19REE & BE/FAEHS
ot i
Cayman Islands, 16 UsD900,000  Product sales, manufacturing,
November 1992; Registered business development and
in Hong Kong on 19 July investment holding/ Cayman
1993 Islands
MEsEs
Indirectly held
Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Italy S.r.l. (i) E A+ 2000128148 Bi7T10,000 REAFMFHTA/EAF 100%
Italy, 14 December 2000 EUR10,000  License holding in Italy/Italy
SciClone Pharmaceuticals International B 2% & + 200549719H £7L50,000 REZBRERHE/ HERS 100%
China Holding Ltd. (ii)
Cayman Islands, 19 USD50,000  Investment holding and product
September 2005 sales/Cayman Islands
SciClone Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong &7 * 20109973148 %7061,828,872 EmHE/EH 100%
Ltd. (i)
Hong Kong, 14 September USD61,828,872  Product sales/Hong Kong
2010
NovaMed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (ii) FEEE  2006565A19A %750,000 HREREER/HREES 100%
Cayman Islands, 19 May USD50,000  Dormant investment holding/
2006 Cayman Islands
SciClone Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. (i) R 20196 4F29H Ex1 KERF/RAFE 100%
Australia, April 29, 2019 UsD1  Dormant Company/Australia

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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(c) BBFRANER (®)

AREH

Company name

BNGEBEREFERAA ()
SciClone Pharmaceuticals
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)

ENEBREES(LB)BRDAI
NovaMed Pharmaceuticals (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (i)

EARE(PE)BRAA

SciClone Pharmaceuticals (China) Co.,
Ltd. (i)

BAEBRETIHARRAA ()

SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd. (i)

FEESBERBEERAA ()
Pu Duo Medical Technology Huangpu
Shanghai (i)

BEBEMRALR)BRAF()
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd. (i)

MR ERBS

Place and date of
incorporation

HE - 202064528
PRC, 2 April 2020

HE - 20074F3A2H
PRC, 2 March 2007

FE - 2014F10A158

PRC, 15 October 2014

FE - 2015%9A24H

PRC, 24 September 2015

FE - 2018F5H16H

PRC, 16 May 2018

FE - 2018F7H23R

PRC, 23 July 2018

(c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BB/ BH
BAFER
Particulars of
issued/
paid-in capital

A K %10,500,000
RMB10,500,000

% 7214,000,000
UsD14,000,000

ARE
50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

ARE
30,000,0007T
RMB30,000,000

A E#1,000,000
RMB1,000,000

A K #1,000,000
RMB1,000,000

TEED /BEnY EEARARAER

Principal activities/ place of Attributable equity interests of

operation the Company
W12A318
As at 31 December
20214
2021

MEmRY,/ RE 100%
R&D services/PRC
KIERAR/HE 100%
Dormant Company/PRC
BHEREESRRE/HEH 100%
Marketing and promotional support
services/PRC
ERABRIBREE/HEH 100%
Products distribution and
administration support/PRC
BRRTFERY,/HE 100%
Clinical research service/PRC
EBXFERYE/HE 100%

Various support services/PRC



(c) BBFRANER (®)

AREH

Company name

EXE5 (LB ERRA) ()
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (China)
Ltd. (i)

SciClone Pharmaceuticals International
(Cayman) Development Ltd. (ii)

SciClone Pharmaceuticals (HK)
Development Co Ltd. (ii)

EEREME(LEB)ERAA ()

SciClone Pharmaceuticals
Development (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (i)

Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (ii)

SciClone Pharmaceuticals
Management Ltd. (ii)

MR ERBS

Place and date of
incorporation

FE - 2006F2A7R

PRC, 7 February 2006

HEHE  2008F6711H

Cayman Islands, 11 June
2008

&% 2015108218

Hong Kong, 21 October
2015

FE - 2015581208
PRC, 12 May 2015

B 201869A19H
Hong Kong, 19 September
2018

&% 2018597190

Hong Kong, 19 September
2018

HZE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

(c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRT/BE TEED LE4% EEADRRAES
BAFE
Particulars of  Principal activities/ place of Attributable equity interests of
issued/  operation the Company
paid-in capital
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20216
2021
FL250,000 EHEREERE DHE 100%
USD250,000  Marketing and promotion services/
PRC
E7050,000 FERAAMMERYE /HEHS 100%

USD50,000  Pre-clinical R&D services/Cayman
Islands

XE7L1,000 BAAMTERE/EE 100%

USD1,000  Preclinical R&D services/ Hong Kong

%701,400,000 FERHHEH 100%
USD1,400,000  R&D services/PRC

BLI0000 HEEREEBRERB/FE 100%
HKD10,000  Supply chain and quality assurance
services/Hong Kong

B7010,000 ERRK/EE 100%

HKD10,000  Management services/Hong Kong

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited



& HT B mKRNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2022F 128318 L F &
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

39 APENEEEBEREREE 39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the
Company (continved)

88

(c) BEFARNEHR @) (c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
ARER MLt R A S BRT/EH TEEH LEHE EEAQARRAESR
BAFER
Company name Place and date of Particulars of  Principal activities/ place of Attributable equity interests of
incorporation issued/  operation the Company
paid-in capital
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20225 20216
2022 2021
BEHERER(LB)FRARG) FE 202057488 ARE ERHEE/HE 100% 100%
5,000,000

SciClone Supply Chain Management  PRC, 8 July 2020
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (i)

RMB5,000,000  Product sales/PRC

Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Switzerland & £ ° 202242 A178 I +3%8620,000 HRERR /L 100% NEA
GmbH (ii)
Switzerland, 17 February CHF20,000  Dormant Company/Switzerland NA
2022
SciClone Pharmaceuticals International 7% » 202268 A 15H Mg KRR H M 100% TiEmA
(SG) PTE. Ltd. (ii)
Singapore, 15 August 2022 SGP1  Dormant Company/Singapore NA
() BEPREIESMEEEREEAT - (i) Registered as a limited liability company under PRC Law.

(i) HEMAEREMERT

224

(i)

Registered as a limited liability company.
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Financial Summary

BZ12A3NALEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214 20205 20194 20184
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETn ARE®Fx ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 2,749,681 2,518,474 1,918,562 1,708,068 1,408,869
EH Gross Profit 2,070,485 1,933,006 1,490,456 1,314,927 1,105,870
a5 Net Profit 855,355 923,361 753,695 614,604 535,082
R12A31R

As at December 31,
20225 20214 20204 20194 2018%F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETRT AR®TFT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total Assets 4,320,406 4,062,682 2,882,644 1,845,823 1,296,277
BafE Total Liabilities 1,328,244 1,745,274 2,570,782 320,646 253,406
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About the Report

We hereby release the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”). This report aims to fully and truly present the management practice
and performance of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited (“We"” or "the
Group”) in the ESG aspects in 2022 to its major stakeholders including the
shareholders, employees, regulatory bodies, customers, partners and the public.

Reporting Period

This report covers our ESG management approach and performance for the
period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 (“the Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope
The scope of this report primarily covers our core business and includes the key

offices located in mainland China and Hong Kong, which is consistent with the
2021 Annual Report of us.

Basis of Preparation

In the section that follows, we will disclose the Group’s ESG strategies, measure
and performances of daily operation in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEX").

This report has been prepared in compliance with the reporting principles of the
ESG Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG issues to be concerned through
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, and disclosures
accordingly in the ESG Report.

° Quantitative: This report presents environmental KPIs in quantitative
terms, with narratives provided to explain the purpose and impacts.

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s current
performance on ESG management following the principle of balance.

° Consistency: The data disclosure and statistics methods used for this
report are consistent with those for the 2021 ESG Report to ensure the
comparability of information.
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F—E 1202260 E CHAPTER 1: HIGHLIGHT IN 2022
BHMBERBTARFEERER aEER We always implement sustainable development strategy and attach great
ESGEIR  FRYEMLEMRBAENIL importance to ESG management. Adhering to our mission of being responsible to
FRETERER  FEEBLESGERER - our society and environment, we carry out a responsibility management system
HAZEEFETEZER - N2022F - and constantly optimize the ESG management system as well as extensively
BMERE HeghkErREFTEHNETE communicate with stakeholders. During 2022, we achieved great results on ESG
RKEKR  LEHEEBFINERA - performance especially through the external recognition.

~
o ZEBNFE = JREYEERRERIES
Was invited to attend 2022 Biofuture Leader Conference
/

o BREHENLASIFCOVID-19ZIBHMMNEE REEAR
Donated Zadaxin to support the doctors and medical
workers during the COVID-19 pandemic

April-May J

o STEZAIN [2022{REE ’%‘ETEEEQGTMEE@?J?&E@FE\%&\
BEBAREMHEMEXERSE
Was invited to attend 2022 BoYun Meeting to share thoughts
and experience on the development of GTP model and

September outlook of biotech industry Y,
R 2022
S . A
o ZNNTEZEFERITHIE/SE [ThymosinBd A KR {2 FRANE R |
BRIt g EFTESERN g LB RIERE ) \  PUSFSEEEIR
20224 Participated in the Sixth International Symposium on iy .
10H Thymosin in Health and Disease in Rome; Dr. Mao was invited
October 4 to make a speech at the Symposium
y 2022 4 -/
. N\
o SRIE20224F [ODNEEZEARRAIFTE B HE |
20224 Was awarded the 2022 ODN Biotech Innovation Prize
1A )
November
2022
~

o SEETR2022FF V&) ETARIN0085] A& fEE20224F

& [REESE]

20224 Was awarded the 2022 Growth-Oriented Listed Companies Top
12H 100 by Snowball (XueQiu) and 2022 Growth-Value Company by

December :
2022 GelongHui Y.
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FE . BEREER
2.1 ESGEA
BPHE R RUIEZREE R

EAEEREACHE RHBEFRENES
BEMERBINEGES T RARIR
mEREGE FPEE BIBZX KRB
FERROBBEEMREDE -

EMNEESRBERS  HRE  £E2 2%
XEEAR - BMBEE AIERBEERS
BERMEBOAFSEER -BBRETR
HEREECENOXEREMERAS EZNF
A BRUBEERASIM BRAS  HEBH
# - EREE RERBEEANRENRE
BAMTE RS SERHhE - LRER
BAZFRAE BEBSRROEKRNNAE
BEE  TEEEBEREERE -
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CHAPTER 2: RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE
2.1 ESG Governance
Our mission and sustainable development concept

BEEMFEEXLE
New SciClone Corporate Culture

ScrCrone
BES

BEXEEXE

Driven by the mission of “Improving patients’ health by providing top-tier
healthcare products and services with global standards of care”, we focus on
specialty in oncology and severe infection, and are devoted to becoming an
international biopharmaceutical company with sustainable growth, by working
hard to win trust from our patients, respect from our customers and pride from
our employees.

Our values include customer, win-win, responsibility, efficiency, performance and
compliance. We believe that creating long-term value rides on the sustainable
development of our business. By providing employees with the cultural
environment of international companies and a platform to display their talents
and establishing leadership criteria including setting direction, developing talents,
engaging partners, embracing change and driving for results, we continuously
overcome challenges to focus on some of the largest and fast-growing therapeutic
areas with significant unmet medical needs in China, primarily including oncology
and severe infection.
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ESG Strategy

With more than 20 years of experience in commercializing differentiated high
quality medicines in the China market, sustainable development strategy has
always served as the framework of the Group’s roadmap and guides in every
aspect of our business.

ESG Management Framework

To fulfill the supervision of ESG matters and ensure the smooth implementation
of the ESG work of the Group, we set up a top-down ESG management
framework to ensure efficient implementation of its ESG efforts. As the highest
decision-maker of the ESG management, the Board takes full responsibility for
the Group's ESG strategies and objectives. The Board has nominated the Audit
Committee of the Group as the representative of the Board to manage and
supervise ESG-related matters. The Board consistently evaluates, prioritizes,
manages material ESG-related issues and risks, and reviews the performances of
ESG management system and the progress of achieving ESG objectives.

Looking to the future, we will continue to improve the ESG management system
of the Group, further improve the working mechanism, strengthen the ESG risk
response capability, enhance the systemic and comprehensive ESG information
management, and ensure the quality of ESG information disclosure.
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22 N#@MEEL SRR E R
MEEBANBEU A B ETRHES
REBERREEHNEE - RMEEEBS
BREANBEIMBHHERBBIER -
ATRESOEFLRMIEE HmEEa
BEORBE

MRB|EHA  RMBLTERNBBES
Kb T REI O E A PR SR SR ANER -

FNEHEBA HEEER

2.2 Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

Stakeholders’ expectations are essential to the Group’s efforts to define its

sustainability strategy and reporting. We aim to nurture relationships with both

our internal and external stakeholders by maintaining close communication with

them through various channels to understand their needs and concerns.

During the Reporting Period, we have established effective communication

mechanisms to understand and respond their demands and expectations in a

timely manner.

Stakeholders

Expectations and Requirements

BEES

Communication Mechanisms

B EE %S

Governments and regulators

BERREE R

Shareholders and investors

i
H

Employees

230

. B RRER
. T

. E R B0
. mEENTE

o Compliance with the laws and regulations
. Pay taxes
o Regular epidemic prevention and control

3 Products quality and safety

. NRER
. & @],
. =R E

. [ Bz & 12

3 Corporate governance
3 Return on investment
. Information disclosure
3 Risk management

. REB I RH
. BEERRE
. BErepmEEze

. Protect employee’s rights and interests
. Career development channel
. Occupational health and safety

. ERER
. TR B
. TR 2 I E A

o Compliance management

o Proactive in tax payment

o Active participation of government’s
projects

. 58 M5 B ER
. PR R EE &%
. B %

. NGIE R

o Mandatory information disclosure
o Shareholder and investor meetings
o Road show

o Company website

. EH e RE

. BETHEREAS

. MERE B RE

. FTEBMEBMNFRENES

o Regular meetings and trainings

o Employee care activities

o Internal communication channels

o Quarterly performance communication

and annual performance review
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EEES

Communication Mechanisms

BEPREE

Customers and patients

EEBHREES

Partners and suppliers

=

Communities

RTEERTERE

Peer companies and industrial
associations

g

Media

. = 4 E 1 E a M AR 7
. BEMEH
. AR &

3 High quality products and services
3 Responsible marketing

o Privacy protection

. ABEE

. @ HaE

. F o AR

. Compliance procurement
. Win-win cooperation
o Intellectual property protection

s HERER
. X ¥ At R A A

3 Community development
3 Support for community welfare
. AIHF

. HITEBRRAEMER

o Fair competition

3 Contribution to industrial development

. BEEMNEm®RKRE
. BERETELEN

3 High-quality products and services
3 Positive social influence

. AR5 2 AR K B

e WWmakgZE

o Service hotline and email
o Conferences and meetings
. BECE-PSE

. 5 7% & A

. EDHEAMAT

° Conferences and meetings
. Business visits

° Audit and performance evaluation
. B A8k

o NG )

o Official website

o Public welfare activities

. TxEH

- mE2F

. Industrial conferences

o Benchmarking

. B 2 A

o B 77 48k
. Press release
. Official website
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BMEBUTTREMRIEREZE N We regularly review major issues to align the strategy and long-term objectives in
IEEESGEREMERERRERE: ESG management through the following steps:

o TEE— : BAIESGERE
Step 1: Identifying ESG issues

Based on the Group’s business development and industrial trends, 18 ESG

issues has been identified which were believed to have significant impact
on our business and stakeholders.

o R FHEERM
Step 2: Assessing the materiality

R HBEREBHEE
777 B3 Vil —EEBEOEE Y - RIE
1Fﬁ%‘lm7% AT AR o
Through materiality evaluation questionnaires within the Group, we
assessed the materiality of every issue by the aspects of “materiality to
SciClone’s business” and “impact on stakeholders”. Based on the results
of the survey, the materiality assessment matrix was formulated.

o FH=  RERMAER

Step 3: Verifying the assessment results

FHEAEREMESFE RESC TIFAESE MR -

The assessment results have been reviewed and confirmed by the Board

and the ESG Working Group.
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In 2022, the Group re-evaluated the risks and opportunities presented by issues
in different dimensions through business summaries, internal work interviews and
reviews, and confirmed that no significant change has occurred in the material
assessment matrix in the ESG Report in 2021:

= A
High
JEHEEE Extremely Material
EZE Material EREERZR
Product quality and safety
= A BEREARE BXRREERR
fmlpﬁ)ﬂﬂfiﬁng Business ethics and Occupational health
and development =ity and safety
BEENEHREFREE
Responsible marketing
EFEEEBARE and customer satisfaction
4 Customer information
3 and privacy protection HRERERE
S Intellectual property protection
< o
[ EEMERAN  asmpmaee
© d::le'ilopment Sustainable supply
H .
2 and innovation chain management g g%
o Employee
£ DEEHE rights and
b Public welfare B ETRELE benefits
Qo Prohibit child labor and
§ forced labor
E HREER BEMAHER
o Energy conservation Packaging material management
i
2 B EIR
Ha Water conservation
08
I
i< -
| A EZE Immaterial
® TESRER
:'g;ﬂ FEEREEY Solid waste management
Climate risk and response
BKNBERER
Wastewater and gas
management
& >
Low HELEBNHEEM Materiality to SciClone’s business & High

ERMAMER

Materiality Assessment Matrix
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R ELEERARLOEEENESA
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REBE#

BB RET(REARAMBERTEE 5
FERIR(PEARAMBER AR E)SHR
BREWITERER  BRERAELEE -
dE S - A B E TR R B A R R R B
Ry BETRESNMASBMER - AR
PRERT HER TP AONKHEMLA
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EREI - BARLARBIRAEBEIS
REH BRMTHEEAEROBE R EZ
NIEFR R IERMENESRIEETR -
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BRFEAETEAHE -

R E R REAE

Whistleblower@sciclone.com

REEHMA - AMARKIERAFLIEE
ERBENEARBEERBE -

EREH
RE-TNARRAREEHEH2REOEE -
BAIHE T — RPN IEERERF(SOP)) -
REBLHFY - BADRBREBRENRIE
BMERSETHER EZIMRERE -
BRMEEIHMEESENNAERANEE
BREBNAE HMKILITERLEREEZER
g((lcpC)) UREEEMERRNEMBER
MAERANETTA - COCTRAEIEHESIRTE
I 7 5 B B 1) 52 RUHE A -

HHERE

BMEREMANRE  EXEERRKRE
BHKH  RMECEFINFEBELRA
A B ER  ERERACAERRSE
Bt BAMERZERRERL - N
BREMENZT O EHNBRERBERR -

o
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2.3 Business Ethics

We regard the business ethics as an essential part of our core values. We strictly
follow Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ( FEEARLFE L)),
the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ H
FEARLMBEEREIRE)), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China (R ZEAR®ETEKTIEE#FE)) and other laws and
regulations from time to time.

Anti-Corruption

We strictly abide by relevant national and local laws and regulations such as
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China and remain
committed to the ethical and honest operation. Furthermore, we formulated
Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (& Bk % B BX 82 v /& B K
%)) , which specifies the details and requirements for anti-corruption, and
is applicable to all employees, suppliers, customers, contracting parties and
other stakeholders. We organize all employees
to attend anti-corruption training every year,
enhancing their compliance awareness through

online compliance trainings. We also believe that
transparent effective whistle-blowing systems
and procedures can prevent and correct improper

whistleblower@sciclone.com

or illegal acts in a timely manner. Therefore,
we established a sound internal investigation
mechanism to conduct comprehensive
investigations on the reported matters.

Reporting email of the Group:
Whistleblower@sciclone.com

During the Reporting Period, we did not receive any significant accusation or
report related to corruption of the Group or employees.

Compliance Marketing

To further strengthen the Company’s control of the whole process of marketing
activities, we formulated series Standard Operation Procedures ("SOP") to
standardize the procedures covering marketing events, academic activities
and business entertaining. We regularly organize both on-line training and
classroom courses to the staff, making sure all employees can acquire sufficient
understanding and knowledge on compliance and business ethics. We established
Compliance Disciplinary Committee (“CDC") to investigate potential violation or
other behaviors against the honest principles. CDC is also responsible for making
the decision for punishment and enacting the remediation measures if necessary.

Intellectual Property

While promoting scientific innovation, we have effectively managed and
protected our own achievement. We have engaged external counsel to manage
all our intellectual property rights, ensuring the risks related to the identification
of property rights are effectively controlled. We have also established a regular
reporting system to ensure that we can adequately control the risks associated
with our intellectual property.
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

We strictly abide by the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In addition,
to keep improving information security management and enhancing information
security management capabilities, we have formulated the /nformation Security
Policy, to protect key information infrastructure, important network and data
security.

We provide products to hospitals and various medical institutions through
business partners instead of direct selling to patients, so the privacy of end
consumers is not involved. Pursuant to laws and regulations mentioned above, we
offer training on basic knowledge for all new and existing employees, involving
business confidentiality, compliance obligations and legal liabilities, to improve
customer privacy awareness and prevent the customer privacy from being
infringed.

2.4 Product and Service
Quality management
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We are always committed to providing patients with safe and effective drugs by
improving the quality management system and product quality. We strictly abide
by the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#
EAREMBIZEREIRE)), Good Clinical Practice of Pharmaceutical Products
(EYMBRABEEETIRRE)), Measures for the Administration of Drug
Registration ((%& Skt B HE #15X)) and other laws and regulations, and carry
out research and development, clinical research and commercial production in
accordance with the law. We have formulated the Quality Manual (G &F
1)), a series of quality management procedures covering production, inspection,
sampling, testing and records, etc., to provide standardized guidance for the
implementation and improvement of quality management at all levels.

Product Responsibility and Drug Safety

We manufacture our proprietary product, Zadaxin, through Patheon lItalia, an
industry leading and highly reputable CMO. We outsourced the production of
in-licensed products to our partners under the Supply Agreement with them. Our
production quality management standards remain complied with GMP in various
markets where we have operations.

Process performance and product quality will be monitored through the review
of production activities and outcomes release stability testing activities. We
will maintain a testing program on an adequate number of product batches to
evaluate the stability of the products, including proper storage conditions and
expiration date.

Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Group, we established
the Drug Safety Committee (“DSC"”) to manage product quality and potential
safety hazards. When receiving an adverse event or report, DSC shall collect and
investigate related data such as patient and medication information, complete
the investigation report, and take action according to the investigation results
including notifying the users to stop using relevant products and ensure that the
unqualified products are recalled and quarantined when necessary. Furthermore,
in order to enhance the awareness of product responsibility, the Group regularly
provides certain training to staff in the respective drug safety.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, we did not receive any significant
products safety issues and service related complaints, nor any product recalls due
to safety and health reasons.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group continuously improves the management process of supply chain and
the quality of the suppliers through the strictly abidance by the Procurement
Standard Operating Process. In terms of supplier selection, the Group conducts
comprehensive evaluations of the qualifications, supply capacity, product quality
and services of suppliers to strictly control the supplier bidding management
procedures. Suppliers are required to provide qualification documents and
complete the Third-Party Due Diligence Checklist (E=F ZBMEHAE))

to ensure compliance with Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and SciClone’s
Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (& ¥k & Bf B% 81 [ & B X
%)) . Moreover, for existing suppliers, regular and random quality reviews are
conducted through supplier review reports or on-site inspections. In addition, we
encourage suppliers to promote green manufacturing and ecological design and
to carry out green evaluation. We are committed to helping suppliers to jointly
improve the resource utilization efficiency and minimum environmental impact.
As of December 31, 2022, we have 14 major product-related suppliers (mainly
including production, warehouses and logistics), with 7 suppliers in Europe, 5
suppliers in Mainland China and the rest of suppliers in the other countries and
regions.
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BZHET

CHAPTER 3: EMPLOYEE AND COMMUNITY
3.1 Employees’ Overview

We consider talents the core capital for the sustainable development of the
Group. To ensure our employees’ talents are fully exhibit and efforts are rewarded
better, we are providing our employees with global-standard company culture
and a platform for them to perform. We also make sure their efforts can be
recognized and rewarded.

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations applicable to the places where
we operate, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations
applicable overseas. We formulate and continue to refine our internal policies,
through which we can provide systematic guidance for employees in recruitment,
removal, working hours, vacation and other aspects. We clarify the employment
principles and standards in the system and manage the entire process of hiring,
promotion and termination of employees to ensure that employment is managed
legally and regularly.

During the Reporting Period, we continuously expand our professional team. As
of December 31, 2022, We had a total of 988 employees.

RFRESWEIH
Number of Employees by Age

27

650 209

505
Over 50

m 305%-505%
30-50

m305R T
Below 30

RIEREAEHHE I
Total Workforce by Employment Type

6

LR 3

Part-time

2R
Full-time

Macau and Taiwan
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3.2 Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group adheres to legal employment and provides labor contract with every
employee. We have closely followed the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China (HZEAREFELE L)), the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China (R EARKXFME LB & F X)), the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor (ZIEERETHE)),
employment and labor laws and regulations. Child labor and forced labor are
strictly prohibited. The Group will carry out investigation in accordance with
relevant procedures if necessary and hand over any illegal cases to the relevant

and other relevant

judicial authorities for handling.

We believe that the diversity of employees can ensure the sustainable
development of the Group. We are not only providing our employees with equal
opportunities for personal development and performance but also equitably
treating and respecting our employees, regardless of their gender, region,

nationality, background and race.

We provide generous benefits and holidays for our employees. /n accordance
with Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({F ¥ AR EXMBE+t FREIE)), Interim
Regulations on the Collection and Payment of Social Insurance Premiums ({tt
SR ERBETIEH)) and Regulation on the Administration of Housing
((FEAESEEKN)), we provide employees with
timely payment of social basic insurance funds, including endowment insurance,

Accumulation Funds

unemployment insurance, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund. We are also committed to
creating the most advantageous welfare system for our employees among peer
companies. In addition to ensuring that employees are fully entitled to statutory
benefits, we provide employees with special benefits unique to the Group such as
paid annual leave, commuting subsidies and gifts on employees’ birthdays, etc.,
so as to enhance their happiness.

239

#12AFRD T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2022 FE#%E ANNUAL REPORT



RE -8 kERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BARAAAEET AREEERNT®RE N -
REREEEIFSANBEINLBRERE
FOAS AEBERYTENERERH
E-UABBEIZHLRALIE  BBRS
MITHERE REABRUT) BEELE -
BREINFHEREAF S REFEENE
SEE -BRMASFHRELZESRR  TH
FeXNKIPREIRRRIEEFHF S - Uk
S RB(BEEEREERE) BEIFERN
FUZKEBERERERFTH  THEBLHE
TREL-REFEERE BEMNEBHEBK
BRETEGXKEFREEERRE FEH
BERKRE ARFEEESPRBENER
RMERBEERALBY BRARFERR
BRETE BBERERNITREENIE
EREFHEEINRMAEBMENTANEE
2 o

ARAERMZBEREABE  BRARRE
ERBREAZIULNERAAFAEEERZR
HERhELAERNESECERESZBR
SHAEENER  TAAEENORKE
J& T #E ok sl ~ BB B i B R AT PR AR AR
REENES -

BAAE BRANBRRESETIRERBR -
AEBEBTBBRETRER217% MEFA
73276% AFEMARMBABSRETHE
REE -

We are grateful to all employees for their tireless contributions to the Group. In
order to ensure their well-being in the workplace and retain the best talents,
the Group has established a complete performance management system to
motivate employees to devote themselves to work entirely and stimulate their
work commitment to exploit their potential fully according to their positions.
Remuneration for each employee is determined by base salary and annual
performance bonus. We will review employees’ salaries every year based on
operational conditions, market salary payment levels and employees’ performance.
Besides, according to SciClone Performance Management Guideline ((& 4 4
MEIRHEK)), employees need to finish the goal setting and planning at the
beginning of the year and complete at least one Quarterly Review with the line
manager. We encourage the line managers to give team members continuous
coaching and feedback, review their goals, performance and provide advice
and assistance for their development and improvement during the Quarterly
Review. We kick off Performance Appraisal at year end to evaluate Employees’
Achievement and desired behaviors and values through two metrics: performance
goals and behavioral standards.

The Company also adopted the Option Incentive Plan, the Post-IPO Option Plan
and the Post-IPO RSU Plan to reward eligible employees for their contributions to
the Group and to attract, motivate and retain skilled and experienced employees
for the future development and expansion of the Group.

We believe our policy can provide employees sense of belonging. The turnover
rate of the Group’s employees decreased to 21.7%, compared with 27.6% last
year. During the year, all the employees who left the Group were from Mainland
China.

REFIREI DM BERLR
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Turnover rate of each category = the number of resigned employees of this category/
the total number of employees of this category as of December 31, 2021 and 2022
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3.3 Occupational Health and Safety

We attach great importance to occupation health and put the personal safety of
our employee in the first place. We strictly abide by applicable Chinese laws and
regulations on workplace health and safety, including but not limit to the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((Ff FE A R &£ #
2 8)5%)) and the Law of the

People’s Republic of China on FERR

annual
the Prevention and Control A ohysical

\ i
of Occupational Diseases ({f oo

/__‘
EARAMBEBRERD A

‘ DIPEHE
7%£)) . To ensure the safety of E1
the workplace and enhance ‘ pzyoi,hn‘)SI;ﬁi;al
the safety awareness of our ,
employees, we formulate ‘l‘ ] pn'ovisignog/f‘»er;lergency
the Office and Safety Code \  diugs, masks and
(G 2 &% 25 A1) and S

i ideli tecti
introduce the guideline of protection

safety practices during new
employees training. We make
continuous efforts to guarantee the occupational health of our employees. We
provide annual physical examinations and organize psychological counseling
lectures for employees. We ensure that employees have sufficient supplies to
prevent occupational diseases and have appropriate personal protective gear.
There was no work-related fatality during the Reporting Period and the past three

years. In 2022, 19 lost
days due to work injury. O ©‘

FEP 0
Conference center
Rewarding Wall

Meanwhile, we continuously
provide advanced, convenient,
comfortable and homelike
office to our employees. During
2022, we refurnished our
Shanghai office and expanded
the conference center to
provide more equipped
and functional working

. Reception
environment.
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3.4 Talent Management

The Group attaches importance to the development of talents and takes the
identification and cultivation of compound and professional talents as the starting
point.

Promotion

We encourage promotions, provide fair and transparent opportunities to all, and
pursue the principle of equal pay for equal work. By formulating the SOP for
Promotion Management (& A ERIZERERTE)), we have defined the
specific conditions and process requirements for promotion, so as to create a more
fair and equal opportunity for employees’ career progress and development. Our
promotion system comprises position promotion and technical title promotion.
For each position, we discuss and formulate personal development plans together
with our employees, and help employees to improve their comprehensive ability
and achieve their career planning goals through different ways such as special
training, performance counseling, job rotation and secondment, etc..

BsET

Position promotion

BREET

Title promotion
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Talent Training

We attach great importance to the training of employees.
@ | $¢kbor Our Training Department, consisting of 8 professional
ST training experts, is responsible for designing, organizing
and summarizing the trainings mainly covering marketing system, pharmaceutical
system and soft skills development for supporting function employees. We offer
abundant training resources to employees, ranging from online to offline training
programs. “iSciclone”, as our online training platform, provides a more efficient
channel for employees to learn about our Group’s policies and complete relevant
exams remotely via mobile phones or laptops. We also founded “SciClone School”
(B £ 2PBt) which has significantly improved employees’ learning efficiency and
skills.
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BTRSEIOHEE RBE - KMRE To improve the pertinence and efficiency of the trainings, we design the courses
TRMELERTRE  WREBEIMNFER: based on different positions to match employees’ needs:

g

Dt

BHFEEN

o}

=S

il

BRENARARAXE  AREBI EZYLE2EERE
T RASE R EEM

get a comprehensive understanding of our Group and its products

AR
Orientation training:

through the introduction of company culture, compliance training, drug
safety alert and quality complaints, etc.

EREERD TFPERE BRRARENER HKANEBRTS
SHERRZI : 75 TH A9 AR 38
Sales representative knowledge of advanced sales skills, customer management,
training: self-awareness and effective communication, negotiation and winning
skills, etc.

ERXBEE BAKRD BRER BREE BSEHIRBEE
2 % 77 T A A

g EH : : : : .
knowledge of regional business management, interview skills,

Manager training: : . .
performance management, situational leadership, workplace stress and

emotional management, etc.

RSM %3] : SIEEE  BEHRREENRES
RSM training: lead the leader; coach the coach; leadership courses, etc.

FHERELRBHOERSEI TBERMNBLESERSNSERG S
K&IAE

advanced training regarding management and strategy aspects, as well

# R E

Advanced training:

as participate in various workshops and projects through our SciClone
School
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2022FE BT 55| Employees Training in 2022
020 HiF RMEERETAEHIE During 2022, we successively conducted a lot of training activities and received
g BET2HEENAIERE: enthusiastic response from the participants:

FHEAE ANRE SHERKRIZI R
Orientation training for non-sales Sales representative training Manager training

A

e B RATEIBAZEMNBBER AR BEREFPERE  #IHER o B EBER mAREBEBRD

BEER A 1E & e  Purpose: Management of business,
e  Purpose: Enhancement of e  Purpose: Management of key interview and communication skill
communication skill and corporation customers and optimization of sales
among different departments strategy e TIHRHEEH:CEPHE
e Tool and Theory: CEP method
o T HEBEH:DISC AT e IHHEHBEHR: NERZEER
e Tool and Theory: DISC Test e Tool and Theory: Six hats theory e RBNHEFNBEERSE
e Content: Group discussion and
e RBF MG JAFNBERMNS e RAB:/|HEFW EOLIWMEAE experience sharing
#r E7apt=
e  Content: Workshop, group e  Content: Group discussion, case
discussion and case study study and role play
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KB TR category
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3.5 Employee Care

At SciClone, we share success and joy and celebrate achievements and growth

together. To achieve work-life balance and create a joyful, united and harmonious

working atmosphere for our employee, we organize different kinds of activities

such as annual convention, Christmas special activity and Family Day, etc. We
make our SciClone intranet ("B 4£ A4 ") as a small community for employees
where we organize varied activities regularly calling for everyone to share
their photos, experiences and thoughts in the aspect of photography, reading,
travelling, delicacy, filming and sports, etc.

DELEEE

bR
1,000:
1,000+

photos sharing
to share
the joy of life

B
50=
50+

activities to
participate

[ AfR$Tcall] &
SRS T

150-

150+

employees rewarded
in “call for you"”

BAEHHRBEANERGHE) REFEEQARNER  7ZBXTERTEDES
We regularly publish our magazine Xin Sheng (#7-4) in which we delivery our company value and
share business news and industry update, etc.
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3.6 Community Care

We are enthusiastic about participating in community charity activities and always
believe that the implementation of charity activities is not only a platform for
the Company to fulfill its social responsibilities, but also an important measure
to build a positive company image and enhance employees’ pride. With the
continuous development and growth of the Company, we will firmly fulfill our
responsibility on social public welfare. We plan and participate in community
public welfare, take the initiative to assume social responsibilities, and apply our
endless domestic innovations in benefiting patients in China and around the
world.

In the first half of 2022, many cities still suffered from the impact of COVID-19.
To fight against the pandemic and provide strong support to doctors and medical
workers, we donated our proprietary product Zadaxin to certain hospitals
and medical institutions in Shanghai, Tianjin, Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Jiangsu and
Guangdong.

Following the adjustments of pandemic policies in China, a new wave of
COVID-19 infection outbroke at the end of 2022. To meet the urgent needs
of patients, we established an emergency supply channel and appointed 21
pharmacies as emergency suppliers to ensure Zadaxin's availability. Patients with
valid prescription can obtain the product by delivery.

Shenzhen No. 3 People’s Hospital

RN TE=ZARER

HMERBEER

Nanchang University

Hospital

F gl

BEMNTE=ZARER
Changzhou No. 3 People’s Hospital
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CHAPTER 4: GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENT

In addition to continuous business development, we are fully aware that we bear
the social responsibility and mission of protecting our environment. We actively
respond to the national call for energy conservation and emission reduction,
persist green development concept, and adhere to the sustainable development
path. We strictly abide by Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FEARLFIFEIRIERE)L)) and the Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({F#E AR XFMEE 442K %)) and other laws
and regulations to build a harmonious environment.

4.1 Climate Change

We are aware of the importance of climate change to the sustainable
development of the earth. Pursuant to the disclosure methods and
recommendations of Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) ,
we identified the risks including typhoon, flood and other extreme weather
related to climate change affecting the Group. To improve our capability and level
to respond to such risks, we establish emergency plans and conduct emergency
drills regularly.
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BMEE T ERHREIERE IR A
FEEMELEDES - H2022FHMRNTZ
FEREBRETRERE - LML
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v M RAERREFNER

v REFERSR R

v call for energy and water saving
v switch off power and water

4.2 Office Environment and Consumption

We formulated Energy Conservation Management as the guideline for employees
to reduce the generation of waste. We have taken several measures and obtained
remarkable results during 2022. We achieved nearly 20% and nearly 30%
saving on the indirect energy consumption and energy consumption intensity,
respectively.

IR EFEAEE KRAF) *
7k Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) *
KR
20214 — 203.33 JKF B
Year 2021 — 203.33 MWh

equipment in a timely manner

v BEVEAER R
v Bl ITEE
v HEREIN

v encourage paperless office
v optimize and reduce the
printing volume
v paper recycling

20224 — 162.52 JKF B
Year 2022 — 162.52 MWh

BEFEFE BIE (BREFA)

v B3R 5R Energy consumption* intensity (MWh per capita)
v EEEEPI B R AR & P y (T percap

v garbage classification e .
v recycle hazardous waste by Year 2021 — 0.23 (MWh per capita)

specified department

20214F —0.23 (KEEEA)

REARBEENRBLAEREEREES

o

B &%

SEELANBEEVEIERENNAELE
WEBREEY AWETEBMIER - /&
RIEBEFERYER  HESGREP L R
BKPI A1 (BER Y & %8 R 4B 78 B L UIR)
MIFTELEBEBEEMRE) AMIFTE
EBEEEYMEE) -
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b ¥

20224F —0.16 (JKEEF,A)
Year 2022 — 0.16 (MWh per capita)

* Total energy consumption is calculated based on the electricity consumption in offices
and warehouses.

The waste generated from office operation is mainly residual waste disposed by
the property management. Since the environmental impacts are relatively limited,
KPI A1.1 (The types of emissions and respective emissions data), A1.3 (Total
hazardous waste produced), A1.4 (Total non-hazardous waste produced) are not
disclosed in the ESG report.
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Our Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use and sourced from
municipal water system, which is sufficient for of daily operation. However, as
only a minimal amount of water was used in the offices and water charges are
not required, KPI A2.2 (Water consumption in total and intensity) is not disclosed
in the ESG report.

4.3 Production and Energy Consumption

No production process is conducted in the Group while we are committed to
strengthening the reduction of packaging materials at the source and reusing the
materials, packaging materials and other resources in the process of testing and
verification, so as to improve the recycling efficiency of packaging materials and
reduce the waste of resources.

In 2022, the packaging materials used per unit produced keep stable at 0.038 kg/
unit produced compared with last year. The total packaging materials used by the
Group amounted to 117.6 tonnes, compared with 99.6 tonnes last year. However,
for every production unit of packaging material we used, our output remains
stable at 0.05 tonnes per thousand RMB of revenue.

Based on the nature of our Group’s business operation, there is no material direct
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") emissions (Scope 1) as the use of fuels is relatively
limited in our Group. Thus, our GHG emissions mainly consist of energy indirect
GHG emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity. GHG emissions are presented
in CO2 equivalents. The GHG emissions of purchased electricity in Shanghai
region were calculated based on the electricity emission factor published by
Shanghai Ecological Environment Bureau in 2022 while other GHG emissions were
calculated in accordance with the 2011 and 2012 Regional Grid Average CO2
Emission Factor for China ({20114 F120124F & B [& 13 = 48 £ 39 — |1k Bk HE R
A F)) issued by the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) and
How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs issued by HKEX.

20224 20214
R EKPI Environmental KPls 2022 2021
BEREFMAEE(E _S(LiREE)  Total GHG emissions (tCOse) 90.1 111.18
— RREEAEREHEN(EE ) — Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
(W —&ftixE 8 (tCO,e) 90.1 111.18
— REREBHENAE — GHG emission intensity (tCO,e per capita)
(—SRESEAN) 0.09 0.13

B EERN RMELEBRDAL
BHRJEKNEAEARZE  TEAE®
AEMAREERRAER - Bt - A3 ECR
BRRARER) RKPI A3 (FE it 75 5 8 &
REMAREFRNEAZENRDTHENMEE
FRZENTEH I TIERARAEE B
RIESGHR & # 5 -

Apart from the matters disclosed above, we have not caused any significant
environmental impacts nor have we heavily utilized other environmental and
natural resources during our operation. Therefore, Aspect A3 (The environment
and natural resources) and KPI A3.1 (Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them) are not applicable to our Group, and are not disclosed in the ESG
report.
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R PN=

“affiliate”

[ERAAIRNESERME]
“Articles” or "Articles of

Association”
[BREEE]

“Audit Committee”

[EEg]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[FREHB(RARZEIIRNLTE)]

“Cayman Companies Act” or
“Companies Act”

(&R

“CG Code”

KNI
“China”, “Mainland China” or
“the PRC"

[CHINET]
“CHINET”

fcmol

“CMO”

[CNS]
“CNS”

[ 8 & 615 ]

“Companies Ordinance”

[AR2F]

“Company” or “our Company”
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BEEIHEENHEESEALTXXFAT EA T EEAMAEENNEBRE
FALTRINEESREERRZESOTAEMAL

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person

RRAFR2021F 1 A22B B GRH R X ETRHAERNEZERMA - EH
ZHENBRERMHM

the articles of association of our Company, conditionally adopted on January 22,
2021 and effective on the Listing Date, a summary of which is set out in Appendix
IV to the Prospectus

EFEeEZXES

the audit committee of our Board

)

the board of Directors

FeHBEEMNERE(RRNE) BRI FEIFIEN) - K TAFEETHM
75 5 LA B A 75 S B 2k

the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman lIslands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961),
as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

CEMBANMEE+MAECEERERTA
code on corporate governance practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

hEARKME  RAFEREMS  FRETSE  RPIBTRERAH
the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this annual report,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

PR EEE AR

the China Antimicrobial Surveillance Network

BREERE REETENEMARRHSHNRBORGR  BHE2EMEY
BLiE R

Contract Manufacturing Organization, a company that serves other companies in
the pharmaceutical industry on a contract basis to provide comprehensive drug
manufacturing services

R AR R

central nervous system

BEREEDE22ELA TGN (BT EFT S 7)
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
or supplemented from time to time

BEERXERAERAF  —HKR2020F5ABERERESHSTMA LN ER R
BRAF

SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited, an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on May 13, 2020



[copD]
“COPD"

[CRFI
“CRE”

[E£]
“Director(s)”

[DTPZ: & |

“DTP pharmacies”

EEERl

“GL Capital Group”

[GMPJ

“GMP”

EX T IEAR:TLN

“Group”, “our Group”,
“"we" or “us”

THABP/VABP]
“HABP/VABP”

[HcC
“HCC™

BEMagER

Definitions And Glossary

18 1 PR 25 1 b 7R
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease

BAEMBERZ

cancer-related fatigue

ARAEF

the director(s) of our Company

BERXBEER BERNIEEERRHFEENEXRBENER - EEEWRIE
BEEAER T - DIPEFSRREENE 7R EEPTERE &2 F %
)

direct-to-patient pharmacies, which refer to pharmacies that directly provide
valuable professional services patients. When patients receive doctor prescriptions
from the hospitals, DTP pharmacies deliver the drugs to the patients based on
their prescriptions at the time and location of patients’ choices

BMHZAE—RER - WIHEEAEZE - 2 HGL Capital Management GP
Limited + GL Capital Management GP L.P. ~ GL China Opportunities Fund L.P. + GL
Glee Investment Limited * GL Capital Management Ltd + GL Capital Management
GP Il B.C.I Ltd * GL Trade Investment LP » GL China Opportunities Carry L.P. + GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited & GL Partners Capital Management Ltd 48 i,
B — 4R A

our single largest Shareholder, which is not a legal entity, but a group of
companies comprising GL Capital Management GP Limited, GL Capital
Management GP L.P, GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Glee Investment
Limited, GL Capital Management Ltd, GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd, GL
Trade Investment LP, GL China Opportunities Carry L.P., GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited and GL Partners Capital Management Ltd

RUFEERES BRETABRIMETIERHNESIRBI  ELAEERE
W—3D ERALEBHRTAGERNESMRELERERNNTEZFIE
51 K AR B B2

Good Manufacturing Practice, guidelines and regulations issued from time to time
pursuant to the guidelines and regulations in different territories as part of quality
assurance which ensures that pharmaceutical products subject to these guidelines
and regulations are consistently produced and controlled in conformity to the
quality and standards appropriate for their intended use

RAT R B M ERRIA R (GEARF KA EIR G KB QR %R AR Z 50 H 5
MiME)ZEWBRRKENS QR (RBERME) L L0 ER

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before the
Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

B B 15 1L A B M b K e VR IR AR BB AR B b K
hospital-acquired bacterial pneumonia and ventilator associated bacterial
pneumonia

FF 41 B 72

hepatocellular carcinoma
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[kl #E Al
"HK$"” or “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent”

[&# ]

“Hong Kong” or “HK"”

(& BT R B A

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or

“Stock Exchange”

[1F1]
“IFI”

(=i
“Listing”

Ew e
“Listing Date”

KEmH A

“Listing Rules”

[E 4]

“Main Board”

[ERAAIRAZERRE]

“Memorandum” or
“Memorandum of
Association”

MR %<5 Al

“Model Code”

MBRERBTE

“Option Incentive Plan”
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BEAEEE %/%71

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

PEEEFTRER
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EEBERHIMARDA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EAMEER KR
invasive fungal infection

PRy E BB ER LT
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

2021F3A3H RRONBEEMIMET W EEARNEBBRIMANKESTHNRH
the date, expected to be on or about March 3, 2021, on which our Shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and from which dealings in our Shares
are permitted to commence on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

(BAEBMEXRGMERRABZS LMD ETRFETHE )
the Rules Governing the Llstmg of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

HEBBRXMEENESFMG(TEEHRENS) BLNE BB AGEMI
HLH 1T EAME

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

REM2021F1 2B AR RMAT R ETHBERO AR EBEERERM -
HBEHNBREE MM

the memorandum of association of our Company, conditionally adopted by our
Shareholders on January 22, 2021 to take effect on the Listing Date, of which is
set out in Appendix IV to the Prospectus

(EMRANDIE AR LT BRITAETESETESFRSHHIZEETA
the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

RAT 20186 A24 R # & R SR M & RSB &1 8l (K TR B FT) - AARR
AREMMBARNESEREEAT G TERROBERANBRERMNME
EDEER—MBREN —D.RMHTE —1. EBRE M E & — &

the option incentive plan approved and adopted by our Company on June 24,
2018, as amended from time to time, for the benefit of any director and employee
of the Company or any of our subsidiaries; a summary of the principal terms is set
forth in the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans
— 1. Option Incentive Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus



[BRAMBRERBRESS

“Post-IPO Option Plan”

[BERARMBRERZIREARDEMN

=&l

“Post-IPO RSU Plan”

[HRERAISREX]

“PRC government” or “State”

ERERE]

“Prospectus”

[FHEES]

“Remuneration Committee”

M8 &5
"Reporting Period”

TAR®]
“RMB”

[ZREBROEMNTEER

“RSU Holding Entity”

BEMagER

Definitions And Glossary

R2021FVANE AR ERABERANERRARABEERBEBRESSE - RET
2EERFEARGBERARAMEARG  TEZRAMEFRBRERMBERDE
ER—RAEH —DRMFAE 2 BX A HESEBERESE] -5

the post-IPO share option scheme adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on January
22, 2021, to provide selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in our Company; a summary of principal terms is set forth in
the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans — 2.
Post-IPO Option Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

R2021FVA22E AR FREBRERANBERRAHAEEERZREIROEME -
CAEHEE SRAEULHEHGHERESEREERADZTARANHKY
TERRBEHNBRERMBENEER —REH —D.KRMHTE -3 BAR
FEERIBEHMRNELE]—E

the post-IPO Restricted Share Unit Plan adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on
January 22, 2021, to enable the directors, officers, and other key contributors
and employees of our Group to share the success of our Company; a summary
of principal terms is set forth in the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Plans — 3. Post-IPO RSU Plan” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus

FEFREST  BEMABASB(BEE ThEMBESI T RFEE) R
Hit s (F X EME) P E[—1E

the central government of the PRC, including all political subdivisions (including
provincial, municipal and other regional or local government entities) and its
organs or, as the context requires, any of them

ARR A AE2021F2 A 198N BRER
the prospectus of the Company dated February 19, 2021

EFeVHEES

the remuneration committee of our Board

20221 A1B E2022612 4318 —F B1fE
the one year period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

TEZEEEEARE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

SCLN ESOP Management Limited + —ZX 7 & BB # @ R B¥ & sE it B 32 B B3 Maples
Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited 2 BB BR AT BREEBAAHEEER
BHBRDBECABAEELARRBEERAMEER I BREIMR D ECS
REJRARAGER LT REE) FE RN

SCLN ESOP Management Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited,
holding our Shares pursuant to the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on behalf
of grantees under the Post-IPO RSU Plan which will be determined after the Listing
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[SciClone US|

“SciClone US"

[smDC |
“SMDC"

[ 8% 17 &+ &l ]
“Share Plans”

[ B 17 ]
“Share(s)”

Mg 3R]

“Shareholder(s)”

=R

“Somerley”

[MELF]

“subsidiary(ies)”

[TACE
“TACE"

5B
“U.S."

M x|
“Usb”

(%]

"o
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SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (AT % & SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) © —R R
19904F5 B4 7£ 35 B o0 F 48 JE o2 M FE M B 32+ 36 X20034F 6 A26 B 7 5 B 1 #r
EMEFTMEIALRA > REMEAMEMINER EHOER - AFIEHTHE -
SciClone UST™ B E AR EEH — 5D

SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (formerly known as SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.),
a company incorporated in the State of California of the United States on May 4,
1990 and reincorporated in the State of Delaware of the United States on June
26, 2003, and our previous listing entity on NASDAQ. Upon completion of the
Corporate Reorganization, SciClone US is no longer part of the Group

NGy BB B
small molecule drug conjugate

EREABTE BALAHEERBREAILERLAREERZREKRG
Bat 3
the Option Incentive Plan, Post-IPO Option Plan and Post-IPO RSU Plan

RRAR PR A G 5 IR EE0.00005% T &) E A ik
ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with nominal value of US$0.00005
each

RO EEA

holder(s) of our Shares

BHFENBEGRARA  ARAAFBER  EFRPEEMN T ZFHEEE - R
BEFLPEGRAATREFTIH(EBSRI)LFRA(IHREBERERTER) XA
B

Somerley Capital Limited, the financial advisor to the Company, a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, licensed to carry out
Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities

BEACETRBDME T &R E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

FF 8 AR 1L e 4% 22

transarterial chemoembolization

EFBRERE
the United States of America

EEETFES
the lawful currency of the United States of America

ANt
per cent
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